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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM
mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or
this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BRI

It has been an honour to serve our Company, China Regenerative
Medicine International Limited (“CRMI”), as the Chairman of Board of
Directors (the “Board”). We are presented unparalleled opportunities
and moving into an important and exciting period in our corporate
history.

During the last financial year, CRMI has made significant changes
in the senior management team and the Board to respond the new
needs for the Company development. Eminent professionals were
invited to join the Board to strengthen our profile in international
business, corporate strategy, as well as science and technology.
A new Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) was appointed to drive the
Company from the phase of research and development (“R&D”)
to large scale manufacture, market and sales. Under the strong
leadership of our new CEO, a detailed three-year operation plan was
proposed, and approved by the Board, and implemented from May
2017. It should be pointed out that this three-year operation plan
focused on delivery and financial returns to shareholders.

The performance of our Company, in terms of product sales and
financial figures, improved compared to previous years. The significant
change in sales represented a clear indication of the Company
transformation from R&D to full commercialisation. Our products and
services have two important features, heavily regulated and for the
unmet clinical needs, both bearing strong social responsibilities. As
a public company, we recognise these social responsibilities and the
responsibility of financial returns to our shareholders.

We aim at becoming a global leader in regenerative medicine. Our
tissue engineered cornea product, “Acornea”, has been reported
by major international media including BBC, CBS etc, and attracted
global attentions. Our R&D programs including those conducted
in the CRMI Technology Centre at the University of Oxford resulted
in cutting edge technologies to provide pipeline products for the
Company. We seek opportunities for collaborations and expansion
in Africa, America, Europe and Far East to enhance our international
profile and to increase our market share. As the name indicates,
China Regenerative Medicine International is a regenerative medicine
company, mainly based in China but serving the international markets.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BRI

J Finally | would like to thank our friends, who helped CRMI in various %1% * RAZ U BHBUASE SN EHPEEFE
ways, our collaborators and partners, who joined us to bring our — Z&Z28) KM - AR EH MO ERTE LS
new products to the patients, and our employees in CRMI and its SEHNEGIEREREBEN  URPEBLEES
subsidiaries, without their contributions and dedication none of the REMERARIMET - e WK ER R K=

Bt BRI ATREENIS 5 KB RE ©

achievements was possible.

Professor Zhanfeng Cui, PhD, DSc, FRENng % i %i{ﬁt;hi Egc, FREng

17 July 2017

' ° China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2016 /2017



EFTRRAN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ' J

In this fiscal year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) made new strategic adjustments and reformation on the
top of continued strengthening of the four core businesses: tissue
engineering, cell, cosmetic and others, and medical equipment. The
Group:

° adjusted and optimized the organizational structure,
strengthened the building of operations management team,
changed its operations management concept of more
emphasis on sales and marketing rather than on research and
development (“R&D”), and enhanced marketing development
measures so as to further improve the Group’s profitability;

° streamlined and optimized the management process by
developing four control main lines such as operations
management, financial management, human resources
management and technical management, defined and
empowering business division management to raise the
operation effectiveness and efficiency of the Group, and
improving the level of management;

° upgraded its products in a comprehensive manner, introduced
new business sections, reasonably enhanced and deployed
the industrial layout, and strengthened its efforts on investment
and merges and acquisitions (“M&A”) in a bid to ensure a
sustainable development in the long run.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

. Adjusting the organizational structure of the Group
to optimize the management mode

In this fiscal year, the Group has made comprehensive and
optimized adjustments to the organizational structure by
transforming the original business unit management mode
to the business division management mode, which further
strengthened the management control and promotion efforts
on sales and marketing, and provided effective assurance for
improving the profitability of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

J OPERATIONS REVIEW (Cont’d)

l.

Il

Adjusting the organizational structure of the Group
to optimize the management mode (Cont’d)

The Group has established three business divisions, namely
Tissue Engineering & Pharmaceutical Division, Cosmetics
Division and Cell Division, to responsible for the comprehensive
operations management of tissue engineering and medical
equipment product lines, cosmetic product line, cell storage,
preparation and cell therapy product line respectively.

As such the Group has formed a operations management
hierarchy consisting of headquarters, business divisions and
subsidiaries. The headquarters is a management center, a
decision-making center and a capital center; the business
divisions are both management centers and operation centers;
and the subsidiaries are business centers and profit-making
centers.

Strengthening the building of an operations
management team to improve the team quality

In order to achieve the Group’s strategic adjustments and
reformation initiatives, the Board has strengthened the building
of an operations management team. In October 2016, the
Group set up a high-quality and experienced management team
by appointed a new chief executive officer and concurrently
absorbing senior management personnel in possession of a
wealth of executive management experience, cross-regional
and cross-cultural group management and control capabilities,
better market and brand management awareness into the
management teams at the Group’s headquarters, business
divisions and subsidiaries. Each of division and subsidiary had
set up a leadership team which adheres to centrally democratic
decision-making procedures, providing a talent guarantee for
the strategic adjustment and reform of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Cont’d)

.

Enhancing marketing development efforts to
improve business performance

The operation strategy of the Group before 2016 was focused
on technical R&D. Relying on the strong scientific research
capacity of the International Research Center of the Group
set up at Oxford University and extensive cooperation with
scientific research institutions at The University of Hong Kong
and Research Institute of Tsinghua University in Shenzhen
and through the unremitting endeavors made by the scientific
researchers, the Group has gained a series of pioneered
research achievements forerunning the industry in science and
technological innovation and established its leading enterprise
status in the industry of tissue engineering and regenerative
medicine.

The Group’s operation strategy for the second half of this fiscal
year was shifted to enhance sales and marketing development
measures so as to improve the Group’s business performance.
Effective sales distribution channel and service network system
has been established gradually and noticeable improvement in
sales and marketing performance of all product lines has been
achieved by the adjustment of more emphasis on sales and
market than on R&D, by expanding sales team of each product
line, by the reformulation of marketing strategy, brand strategy
and the sales incentive policy; and by the re-development and
enrichment of the marketing channel, which provided assurance
to achieve the operational target.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

J OPERATIONS REVIEW (Cont’d)

V.

Developing four management and control main
lines to improve management efficiency

In order to coordinate with the management mode of the
organisational structure of the business division and strengthen
the management and decision-making function of the Group’s
headquarters, the Group developed four management and
control main lines, namely the operation management line,
financial management line, human resources management line
and technical management line, by mobilising the management
enthusiasm of Group divisions and its subsidiaries through
reasonable authorization. The Group streamlined and completed
the management system and flowchart of the four management
and control main lines, well defined the management control
point, the responsible person and management requirements
of each Group division and subsidiary, specified the Group’s
performance appraisal system for the operating results of
each division and subsidiary, which further strengthened the
management fineness and promoted the market exploration
efforts. Through the implementation of the four management
and control main lines, the Group could have timely control
on the overall picture on operations and management of each
division and subsidiary; and according to the authorisations
and management requirements of the Group, divisions and
subsidiaries of the Group could make rapid progress in the
operation management work, thus forming an effective linkage
within the Group among each division and subsidiary from top
to bottom. With the effective coordination among these four
management and control main lines, the Group’s management
efficiency and working ability would be further improved.

Fully initiating product upgrades to optimise and
improve the industrial layout

With overall streamlining the Group’s existing tissue engineering
product line, cosmetic product line and cell product line, the
Group began to initiate the product upgrade strategy to achieve
the effective combination between product and market, product
and service, product and brand, single product and whole
industrial chain through the innovations of products, technology
and operations. Meanwhile, the Group further optimised and
improved the industrial layout with the establishment of the
Hospital Management Department and the Overseas Business
Division of the Group as well as the arrangement of relevant
business kicking off, thereby basically forming a whole industrial
chain layout, enhancing investment and M&A and thus creating
a long-term sustainable development path.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Cont’d)

V.

Fully initiating product upgrades to optimise and
improve the industrial layout (Cont’d)

At present, products and operations for each business line of
the Group are as follows:

1. Tissue engineering product line

The Group’s tissue engineering product line is comprised
of three subsidiaries in Xi'an, Shaanxi and Shenzhen. The
tissue engineering products include:

(1)

@

S

Tissue Engineered Skin with Living Human Cells —
ActivSkin®

ActivSkin®, being the first tissue-engineered skin
approved by China Food and Drug Administration,
is the only tissue-engineered skin containing living
cells in the PRC. It is mainly used for healing deep
2nd degree and 3rd degree burn and scald wounds.
It can relieve pains, shorten healing time and reduce
scars in treating burns and scalds.

Acellular Corneal Stroma — Acornea

Acornea is the world’s first bio-engineering cornea
that has completed clinical trials and has been
successfully launched to market, making China’s
leading position in regenerative medicine research of
corneal disease in the world. The total effective rate
of clinical trials of Acornea reached 94.44% with
the healing effect close to donated cornea. In 2016,
Acornea was reported by BBC as one of the five
major scientific and technological revolutions from
China, which make great contribution to the world.
Its academic status makes China seize the initiative
in the field of biomedical competition in the world.

Calcined Bovine Bone — Gegreen

Gegreen is a protein-detracted bone substitute
material for inducing natural bone regeneration,
which is the independently-developed material in
the PRC. It is made by extracting material from
epiphysis cancellous bone of bovine femur, and
then goes through the process of virus inactivation,
degreasing, protein detracting and low-temperature
calcination. It is extensively used for jawbone defect
restoration, particularly in dental implantation and
treatment of periodontal defects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

J OPERATIONS REVIEW (Cont’d)

V. Fully initiating product upgrades to optimise and
improve the industrial layout (Cont’d)

1.

Tissue engineering product line (Cont’d)

“)

()

©)

Acellular Anal Fistula Repair Stroma — Asiunin
Asiunin is applied to simple anal fistula disease
without going through fistulotomy operation which
is traditionally used to cure anal fistula in western
medicine. Fistulotomy operation has a chance to
harm the sphincter muscle and causes relapses.
It is believed that the relapse rate when using
Asiunin for simple anal fistula is comparatively lower,
bringing in revolutionary changes to anal fistula
treatment. It can completely reshape the perianal
tissue and protect the anal sphincter mechanism.
Through minimally invasive operation, it can speed
up the healing rate and shorten the hospitalization
period.

Oral Cavity Repair Membrane with Excellent
Regeneration Capacity — Megreen

Megreen, a new product developed by Shaanxi
Reshine Biotech Co. Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Group, is currently applying for registration.
Megreen is made from the bovine pericardium
tissue with collagen as the main component
through decellularization, virus inactivation and
other treatments, which retains a natural three-
dimensional structure. Megreen can be widely used
in the repair of oral cavity tissue with its advantages
of natural double-layer membrane structure,
superior mechanical performance and longer
degradation time.

Cell Sheet-Autologous Chondrocyte Implantation —
CS-ACI

CS-ACI is a cartilage repair technology based
on the world’s leading cell sheet preparative
technology. It is used for tissue repair and functional
reconstruction of damaged articular cartilage. As
the first 4th generation of autologous chondrocyte
treatment technology developed by China, CS-
ACI is used to produce transparent cartilage as a
substitute for exogenous material to avoid cell loss.
In addition, since suture is not necessary and it
takes shorter time in the operation, it has a broad
clinical prospect.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Cont’d)

V. Fully initiating product upgrades to optimise and
improve the industrial layout (Cont’d)

2,

Cosmetics product line

(1)

@

S

AMYbio Skincare series brands

By utilizing the derivatives resided during our
production processes of the tissue-engineered skin,
Shaanxi Aimiya Bio-Technology Company Limited,
a subsidiary of the Group principally engaged in
cosmetics, has successfully cultivated a pioneering
human-derived active cell growth factor, which
has been applied in skincare products. Series of
products have been launched and an agent system
has been established nationwide. Meanwhile, the
products have had access to hospitals and beauty
salons.

Skincare cosmetics brand — Ascara

The Group imports the original skincare cosmetics
brand - Ascara with a history of more than 40 years
from Switzerland. Ascara has various functions,
such as skin relieving, anti-aging, skin whitening,
anti-freckle and so on. It is a foreign high-end
skincare product line targeted at the mass market.
It has built an omni-channel sales network centering
DS and then radiating to CS, covering e-commerce
platforms and assisted by regional distributors.

CRMII PrincipleQ’skin

The Group decided to launch a skincare brand
“CRMI PrincipleQ’skin” to be sold via e-commerce
platforms. Relying on the core technology of the
Group and the International Research Institute of
Oxford University, the Group has designed two
series of skincare products with EGF extracted from
stem cell culture medium as the core raw material.
At present, the project has been initiated and a team
has been basically formed. The design for relevant
products is under progress. It was expected that
the products will be launched to market in mid-
2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G wm N NT

J OPERATIONS REVIEW (Cont'd) £ ERE (1K)
V. Fully initiating product upgrades to optimise and V. 2EMEERHR EBILTESEF

improve the industrial layout (Cont’d) fijem (&

3. Cell storage, preparation and therapy product line 3 #HEFEE  REREREDR
Currently, the Group has established five cell storage, REBBRIERET - TS &M
preparation and therapy centers in Tianjin, Suzhou W IEHRABMNTAEE  DBES
(Jiangsu Province), Changzhou (Jiangsu Province) and T {E 4B AR A7 B B D - DA
Hong Kong to make a good planning layout serving the 0 A5 £ [ A 75 2 TR AR M 3 75 19 45 B4
cell business globally. 5
(1) Tianjin Weikai (1) KZEEILA]

The Group’s subsidiary XK2EFNEMTEBR AEBFBREFINEMIRER
A@] (Tianjin Weikai Bioeng Ltd*) focuses on the RAFIEFR AT ERE - A
R&D and applications of cell culture equipment MEMMAEMER - WiREHAE
and cell products, as well as providing cell-related HENBEMRE - 8 FHE&
outsourcing technical services. The self-developed #)3DFlo AR &= & - A A B &)
3DFlo cell culture instrument ensured the high- b~ EEEF RIS B RN
quality cell reproduction and established an in BRTREEMMAPENE B
vitro model to simulate in-vivo physical condition TR N AR AR A BB IME
by utilizing automated continuous perfusion cell Ao FF - REFIAFEESP
culture technology. Meanwhile, Tianjin Weikai has BB/t 4 P <5 B R SNSHRR B P 3R
established a close cooperation relationship with ST EYEVERIER -

Institute of Chemical Physics, Chinese Academy of
Sciences and other scientific research institutes at
home and abroad.

(2)  AK Suzhou 2) B (FHN) L E]

In 2016, the Group’s subsidiary B & (FM )4 REBEMBR (&RIN) £WiL
YR AR A G (AK (Suzhou) Biomedical Ltd?) MAERAR  —E—RNFEET
expanded the Phase Il Cell Preparation Center. It ZHRAEREER L EFABAS
provides high standards of service and equipment R 2 B B R I A B N TR T A
for cell clinical research, testing and applications A B 5 SR8 B ARG R IE
leveraging on the Oxford R&D team’s unique cell AEBRAERRESEERS KR
processing technology and reagent formula. Its B EOEeEARERS
core technologies include human cell separation, Bt 4iME - BE B BIEA
purification, cultivation, amplification, storage and B ARk EaB AR
transportation, as well as the development and SRR SR AEEE ©

production of automated closed cell bioreactors.

# for identification only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ' J

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Cont’d)

V. Fully initiating product upgrades to optimise and
improve the industrial layout (Cont’d)

3. Cell storage, preparation and therapy product line
(Cont’d)

(3)  Changzhou branch company, Jiangsu Province

In October 2016, the Group started to build a Cell
Storage and Preparation Center in Changzhou,
Jiangsu Province. The center has been identified
as the technology transformation unit of
Engineering Technology Research Center for
Tumor Immunotherapy of Jiangsu Province, mainly
responsible for industrial transformation and clinical
applications of the R&D results achieved by the
center. The scope of business mainly covers cellular
therapy, cell storage, genetic testing, biological
agents manufacturing. The center is scheduled to
be completed by the end of 2017.

(4)  Hong Kong International Regenerative Centre

The Hong Kong International Regenerative Centre
(“HKIRC”), being the first large-scale comprehensive
health care base for precision medicine in Hong
Kong, was established by the Group at the Miramar
Center in Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong. In possession
of precise medical technology, combining with
precise physical examination and genetic testing,
HKIRC aims to provide precise healthcare to meet
the physical and mental needs from customers,
including precise cellular therapy and precise
medical beauty.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G wm N NT

EBERE ()

V- ZEREBEBHR BIlLTEER
fhjm (&

J OPERATIONS REVIEW (Cont’d)

V. Fully initiating product upgrades to optimise and
improve the industrial layout (Cont’d)

3. Cell storage, preparation and therapy product line 3 HFEFEE  RERERERR (H)
(Cont’d)
(5)  BioCell Technology Limited (“BioCell”) (6) BERLEYFHERE ([ELE])

Our China Stem Cell Clinical Applications Centre (the
“Centre”), located at Phase 3 of Hong Kong Science
Park in Shatin, has started construction. Covering
an area of 2,000 square meters, the Center is
designed in accordance with international standards
and is equipped with advanced equipment and
facilities in high specifications. Stem cell clinical
application facilities meet the clean room standards
from EMA, FDA, CFDA, TGA and GMP PIC/S. As
Asia’s first international cell and gene preparation
center, the Centre provides cell preparation
processes for international biotechnology
companies, international pharmaceutical plants,
clinical application institutions and cell libraries in
line with international and domestic cell preparation
quality standards, as well as technology platforms
for clinical application transformation for the
improvement and development of the cellular
therapy in the future. We will conduct pre-installation
regulatory reviews in accordance with the GMP
and PIC/S specifications from the Hong Kong
Department of Health. The Centre has established
close cooperative relationship with relevant
research departments and academics, including
The University of Hong Kong and The University
of Oxford, laying a solid foundation for the clinical
transformation and industrialization of stem cell and
cellular therapy technology and for cell preparation
platforms in Hong Kong and other Asian regions.
Since the construction work and installation and
commissioning of equipment have been completed,
the Centre has been officially put into operation in
June 2017.

AEBEMAY HNEEEIEE
= HB G 0 5 A% R [ o4 4 B B R B
Bt (TR o P OMb i
2,000 F 75K - iZREIRIRLE R
HREERHEREENSREE
SKERGEE - B 4HMEER IR FE B R e
% A EMA - FDA - CFDA * TGA
FMGMP PIC/SIZ % = /12 % -
PR A 22 )1 B 5R 1 [7) B BR A 4 e 6l
ERSED D - b mBEEA
PR3 - BRRSER - BRIRTE
Ri#iE  ARESREFEBE
HEANARREESIRENT
2R U REEIRERERE
firEa  ARKEM B &AMRE
FEHRERER - BMBIRES
7B BT 4 E W GMP K& PIC/S 8 &8
EITLRRAEESESE - 2P OB
HMBEBRE - F2RBEFEH
REPFIMBEELBERNE EH
& BB AR RE R TM
BRElREEL  ABEBUR
BAE MR SR AR R E T &
DEERIFNER - ZHPLET
REEREEREAR  BERZ
T—+FENANEREAES -

' e China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2016 /2017



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G wm N NT

EBERE ()

V- ZEREBEBHR BIlLTEER
fhjm (&

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Cont’d)

V. Fully initiating product upgrades to optimise and
improve the industrial layout (Cont’d)

4. Medical equipment 4. BERE
The Group’s subsidiary, 4 E&&E 28 A R 2 a (Zhongsheng REBHRB AR EEESMERA
Medical Equipment Trading Company Limited") A ([PEBESRW] ) RPEBEREE
(“Zhongsheng Medical Equipment”), is engaged in the BEEERH NAFE PEEZS
trading of medical equipment in the PRC. During the MRAELZEERPENHEE KD
year, Zhongsheng Medical Equipment made solid step HEB T HEBL TREN— - [Fi
in expanding and strengthening its sales and distribution EEREAFHEARILER -
network in the PRC, which resulted in significant increase
in sales over the prior year.

5.  Hospital administration division of the Group 5. FEEELEEDS
In order to guarantee the rational layout of tissue BTHMITEBMEZTRE MBEEEXS
engineering and cell business and expand channels, the BihRRkinRERE AUFEEBE
hospital administration division was set up under the HEBITERS  AESERNIEE
Group headquarters in this fiscal year, responsible for ERNEERENEREIE =%
the management of future investments in hospitals and —REL¥FREEEN T HEEL
related channels of the Group. In the first half of 2016, the WEIBREERELITR - BEEH#150
Group stationed in Hainan Boao Lecheng International Mt ARERGE T EERE - K
Medical Tourism Pilot Zone and was granted 150 acres SEEFMALTENBRED - #—
of land for the construction of a comprehensive medical FEENIREEEERNEE - B
institution. By leveraging on the advantages of the policy AIEERESEE AR DEARER
of the pilot zone, the Group will further enrich and expand FTPEER o
its business lines and channels. At present, the Hospital
Administration Division in Hainan is under planning and
design.

6. Overseas business division of the Group 6 EEHEIEXED
With the R&D transformation efforts made over the past REBRKI7FR - KRR
17 years since establishment, the Group has basically HILEER  BRIEEBRBEAD KGR

established the layout of the whole industry chain in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. In order to achieve the
strategic requirements of the Board, the Group set up
the overseas business division in this fiscal year to further
expand its overseas markets, so as to identify suitable
business opportunities for overseas investment and M&A
and implement the layout of overseas markets of the
Group.

* for identification only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

J OPERATIONS REVIEW (Cont’d)

V. Fully initiating product upgrades to optimise and
improve the industrial layout (Cont’d)

6. Overseas business division of the Group (Cont’d)

Having completed the stationing in the United States, the
United Kingdom and Japan and preliminarily established a
management and operation team respectively, the Group
is seeking opportunities for overseas expansion.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

BioCell is a recognized contract manufacturer in the Asia Pacific
region with GMP contract manufacturing ability for cell therapy under
GMP PIC/S, FDA, CFDA, TGA, EMA, FACT and AABB standards.
BioCell also provides “point-to-point” service including oversight and
management of cord blood and cord collection through therapies of
cell processing, cryopreservation and cell delivery. We support the
entire product lifecycle from initial research to process optimisation
through clinical trial manufacturing and commercial supply. Our
experience spans all major cell families including stem cells and
immune cells and key applications from gene and immunotherapies
to cell therapies and regenerative medicine. Our partnership with The
University of Hong Kong affiliated Queen Mary Hospital, The Chinese
University of Hong Kong affiliated Prince of Wales Hospital, and other
collaborators with cutting-edge technologies enable us to bring deep
research, clinical and process expertise to all clients efficiently. Our
brand new production facilities at Hong Kong Science Park Phase |l
comprise of 3 PIC/S Grade B cleanrooms surrounded by Grade C
area, as well as 3 Grade D cleanrooms and quality control laboratories
with 8 isolators to offer a gateway to transform cell manufacturing into
clinical application under a coordinated quality system. It is our honor
to cooperate with the world’s leading stem cell companies on the
most currently innovative and transformational therapies in medical
field.

As a high-end anti-aging and health management service company,
HKIRC provides its high-end clients with comprehensive, precise and
customized anti-aging aesthetic services focusing on internationally
advanced cell regeneration diagnosis and treatment, in combination
with precise medical examination, gene testing, medical cosmetology,
preventive medicine, functional medicine, traditional Chinese
medicine, naturopathy, etc.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

BUSINESS OUTLOOK (Cont’d)

Boasting famous regenerative medicine scientists and anti-aging
experts in Hong Kong and the world, HKIRC has established a long-
term strategic partnership with several large hospitals, scientific
research institutions, famous laboratories and anti-aging institutions in
Europe, North America and Hong Kong, and continuously developed
modern sophisticated and precise biomedical technology. It strives to
provide precise and integrated medical solutions for clients by various
means including traditional naturopathy.

Main services include:

° Precise biological anti-aging treatment: including cell
regeneration therapy and hormone replacement therapy;

° Precise health examination: including function examination,
biochemical detection of blood and urine, gene testing, and
comprehensive early screening of cancers;

° Precise medical cosmetology: including customised skin care,
international energy therapy for medical cosmetology, and
micro-plastic surgery, etc;

° Specialized dental care: including tooth implantation, tooth
whitening, etc.

FUTURE PROSPECT

The Group will further deepen and refine the management policy,
and continue to enhance the level of corporate operation and
management through the four management and control main lines.
The Group will continue to strengthen the sales and marketing
efforts in respect of tissue engineering, cell, cosmetic and others,
and medical equipment for enhancing the operational results of each
business chain. The Group will strive to maintain its leading position
in tissue engineering, regenerative medicine and related industries by
leveraging CRMI Technology Centre at the University of Oxford and
the long-term cooperation with the research institutes including The
University of Hong Kong and Tsinghua University, and other global
well-known industry experts. Meanwhile, the Group is dedicated
to the investments and M&A business in the whole industry chain
by identifying suitable business opportunities from domestic and
overseas markets to promote the sustainable and sound development
of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Result

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 30 April 2017 was
approximately HK$357.0 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$329.2 million, or 1,184.2%, compared to the
Group’s revenue of approximately HK$27.8 million for last year.
The overall increase in revenue was attributable to an increase in
revenue across different segments, including tissue engineering, cell,
cosmetics and others and medical equipment. Gross profit increased
by 651.4% to approximately HK$137.5 million by year which is in
accordance with an increase in revenue.

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$126.3 million
from sales of tissue engineering products for the year ended 30 April
2017, representing an increase of 2,077.6% from last year which
is mainly attributable to the Group has made a significant effort to
expand distribution channel to improve sales (2016: HK$5.8 million).

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$2.7 million from
provision of cell therapy service and sales of cell related medical
equipment for the year ended 30 April 2017, representing an increase
of 107.7% from last year (2016: HK$1.3 million).

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$44.9 million
from sales of cosmetic, healthcare and other products for the year
ended 30 April 2017, representing an increase of 122.3% from last
year (year ended 30 April 2016: HK$20.2 million). /& R4k
BFRAF] (Shanghai Hesidi Cosmetics Company Limited®) (“Shanghai
Hesidi”) and & 91| i 44 % 4 ¥ £ £ B R 2 7] (Shenzhen Hesidi Bio-
Technology Company Limited®) (“Shenzhen Hesidi”, together with
Shanghai Hesidi, the “Hesidi Group”), the subsidiaries of the Group,
are primarily engaged in sales and distribution of cosmetics and
others related products (“Products”).

During the period between 30 May 2017 and 6 June 2017, the Hesidi
Group received notices requesting the return of some of the Products
(the “Products Return”) from the customers in the aggregate value
of approximately HK$52,580,000 (with corresponding cost of sales
amounted to HK$30,556,000) claiming difficulties in selling the
Products due to changes in market conditions in the PRC.

* for identification only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Result (Cont’d)

Following negotiations between the management of the Hesidi Group
and the customers, it is decided to accept the Products Return from
the customers for the purpose of maintaining a long-term business
relationship. The management of the Hesidi Group agreed with the
Supplier to arrange for the return of such Products. Details of the
Products Return were contained in the Company’s announcement
dated 23 June 2017.

Sales of medical equipment for the year ended 30 April 2017 was
approximately HK$183.1 million, representing an increase of 458
times from last year (2016: HK$0.4 million) because the Group has
made significant effort to establish distribution channels to enhance
sales.

During the year under review, the Group incurred a loss attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$184.5 million, as
compared to a loss of approximately HK$190.9 million for last year.
Loss for the Group slightly decreased from last year which is mainly
attributable to the significant increase in gross profit from increase
in sales of our owned products but being offset by a reduction of
interest income from providing financial assistance to independent
third parties as the Group has allocated more resources on its core
business together with the increase in staff costs and advertising
expenses for promoting our products to the market. The loss per
share attributable to the owners of the Company for the year ended
30 April 2017 was HK1.049 cents (2016: HK1.103 cents).

The Group’s total operating expenses for the year ended 30 April
2017 was approximately HK$389.3 million, representing an increase
of 28.4% as compared to last year. The expenses mainly consisted
of (i) the amortisation of intangible assets of approximately HK$41.0
million (2016: HK$38.6 million); (i) research and development costs
of HK$56.0 million (2016: HK$58.7 million); (iii) staff cost of HK$131.7
million (2016: HK$95.1 million); and (iv) advertising, marketing and
promotion expenses of HK$38.2 million (2016: HK$14.3 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Net Assets

Net assets of the Group amounted to approximately HK$1,907.9
million as at 30 April 2017, as compared to approximately
HK$2,118.2 million as at 30 April 2016, representing a decrease of
9.9% which was mainly attributable to the loss incurred for the year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at 30 April 2017, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$571.7 million (2016: HK$1,300.8 million). The
decrease in cash and cash equivalent of approximately HK$729.1
million was mainly due to (i) increase in pledged bank deposits, (i)
purchase of property, plant and equipment; (i) purchase of financial
assets; and (iv) increase in prepayments and deposits in relation to
operating activities.

As at 30 April 2017, the bank borrowings of approximately HK$754.0
million (2016: HK$542.6 million) were secured by property, plant and
equipment, land use rights and pledged bank deposits.

Working Capital and Gearing Ratio

As at 30 April 2017, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$1,017.1 million (2016: HK$1,994.5 million), while its current
liabilities stood at approximately HK$176.3 million (2016: HK$692.8
million), representing a net current asset position with a working
capital ratio (current assets to current liabilities) of 5.77 (2016: 2.88).

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 30 April 2017, calculated as total
bank borrowings to total equity was 0.40 (2016: 0.26).

As at 30 April 2017, the Group’s aggregate balance of cash and
cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits far exceeded its bank
borrowings. Given such net cash position, the gearing ratio of the
Group would not be applicable if calculated as net debt to equity.

Capital Structure

During the year ended 30 April 2017, the issued shares of
the Company were reduced from 17,592,180,000 shares to
17,585,790,000 shares as a result of cancellation of repurchased
share during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The Directors
consider the risk of foreign exchange exposure of the Group is
manageable. The management will continue to monitor the foreign
exchange exposure of the Group and is prepared to take prudent
measures such as hedging when appropriate actions are required.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

On 1 November 2016, PR A ¥R B R A 7 (Shaanxi Reshine
Biotech Co. Ltd.#) (“Shaanxi Reshine”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
SlEERERE (X)) BR A A (Ding Feng Hospital Management
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.) in relation to the acquisition of debt receivables
and the associated security package of % Il 8 ¥k & F (Shenzhen
Longzhu Hospital*) at a consideration of RMB520,000,000 (the
“Longzhu Acquisition”). The Group considered it to be an investment
for the development of its product distribution channels in the future.

On 22 November 2016, Shaanxi Reshine entered into the sale and
purchase agreement with #&3IT& IEERIEEBR AT (Shenzhen
He Zheng Hui Yuan Investment Co. Ltd.*) (“Shenzhen He Zheng”)
and Shenzhen Longzhu Hospital in relation to the disposal of debt
receivables and the associated security package of Shenzhen
Longzhu Hospital at a consideration of RMB530,000,000. On the
same date, Shaanxi Reshine and Shenzhen He Zheng also entered
into the framework agreements in which, the Group has a right
to occupy an area of 3,000 square meters at Shenzhen Longzhu
Hospital and an area of 5,000 square meters at Luohu District,
Shenzhen for a rent-free period of 8 years, to establish its product
distribution channels. The Group considered it as an opportunity of
asset realization and profit-taking, and at the same time, the Group
still has opportunities to develop its product distribution channels by
setting up a specialty hospital in the future.

Details of Longzhu Acquisition, Longzhu Disposal and Framework

Agreements were disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated
1 November 2016 and 22 November 2016.

# for identification only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements

Collectively, the exclusive business cooperation agreement, the
exclusive option agreement, the equity pledge agreement, the
power of attorney and the consent letter of spouse, entered into
among () JT&EEZAEYEHEBR AR (Jiangsu Yi Ze Biotechnology
Company Limited*) (“Jiangsu Yi Ze”), a company established in the
PRC, a wholly owned subsidiary of SCI Therapeutics Limited, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong under limited liabilities, being
owned as to (a) 80% by CRMI Medical Bio-Tech Limited, formerly
known as Enlighten On Enterprise Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and (b) 20% by Mr. Shi Yufang
respectively as at the date of this report), (i) L& 2L R
BIRAF (Jiangsu Ding Xuan Biotechnology Company Limited?)
(“Jiangsu Ding Xuan”), a limited liability company established in the
PRC to engage in the business of providing services and equipment
for human cell and stem cell related clinical applications in the PRC,
including but not limited to the R&D on human stem cell technologies
and equipment for human stem cell processing and for trading of its
related equipment), the then (iii) registered shareholders of Jiangsu
Ding Xuan and their spouses (if any).

* for identification only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Particulars and main business of the operating entity

At the date of this report, Jiangsu Ding Xuan is currently owned
by Ms. Xu Jie as to 50% and Mr. Dai Lifeng as to 50% (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders”).
Jiangsu Ding Xuan is controlled by the Group through Jiangsu Yi Ze
by way of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements pursuant to
which Jiangsu Yi Ze controls Jiangsu Ding Xuan.

Jiangsu Ding Xuan is established to engage in the business of
providing services and equipment for human cell and stem cell related
clinical applications in the PRC, including but not limited to the R&D
on human stem cell technologies and equipment for human stem cell
processing and for trading of its related equipment.

Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements
(a) Irrevocable power of attorney

Parties:
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders
Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be
valid until the contracts under Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements including their respective supplemental
agreements (“Jiangsu Ding Xuan Main Obligations”) have been
terminated or discharged in full.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

J CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Irrevocable power of attorney (Cont’d)

Main Subject:

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders shall, among other things,
irrevocably authorise Jiangsu Yi Ze and its respective
successors to act on their behalf on all matters in relation to
their equity interests in Jiangsu Ding Xuan, including attending
shareholders’ meeting, signing minutes of shareholders’ meeting
and shareholders’ resolutions, exercising their full shareholder’s
rights under the articles of association of Jiangsu Ding Xuan
and applicable PRC laws and regulations, including but not
limited to shareholders’ voting right, appointment of the legal
representative, director, supervisor and senior management
of Jiangsu Ding Xuan, filing documents with the relevant
governmental authorities or regulatory bodies, acquisition and
disposition of the equity interest of Jiangsu Ding Xuan held by
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders or making decision on the
liquidation of Jiangsu Ding Xuan and the formulation of the
profit sharing plans of Jiangsu Ding Xuan, provided that the
exercise of the power(s) of attorney shall not cause breach to
the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements.

Exclusive business cooperation agreement

Parties:
(i) Jiangsu Vi Ze
(i) Jiangsu Ding Xuan

Terms:

The exclusive business cooperation agreement commences
from 1 August 2016 and is effective perpetually, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with its terms.

Main Subject:

Jiangsu Ding Xuan should appoint Jiangsu Yi Ze as exclusive
service provider for its business operations, including but
not limited to, technical R&D, technical support, technical
consultation, technical training and other management and
corporate consultation services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements (Cont’d)

(c)

Exclusive option agreement

Parties:

(i) Jiangsu Vi Ze

(i) Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders
(i) Jiangsu Ding Xuan

Terms:

The exclusive option agreement commences from 1 August
2016 and is effective until all the shares of Jiangsu Ding Xuan
have been transferred from the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders
to Jiangsu Yi Ze and/or any person(s) designated by Jiangsu Vi
Ze.

Main Subject:

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders and Jiangsu Ding Xuan
irrevocably agreed, to the extent permitted under the laws of
the PRC, to transfer to Jiangsu Yi Ze and/or any person(s)
designated by Jiangsu Yi Ze at any time and from time to time,
all or part of their equity interests in Jiangsu Ding Xuan, or all or
part of the assets of Jiangsu Ding Xuan.

Jiangsu Yi Ze may exercise its rights under the paragraph above
at any time and in any manner at its sole discretion as permitted
under the laws of the PRC. The exercise price of each of the
rights under the paragraph above shall be the lowest price
permitted under the laws of the PRC, subject to any other price
as required by the PRC government authorities. Upon Jiangsu
Ding Xuan and/or Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders receive(s)
the said consideration, they unconditionally transfer the said
consideration to Jiangsu Yi Ze or any person(s) designated by
Jiangsu Vi Ze.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

J CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Exclusive option agreement (Cont’d)

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders and Jiangsu Ding Xuan jointly
and/ or severally undertake that, among other things, without
having obtained the prior written consent from Jiangsu Yi Ze,
they will not (i) amend the articles of association of Jiangsu
Ding Xuan; (i) increase or decrease the registered capital of
Jiangsu Ding Xuan; (iii) dispose of, transfer, mortgage, create
any security interest or third party rights in its equity interests
in Jiangsu Ding Xuan; (iv) appoint any director(s) or executive
director(s) of Jiangsu Ding Xuan; and (v) pay dividends in any
manners. Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders further undertake
that, without having obtained the written consent from Jiangsu
Yi Ze, they and their respective related persons will not engage
in any business which is in competition with the businesses of
Jiangsu Ding Xuan.

Equity pledge agreement

Parties:

(i) Jiangsu Vi Ze

(i) Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders
(i) Jiangsu Ding Xuan

Terms:

Effective from the registration of the pledged equity interests
under the equity pledge agreement at the relevant PRC
administration for industry and commerce until all the
obligations of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders and Jiangsu
Ding Xuan (including but not limited to Jiangsu Ding Xuan Main
Obligations) are satisfied or discharged in full. The registration of
the pledged equity interests under the equity pledge agreement
at the relevant PRC administration for industry and commerce
has been completed.

Main Subject:

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders pledged all equity interests
in Jiangsu Ding Xuan legally held by Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Shareholders (including present or future registered capital and
their rights and benefits, whether through increase of capital
and/or transfer of equity interest) to Jiangsu Yi Ze.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements (Cont’d)

(e)

Consent letters of spouse

Parties:
The spouses of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders
Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be valid
until the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Main Obligations are satisfied or
discharged in full.

Main Subject:

The spouses of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders unconditionally
agreed to the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements.

The spouses of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders undertake
and declare that the equity respectively owned by Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Shareholders in Jiangsu Ding Xuan contemplated on
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements shall be Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Shareholders’ personal property respectively; and
further, the said spouses undertake that they shall not take any
act that causes or will cause any conflict and/or impediment to
the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Reason for using the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and the significance to the Group

As advised by the legal adviser of the Company, the principal
business of Jiangsu Ding Xuan involves technology for human stem
cell research & development and applications which is regarded as
prohibited business for foreign entity under the PRC Law. As such,
the Group cannot acquire the equity interest in Jiangsu Ding Xuan
at that time. Having regard to such foreign investment restrictions,
the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements were designed to
provide Jiangsu Yi Ze and, thus the Group, with effective control over
the financial and operational policies of Jiangsu Ding Xuan and (to the
extent permitted by PRC laws and regulations) the right to acquire the
equity interest in Jiangsu Ding Xuan.

Revenue and assets subject to the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Contractual Arrangements
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The revenue, net loss and total assets subject to the Jiangsu Ding  /LER X E A% B 2 Wik - B 1R RARAEHT]
Xuan Contractual Arrangements are set out as follows: LI

Year ended
30 April 2017
BE-_Z—+tF
MA=+HLEFE
(HK$°000)
(F&T)
Revenue Wz -
Net loss FEE 2,876
Total assets EEE 9.281

For the year ended 30 April 2017, the revenue and net loss subject
to Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements amounted to nil
and approximately 1.44% of the revenue and net loss of the Group
respectively. As at 30 April 2017, the total assets subject to Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately
0.32% of the total assets of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W M

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Material changes

Save as disclosed in this report, there has not been any material
changes in Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

Unwinding of Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements

Up to the date of this report, there has not been any unwinding of any
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements, nor has there been any
failure to unwind any Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements
when the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Contractual Arrangements are removed.

Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Contractual Arrangements and actions taken by the
Company to mitigate the risks

The Group does not have any direct equity ownership in Jiangsu
Ding Xuan and has relied on the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements, as the case may be, to control, operate, and be
entitled to the economic benefits and risks arising from the respective
businesses of Jiangsu Ding Xuan in the PRC. However, there are risks
involved with the operations of Jiangsu Yi Ze under the Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Contractual Arrangements, as the case may be.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G wm N NT

J CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) YEAC )
Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan BT HREZ AT H BB EfERAL ]

Contractual Arrangements and actions taken by the Bz [FREfR.2 1B (1)

Company to mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

There is no assurance that the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Contractual Arrangements could comply with future
changes in the regulatory requirements in the PRC and
the PRC government may determine that the Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements do not comply with
applicable regulations

Current PRC laws and regulations prohibit foreign ownership of
companies engage in the businesses concerning technology
for research & development and applications of human stem
cells, gene diagnose and therapy. The businesses of Jiangsu
Ding Xuan are regarded as design and manufacturing of
preclinical cell and stem cell related equipment which involves
in technology for human stem cell research & development
and applications, in addition to providing contract research
services. The Company is a company incorporated under the
laws of the Cayman Islands. Jiangsu Yi Ze may not engage
in the businesses concerning technology for human stem cell
research & development and applications in the PRC under
current PRC laws. As a result, the Group will have to conduct
the business of Jiangsu Ding Xuan in the PRC through the
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements.

Despite the fact that there is no indication that the Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Contractual Arrangements will be interfered or objected
by any PRC regulatory authorities, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, there is a possibility that the Ministry of Commerce
and other competent authorities may have different opinions
on the interpretation of the relevant regulations and would not
agree that the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements
comply with the current PRC laws, regulations or rules or those
that may be adopted in future, and the authorities may deny
the validity, effectiveness and enforceability of the Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Contractual Arrangements.

If the authorities may deny the validity, effectiveness and
enforceability of any of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements, it could have a material adverse impact on
the Group’s businesses, financial condition and results of
operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Contractual Arrangements and actions taken by the

BHZH (&)

BT REZENZH B2 ERR AL A
REL 2 FE R 2 75t (7))

Company to mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(i)

The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements
may not be as effective in providing control over and
entitlement to the economic interests in the Project
Company (namely “Jiangsu Ding Xuan as the case may
be”) as direct ownership

The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements may not
be as effective in providing the Group with control over and
entitlement to the economic interests in the Project Company
as direct ownership. If Jiangsu Yi Ze had direct ownership of
Jiangsu Ding Xuan, Jiangsu Yi Ze would be able to directly
exercise its rights as a shareholder to effect changes in the
board of directors of Jiangsu Ding Xuan. However, under the
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements, Jiangsu Yi Ze
can only look to and rely on Jiangsu Ding Xuan and the Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Shareholders to perform their contractual obligations
under the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements such
that Jiangsu Yi Ze can exercise effective control over Jiangsu
Ding Xuan. The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders may not act
in the best interests of Jiangsu Ding Xuan or may not perform
its/their obligations under the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements, and in that case, Jiangsu Yi Ze may replace the
Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders by its other nominees pursuant
to the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements. However,
if any dispute relating to the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements remains unresolved, Jiangsu Yi Ze will have to
enforce its rights under the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements and seek to interpret the terms of the Jiangsu
Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements in accordance with the
PRC laws and will be subject to uncertainties in the PRC legal
system.

(ii)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

J CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Contractual Arrangements and actions taken by the
Company to mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(i)

(iii)

(Cont’d)

Since the legal environment in the PRC is different from that
in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions, the uncertainties in the
PRC legal system could limit the ability of the Group to enforce
the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements. There is no
assurance that such arbitration result will be in favour of the
Group and/or that there will not be any difficulties in enforcing
any arbitral awards granted, including specific performance or
injunctive relief and claiming damages by the Group. As the
Group may not be able to obtain sufficient remedies in a timely
manner, its ability to exert effective control over Jiangsu Ding
Xuan and the conduct of the businesses concerning technology
for human stem cell research & development and applications
could be materially and adversely affected, and may disrupt the
business of the Group and have a material adverse impact on
Group’s business, prospects and results of operation.

Potential conflicts of interest among Jiangsu Yi Ze,
Jiangsu Ding Xuan, the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders
may exist

Jiangsu Yi Ze shall rely on the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements to exercise control over and to draw the
economic benefits from Jiangsu Ding Xuan. Jiangsu Yi Ze may
not be able to provide sufficient incentives to the Jiangsu Ding
Xuan Shareholders for the purpose of encouraging them to
act in the best interests of Jiangsu Yi Ze, other than stipulating
the relevant obligations in the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements. The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders may
breach the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements in
the event of conflicts of interest or deterioration of its/their
relationship with Jiangsu Yi Ze, the results of which may have a
material adverse impact on Jiangsu Yi Ze’s business, prospects
and results of operation.
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(ii)

(iii)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Contractual Arrangements and actions taken by the
Company to mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

(Cont’d)

It is not assured that if conflicts arise, the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Shareholders will act in the best interests of Jiangsu Yi Ze or
that the conflicts will be resolved in favour of Jiangsu Yi Ze. If
any of the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Shareholders fails to perform its
obligations under the respective Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual
Arrangements, Jiangsu Yi Ze may have to rely on legal remedies
under the PRC laws through legal proceedings, which may be
expensive, time-consuming and disruptive to Jiangsu Yi Ze’s
operations and will be subject to uncertainties as stated above.

The Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements may
be subject to scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and
additional tax may be imposed

Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements may be subject
to scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax may be
imposed on the Jiangsu Yi Ze, as the case may be. Jiangsu Yi
Ze, as the case may be, may face adverse tax consequences
if the PRC tax authorities determine that the Jiangsu Ding Xuan
Contractual Arrangements were not entered into based on
arm’s length negotiations. If the PRC tax authorities determine
that the Jiangsu Ding Xuan Contractual Arrangements were
not entered into on an arm’s length basis, they may adjust the
income and expenses of Jiangsu Yi Ze, as the case may be, for
the PRC tax purposes, which could result in higher tax liabilities
on Jiangsu Yi Ze, as the case may be.

The operation results of Jiangsu Yi Ze, as the case may be,
may be materially and adversely affected if the tax liabilities of
Jiangsu Yi Ze, Jiangsu Ding Xuan increase significantly or if they
are required to pay interest on late payments.
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(iv)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G wm N NT

J CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) YEAC )
Risks associated with the Jiangsu Ding Xuan BT HREZ AT H BB EfERAL ]

Contractual Arrangements and actions taken by the Bz [FREfR.2 1B (1)

Company to mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(v)

Ability to acquire the entire equity interests in or assets
of the Project Company

Jiangsu Yi Ze’s ability to acquire the entire equity interests
in or assets of Jiangsu Ding Xuan may be subject to various
limitations and substantial costs. In case Jiangsu Yi Ze
exercises its options to acquire all or part of the equity interests
and/or assets of Jiangsu Ding Xuan under the relevant exclusive
option agreement, the acquisition of the entire equity interests
in or the assets of Jiangsu Ding Xuan may only be conducted
to the extent as permitted by the applicable PRC laws and will
be subject to necessary approvals and relevant procedures
under applicable PRC laws. In addition, the abovementioned
acquisitions may be subject to a minimum price limitation (such
as an appraised value for the entire equity interests in or all
assets of Jiangsu Ding Xuan) or other limitations as imposed
by applicable PRC laws. Further, a substantial amount of other
costs (if any), expenses and time may be involved in transferring
the ownership of Jiangsu Ding Xuan, which may have a material
adverse impact on Jiangsu Yi Ze'’s businesses, prospects and
results of operation.

v)

WA N AR ENEEZEEL

THRBEZWE IHSZZ2HMEENEEL
BE ) FIRETE B Z AR B R KERUAR o fi)T &%
PROEIR B A BB R BB A M W ek 1T (£ L B AR
AWEE T #5822 2 3Pk B IR M Ko, B
EWBIHSZZ MR EXEEEAR
ERPBEDERERFZBERTET  YAXE
R BDERIE T 2 BB MARRIZE FFATAR
PR o N - bW BB R REZA R E A R BDAR
Moz AR BRI (FIaT 8RRz 2
ERMBEEZGER) SHEMESA
IR - BN BREIEHREZEAEA LS
RREEMAR (NF)  BEAKRERE  H
AIREEITRBIZZ X5 - IR MEEREAE
REATMFE -

' @ China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2016 /2017



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements

In April and August 2015, the Group completed the respective
acquisitions of Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou through contractual
arrangements. Save as disclosed in this report, there have been no
changes to such Contractual Arrangements since the respective
completion dates.

Collectively, the exclusive business cooperation agreement, the
exclusive option agreement, the equity pledge agreement, the power
of attorney and the consent letter of spouse, entered into among (i)
AK Subsidiary (#R/N &84 W6 R RSB R & £ 7 (Suzhou Bo
Kai Biomedical Consultation Service Ltd.#)), a company established
in the PRC, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Frame Sharp
Limited (a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, being
owned as to (a) 70% by CRMI Medical Bio-Tech Limited (“CRMI
Medical”), formerly known as Enlighten On Enterprise Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and (b) 30% by
Remed Tiger Limited (“Remed Tiger”), a company incorporated in
the Republic of Seychelles, being owned as to 100% by Mr. Zhang
Xumao) respectively as at the date of this report), (i) AK Suzhou (£
(BN PR AR A E (AK (Suzhou) Biomedical Ltd.#), a limited
liability company established in the PRC to engage in the business of
providing services and equipment for human cell and stem cell related
clinical applications in the PRC, including but not limited to the R&D
on human stem cell technologies and equipment for human stem
cell processing and for trading of its related equipment), the then (jii)
registered shareholders of AK Suzhou and their spouses (if any).

Particulars and main business of the operating entity

At the date of this report, AK Suzhou is currently owned as to 30% by
Ms. Cui Keyan and as to 70% by Mr. Dai Yumin (the former executive
Director of the Company, which had resigned from his directorship of
the Company with effect from 30 April 2016) (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders”). AK Suzhou is
controlled by the Group through AK Subsidiary by way of AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements pursuant to which AK Subsidiary controls
AK Suzhou.

# for identification only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

J CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Particulars and main business of the operating entity (Cont’d)

AK Suzhou is established to engage in the business of providing
services and equipment for human cell and stem cell related clinical
applications in the PRC, including but not limited to the R&D on
human stem cell technologies and equipment for human stem cell
processing and for trading of its related equipment.

Major terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements

a)

Irrevocable power of attorney
Parties:

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be valid
until the contracts under AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
including their respective supplemental agreements (“AK
Suzhou Main Obligations”) have been terminated or discharged
in full.

Main Subject:

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders shall, among other things,
irrevocably authorise AK Subsidiary and its respective
successors to act on their behalf on all matters in relation
to their equity interests in AK Suzhou, including attending
shareholders’ meeting, signing minutes of shareholders’
meeting and shareholders’ resolutions, exercising their full
shareholder’s rights under the articles of association of AK
Suzhou and applicable PRC laws and regulations, including
but not limited to shareholders’ voting right, appointment
of the legal representative, director, supervisor and senior
management of AK Suzhou, filing documents with the relevant
governmental authorities or regulatory bodies, acquisition and
disposition of the equity interest of AK Suzhou held by Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders or making decision on the liquidation
of AK Suzhou and the formulation of the profit sharing plans
of AK Suzhou, provided that the exercise of the power(s) of
attorney shall not cause breach to the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G wm N NT

BRRHE (&)
B (FM) R ZH ()
HY (M) ERZHZ B (K)

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements

(Cont’d)

b)  Exclusive business cooperation agreement b)  BREBHEIEGE
Parties: HESP:
()  AK Subsidiary () BEIMBAF
(i)  AK Suzhou (i) B3l (EIMN)

Terms:

10 years commencing from 7 August 2015. The exclusive
business cooperation agreement will be automatically extended
for another 10 years if AK Subsidiary has no intention to
terminate upon its expiry. The said automatic 10-year extension
will continue until AK Subsidiary gives confirmation regarding
the termination of the term.

Main Subject:

AK Suzhou should appoint AK Subsidiary as exclusive service
provider for its business operations, including but not limited
to, technical R&D, technical support, technical consultation,
technical training and other management and corporate
consultation services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G wm N NT

J CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) BHRH (E)
By (BFM) #HIZH (18)
BY (M) BREZHZTERR (F)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements

(Cont’d)

c)  Exclusive option agreements ¢ BEXERERG
Parties: HEDE
()  AK Subsidiary () BEIMBAF
(i)  Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders () BN AR E
(i) AK Suzhou (i) 2=l (EM)

Terms:

10 years commencing from the date of the respective exclusive
option agreements. The exclusive option agreement will be
automatically extended for another 10 years if AK Subsidiary
has no intention to terminate upon its expiry. The said automatic
10-year extension will continue until AK Subsidiary gives
confirmation regarding the termination of the term.

Main Subject:

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders and AK Suzhou irrevocably
agreed, to the extent permitted under the laws of the PRC, to
transfer to AK Subsidiary or any person(s) designated by AK
Subsidiary at any time and from time to time, all or part of their
equity interests in AK Suzhou, or all or part of the assets of AK
Suzhou.

AK Subsidiary may exercise its rights under the paragraph
above at any time and in any manner at its sole discretion as
permitted under the laws of the PRC. The exercise price of each
of the rights under the paragraph above shall be the lowest
price permitted under the laws of the PRC, subject to any other
price as required by the PRC government authorities. Upon
AK Suzhou and/or Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders receive(s)
the said consideration, they unconditionally transfer the said
consideration to AK Subsidiary or any person(s) designated by
AK Subsidiary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G wm N NT

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) BHRH (E)
By (BFM) #HIZH (18)
BY (M) BREZHZTERR (F)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

c)  Exclusive option agreements (Cont’d) ¢ BEREREWmE (E)

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders and AK Suzhou jointly and/
or severally undertake that, among other things, without having
obtained the prior written consent from AK Subsidiary, they
will not (i) amend the articles of association of AK Suzhou; (ii)
increase or decrease the registered capital of AK Suzhou; (iii)
dispose of, transfer, mortgage, create any security interest or
third party rights in its equity interests in AK Suzhou; (iv) appoint
any director(s) or executive director(s) of AK Suzhou; and (v) pay
dividends in any manners. Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
further undertake that, without having obtained the written
consent from AK Subsidiary, they and their respective related
persons will not engage in any business which is in competition
with the businesses of AK Suzhou.

Equity pledge agreements
Parties:

()  AK Subsidiary
(i)  Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
(i)  AK Suzhou

Terms:

Effective from the registration of the pledged equity interests
under the equity pledge agreement at the relevant PRC
administration for industry and commerce until all the obligations
of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders and AK Suzhou (including
but not limited to AK Suzhou Main Obligations) are satisfied
or discharged in full. The registration of the pledged equity
interests under the equity pledge agreement at the relevant PRC
administration for industry and commerce has been completed.

Main Subject:

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders pledged all equity interests
in AK Suzhou legally held by Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
(including present or future registered capital and their rights
and benefits, whether through increase of capital and/or transfer
of equity interest) to AK Subsidiary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

J CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

e) Consent letter of spouse
Parties:
The spouses of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be valid
until the AK Suzhou Main Obligations are satisfied or discharged
in full.

Main Subject:

The spouses of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders unconditionally
agreed to the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements.

The spouses of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders undertake
and declare that the equity respectively owned by Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders in AK Suzhou contemplated on AK
Suzhou Contractual Arrangements shall be Suzhou Biomedical
Shareholders’ personal property respectively; and further, the
said spouses undertake that they shall not take any act that
causes or will cause any conflict and/or impediment to the AK
Suzhou Contractual Arrangements.

Reason for using the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
and the significance to the Group

As advised by the legal adviser of the Company, the principal
business of AK Suzhou involves technology for human stem cell
research & development and applications which is regarded as
prohibited business for foreign entity under the PRC Law. As such,
the Group cannot acquire the equity interest in AK Suzhou at that
time. Having regard to such foreign investment restrictions, the
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements were designed to provide
AK Subsidiary and, thus the Group, with effective control over the
financial and operational policies of AK Suzhou and (to the extent
permitted by PRC laws and regulations) the right to acquire the equity
interest in AK Suzhou.
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e HEREH
HESP:
R A= R IR SR 2 B
£

REZRERFHYSHEER  EERY
(BN TERHD KM E LR -

FHER:

BMEMBMBR 2 EEERTR B R
(BRIM) AHIZHE -

FMNEMRMBRR 2 B BAGHE LB - Bl
(BRIN) B KRR I5 R B &R M £ W BT i
REBFARRE (M) ZBRED B A&
INEM B R Z BARE - Wi — G
NEREEE S G MR (M)
BRZHRERE AR TR -

KRERY (M) EHLHZELRHFEBZE
=i

BEARBARBEEA - Byl (FM) WEEXK
R A BEBANRTTE RN - RIEPEERE
WRBIELEZE RN - Fitt - AKEE
R AW RE RS (BRN) 2 BHE © BT M F 85
BRERS - RILBS (FM) SOLEZBENTR
RYMBAREANEERHH R (FIMN) B
KR E R g 2 B RIR | K (R BUER ROER &
A BEA) WHBREL (FRM) B 2R -

' e China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2016 /2017



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Revenue and assets subject to the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements

BRZ (&)
B (FM) EXZH (.

Bl (M) SHZHZ K REE

The revenue, net loss and total assets subject to the AK Suzhou 25l (B&M) &X%HE 2 e - FEEREBEES
Contractual Arrangements are set out as follows: Ha -
Year ended Year ended
30 April 2017 30 April 2016
BE-_Z—+t#H HE-ZT—XKHF
B=+H MA=+H
ILEE IEFE
(HK$’000) (HK$’000)
(F#&x) (F#&1)
Revenue Wz 247 55
Net loss FEE 8,612 3,318
Total assets BEE 73,901 64,707

For the year ended 30 April 2017, the revenue and net loss subject
to AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately
0.07% and 4.32% of the revenue and net loss of the Group
respectively. As at 30 April 2017, the total assets subject to AK
Suzhou Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately 2.56%
of the total assets of the Group.

For the year ended 30 April 2016, the revenue and net loss subject
to AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately
0.20% and 1.71% of the revenue and net loss of the Group
respectively. As at 30 April 2017, the total assets subject to AK
Suzhou Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately 2.23%
of the total assets of the Group.

Material changes

Save as disclosed in this report, there has not been any material
changes in AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

HE-ZT—+FNAZTHILFE - 83 FM)
ARz W ROF R S BIME AN & B e BOF
BB 4)0.07% K 4.32% c R—ZT—+F WA=+
B 23 (M) 60T REEEASERE
E#4)2.56% °

HE-ZT—XFNAZT+HILFE - 83 (FM)
ARz W ROF R S BIME AN & B s BOF
B8 470.20% K 1.71% - R-—ZT—+F WA=+
B 23 (M) 60T REELEASERE
FE4)2.23% °

EAEE

BRASREREES - B (M) aHTHR
HRALFTANLTHNBERL BEMERES) -

2016 /2017 3§ PEBLEELEEFRAS 'e



4

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)
Unwinding of AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements

Up to the date of this report, there has not been any unwinding of
any AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements, nor has there been any
failure to unwind any AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements when
the restrictions that led to the adoption of the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements are removed.

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements

Collectively, the exclusive business cooperation agreement, the
exclusive option agreement, the equity pledge agreement, the power
of attorney and the consent letter of spouse, entered into among
(i) Tianjin Subsidiary (Tianjin Weisheng Biotechnology Consulting
Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC with Royal Noble
Development Limited as its sole shareholder (a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with Passion Stream Limited as its sole shareholder, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, being owned as to
70% and 30% by the CRMI Medical and Remed Tiger respectively)),
(i) Tianjin Weikai (FZE& LAY TZ AR A F] (Tianjin Weikai Bioeng
Ltd.*), a company incorporated in the PRC to engage in the business
of designs and manufacturing of pre-clinical cell and stem cell
related equipment, especially in 3D cell culture bio-reactors and their
related consumables, as well as providing CRO services i.e. contract
research services which mainly include drug screening, drug efficacy,
toxicity assays in the drug development services to local institutions
and hospitals), the then (jii) registered shareholders of Tianjin Weikai
and their spouses (if any).

Particulars and main business of the operating entity

At the date of this report, Tianjin Weikai is currently owned as to 30%
by Mr. Cui Zhanyong and as to 70% by Mr. Dai Yumin (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Tianjin Weikai Shareholders”). Tianjin
Weikai is controlled by the Group through Tianjin Subsidiary by way
of Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements pursuant to which Tianjin
Subsidiary controls Tianjin Weikai.

Tianjin Weikai engages in the business of design and manufacturing
of pre-clinical cell and stem cell related equipment, especially in 3D
cell culture bio-reactors and their related consumables as well as
providing CRO services.

* for identification only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements

a)

Irrevocable Power(s) of Attorney
Parties:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be
valid until the contracts under Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements including their respective supplemental
agreements (“Tianjin Weikai Main Obligations”) are satisfied or
discharged in full.

Main Subject:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders shall, among other things,
irrevocably authorise any representative and its respective
successors appointed by Tianjin Subsidiary to act on their behalf
all matters in relation to its equity interests in Tianjin Weikai,
including attending shareholders’ meeting, signing minutes of
shareholders’ meeting and shareholders’ resolutions, exercising
their full shareholder’s rights under the articles of association
of Tianjin Weikai and applicable PRC laws and regulations,
including but not limited to shareholders’ voting right,
appointment of the legal representative, director, supervisor
and senior management of Tianjin Weikai, filing documents
with the relevant governmental authorities or regulatory bodies,
acquisition and disposition of the shareholdings of Tianjin Weikai
held by Tianjin Weikai Shareholders or making decision on the
liquidation of Tianjin Weikai and the formulation of the profit
sharing plans of Tianjin Weikai, provided that the exercise of the
power(s) of attorney shall not cause to breach the Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G wm N NT

BRRHE (&)
KEBEFHNEH LI (B
REGNENZHZ EBHH ()

J CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements

(Cont’d)

b)  Exclusive business cooperation agreement b)  BREBHEIEGE
Parties: HESP:
()  Tianjin Subsidiary () REMBAAF
(i)  Tianjin Weikai (i) REEH
Terms: FH

10 years commencing from 17 April 2015. The exclusive B-Z—NnFEMNA+T+EHRAE105F - B
business cooperation agreement will be automatically extended WMEBRERENBARZERIENERRE
for another 10 years if Tianjin Subsidiary has no intention to T~ AIBRERAERZREEETEEHR104F -
terminate upon its expiry. The said automatic 10-year extension I EBEH10FHFE#ET  EEREN
will continue until Tianjin Subsidiary gives confirmation regarding BARER KR FEER -

the termination of the term.

Main Subject: FHEEE:

Tianjin Weikai should appoint Tianjin Subsidiary as service REFIRZERENBRBIAHEREE

provider for its business operations, including but not limited
to, technical R&D, technical support, technical consultation,
technical training and other management and corporate
consultation services.

ZRIBRMERE - BIRETRNEMFE - &
M & - BEER - BIE R E
B RERERRE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

c)  Exclusive option agreements
Parties:

(i) Tianjin Subsidiary
(i) Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
(i) Tianjin Weikai

Terms:

10 years commencing from the date of the respective exclusive
option agreements. The exclusive option agreement will be
automatically extended for another 10 years if Tianjin Subsidiary
has no intention to terminate upon its expiry. The said automatic
10-year extension will continue until Tianjin Subsidiary gives
confirmation regarding the termination of the term.

Main Subject:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders and Tianjin Weikai shall irrevocably
agree, to the extent permitted under the laws of the PRC, to
transfer to Tianjin Subsidiary or any person(s) designated by
Tianjin Subsidiary at any time and from time to time, all or part
of its equity interests in Tianjin Weikai, or all or part of the assets
of Tianjin Weikai.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

J CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

c)

Exclusive option agreements (Cont’d)

Tianjin Subsidiary may exercise its rights under the paragraph
above at any time and in any manner at its sole discretion as
permitted under the laws of the PRC. The exercise price of each
of the rights under the paragraph above shall be the lowest
price permitted under the laws of the PRC, subject to any other
price as required by the PRC government authorities. Upon
Tianjin Weikai and/or Tianjin Weikai Shareholders receive(s)
the said consideration, they unconditionally transfer the said
consideration to Tianjin Subsidiary or any person(s) designated
by Tianjin Subsidiary.

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders and Tianjin Weikai jointly and/or
severally undertake that, among other things, without having
obtained the written consent from Tianjin Subsidiary, they will
not (i) amend the articles of association of Tianjin Weikai; (ii)
increase or decrease the registered capital of Tianjin Weikai;
(i) dispose of, transfer, mortgage, create any security interest
or third party rights in its equity interests in Tianjin Weikai; (iv)
appoint any director(s) or executive director(s) of Tianjin Weikai;
(v) pay dividends in any manners. Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
further undertake that, without having obtained the written
consent from Tianjin Subsidiary, they and their respective related
persons will not engage in any business which is in competition
with the businesses of Tianjin Weikai.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G wm N NT

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) YEAC )
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d) KBS ZH (1B

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements KBEH B L Z T EMH ()
(Cont’d)

d)  Equity pledge agreement d)  REZFGE
Parties: HESP
()  Tianjin Subsidiary ) REMEAT]
(i)  Tianjin Weikai Shareholders (i) REFIRE
(i) Tianjin Weikai (i)  REREE
Terms: FH
Effective from the registration of the pledged equity interests BREBETETEITIIEE S CREL F
under the equity pledge agreement at the relevant PRC BRETCEERRERER  BEEXEEI
administration for industry and commerce until all the obligations RERERZEGIN 2 EERE (BEETRR
of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders and Tianjin Weikai (including REFINEERE) HELTEEmT NER
but not limited to Tianjin Weikai Main Obligations) are satisfied B o MBERBHRE TRIT B4 LR EE 4
or discharged in full. The registration of the pledged equity WEE T~ 2 B IFRED 7T ©

interests under the equity pledge agreement at the relevant PRC
administration for industry and commerce has been completed.

Main Subject: FHREIE:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders pledged all equity interests in Tianjin REFIIRR MR EMN BRI ER R EEN
Weikai held by Tianjin Weikai Shareholders (including present or BRFEz2HBREGIRE (BRERBL
future registered capital and their rights and benefits, whether ROREMRA R E#ERN RN (BmeEiB
through increase of capital and/or transfer of equity interest) to MR KSR ERE AR ) o

Tianjin Subsidiary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

J CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

e)

Consent letter of spouse

Parties:

The spouses of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be
valid until the Tianjin Weikai Main Obligations are satisfied or
discharged in full.

Main Subject:

The spouses of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders shall unconditionally
agree to the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements.

The spouses of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders undertake and
declare that the equity respectively owned by Tianjin Weikai
Shareholders in Tianjin Weikai contemplated on the Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements shall be Tianjin Weikai
Shareholders’ personal property respectively; and further, the
said spouses undertake that they shall not take any act that
causes or will cause any conflict and/or impediment to the
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Reason for using the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
and the significance to the Group

As advised by the legal adviser of the Company, the principal
business of AK Suzhou which involves technology for human
stem cell research & development and applications is regarded as
prohibited business for foreign entity under the PRC Law. As such,
the Group cannot acquire the equity interest in Tianjin Weikai at
that time. Having regard to such foreign investment restrictions, the
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements were designed to provide
Tianjin Subsidiary and, thus the Group, with effective control over the
financial and operational policies of Tianjin Weikai and (to the extent
permitted by PRC laws and regulations) the right to acquire the equity
interest in Tianjin Weikai.

Revenue and assets subject to the Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements

BRRHE (&)
KREFIN LI (.
KRN RN EH R FEE 2 BB

BARRDEEBEEEA - Byl (F)N) HEBRXD
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BRH - RUKRHEIGOLHZ BN ARZE
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REG 2B BIRHI N (NP BDER FOAREF 28
BR) YRR E IR R -

BXEBEHNENLHRIRZ Wt REE

The revenue, net loss and total assets subject to the Tianjin Weikai ~ RXEGEHE L H 2 W  FEEREEERD
Contractual Arrangements are set out as follows: s
Year ended Year ended
30 April 2017 30 April 2016
BE-Z—tF HEZT—XRF
B=+H WMA=+H
LFE IEFE
(HK$’000) (HK$’000)
(F#7x) (F#7T)
Revenue Was 2,149 1,266
Net loss FEE 5,583 6,506
Total assets BEE 107,254 114,011

For the year ended 30 April 2017, the revenue and net loss subject to
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately
0.60% and 2.80% of the revenue and net loss of the Group
respectively. As at 30 April 2017, the total assets subject to Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately 3.71%
of the total assets of the Group.

For the year ended 30 April 2016, the revenue and net loss subject to
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately
4.56% and 3.34% of the revenue and net loss of the Group
respectively. As at 30 April 2016, the total assets subject to Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately 3.93%
of the total assets of the Group.

HE-_ZT—+tHFMA=Z+HILFE  K2FHINE
HZ 2 WEmRFBEBD MG AEE RS MFE
B 2#0.60%K280% - A-_ZE—+FWA=+
B REFIANLHIBEENIEEREE
#43.71% o

HE-_ZT—XNFONA=Z+THILFE  K2FHINE
WLz W RFBEBD MG AL B RS MFE
B 2ZHA456%K3.34%  R_ZE—REWA=+
B REFIANLHZBEENIEEREE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Material changes

Save as disclosed in this report, there has not been any material
changes in Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

Unwinding of Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements

Up to the date of this report, there has not been any unwinding of
any Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements, nor has there been
any failure to unwind any Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
when the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements are removed.

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks

The Group does not have any direct equity ownership in AK Suzhou
and/or Tianjin Weikai and has relied on the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and/or Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements,
as the case may be, to control, operate, and be entitled to the
economic benefits and risks arising from the respective businesses
of AK Suzhou and/or Tianjin Weikai in the PRC. However, there are
risks involved with the operations of AK Subsidiary and/or Tianjin
Subsidiary under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and/or
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements, as the case may be.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Risks associated with AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai the Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

0]

There is no assurance that the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements could comply with future changes

in the regulatory requirements in the PRC and the

PRC government may determine that the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements do not comply with applicable regulations

Current PRC laws and regulations prohibit foreign ownership of
companies engage in the businesses concerning technology for
research & development and applications of human stem cells,
gene diagnose and therapy. The businesses of AK Suzhou and
Tianjin Weikai are regarded as design and manufacturing of pre-
clinical cell and stem cell related equipment which involves in
technology for human stem cell research & development and
applications, in addition to providing contract research services.
The Company is a company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands. AK Subsidiary and Tianjin Subsidiary may not
engage in the businesses concerning technology for human
stem cell research & development and applications in the PRC
under current PRC laws. As a result, the Group will have to
conduct the business of AK Suzhou and Tianjin Weikai in the
PRC through the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements respectively.

Despite the fact that there is no indication that the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements will be interfered or objected by any PRC
regulatory authorities, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
there is a possibility that the Ministry of Commerce and other
competent authorities may have different opinions on the
interpretation of the relevant regulations and would not agree
that the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements comply with the current
PRC laws, regulations or rules or those that may be adopted in
future, and the authorities may deny the validity, effectiveness
and enforceability of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements.

If the authorities may deny the validity, effectiveness
and enforceability of any of the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements,
it could have a material adverse impact on the Group’s
businesses, financial condition and results of operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

J CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(ii)

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective
in providing control over and entitlement to the economic
interests in the Project Company (“either AK Suzhou

or Tianjin Weikai or both as the case may be”) as direct
ownership

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in providing
the Group with control over and entitlement to the economic
interests in the Project Company as direct ownership. If AK
Subsidiary had direct ownership of AK Suzhou, AK Subsidiary
would be able to directly exercise its rights as a shareholder
to effect changes in the board of directors of AK Suzhou.
However, under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements,
AK Subsidiary can only look to and rely on AK Suzhou and the
Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders to perform their contractual
obligations under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
such that AK Subsidiary can exercise effective control over AK
Suzhou. The Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders may not act in
the best interests of AK Suzhou or may not perform its/their
obligations under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements,
and in that case, AK Subsidiary may replace the Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders by its other nominees pursuant to
the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements. However, if any
dispute relating to the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
remains unresolved, AK Subsidiary will have to enforce its rights
under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and seek to
interpret the terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
in accordance with the PRC laws and will be subject to
uncertainties in the PRC legal system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G wm N NT

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) BHRH (E)

B (FM) EXRZHR X BE N EH

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual

Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(ii)

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective
in providing control over and entitlement to the economic
interests in the Project Company (“either AK Suzhou

or Tianjin Weikai or both as the case may be”) as direct
ownership (Cont’d)

It will be the same situation for the Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements. If Tianjin Subsidiary had direct ownership of
Tianjin Weikai, Tianjin Subsidiary would be able to directly
exercise its rights as a shareholder to effect changes in the
board of directors of Tianjin Weikai. However, under the Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements, Tianjin Subsidiary can
only look to and rely on Tianjin Weikai and the Tianjin Weikai
Shareholders to perform their contractual obligations under
the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements such that Tianjin
Subsidiary can exercise effective control over Tianjin Weikai. The
Tianjin Weikai Shareholders may not act in the best interests
of Tianjin Weikai or may not perform its/their obligations under
the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements, and in that case,
Tianjin Subsidiary may replace the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
by its other nominees pursuant to the Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements. However, if any dispute relating to the Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements remains unresolved, Tianjin
Subsidiary will have to enforce its rights under the Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements and seek to interpret the terms of
the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements in accordance with
the PRC laws and will be subject to uncertainties in the PRC
legal system.

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements are governed by the PRC laws.
When a dispute arises under any of the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements,
the relevant parties thereto shall settle the dispute through
negotiation in an amicable manner. In case the dispute is not
resolved, the parties to the dispute may have to rely on legal
remedies under the PRC laws. The AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
provided that dispute will be submitted to the China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission for arbitration to
be conducted in Beijing. The decision of such arbitration is final
and binding on the parties to the dispute.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G wm N NT

BHZH (&)

B (FM) EXRZHR X BE N EH
LB 2B R R L AR 2 FE IR A B

J CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual

Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

2155 (&

(i) The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin (i) & (FMN) EXLZHRXEEHNEAZH
Weikai Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective REHEE 28 ([15ERE] (BFM) 2t X EE
in providing control over and entitlement to the economic g gmE (RERTE) ]) REERA)
interests in the Project Company (“either AK Suzhou Flaz G E A EET B B ER X (48)
or Tianjin Weikai or both as the case may be”) as direct
ownership (Cont’d)
Since the legal environment in the PRC is different from that RN EDERRIRA IR EE K EM DA
in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions, the uncertainties in the & - R BDEEEER 2 TAARERZEG A
PRC legal system could limit the ability of the Group to enforce IR & A £= B 25 %3 1T B Y (FRMN) & 48k
the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrang'ements and Tianjin Weikai RIEEYANTHE T 88T o MR BEE
Cor_wtrac_tual Arranggment_s. There is no assurance that such {3, 4k R 4 75 FIPAZS 2 (B o o 24 1|0 7
there will ot be ey ciftulies n anforcing any arbtval avarcs L2 EIRBEATHRATIRS -
granted, including specific performance or injunctive relief and %ﬁ”ﬂﬁ%ZK%@Z%%EHEZ%%U%\;K%
claiming damages by the Group. As the Group may not be REAARKERD E%E ° FR A B A B AR
able to obtain sufficient remedies in a timely manner, its ability RIS R S A i - L E RS (B
to exert effective control over AK Suzhou and/or Tianjin Weikai M) B/ RRREIITEBIRIES 2B
and the conduct of the businesses concerning technology for NAETT A B8 o AR R 1T B 85 e B FR 3275 Rl A
human stem cell research & development and applications RERATFTE  WAlge R ETANEE 2 275
could be materially and adversely affected, and may disrupt the RSB ARER %75 - i MKEEEELS
business of the Group and have a material adverse impact on AR E -
Group’s business, prospects and results of operation.

(iii)  Potential conflicts of interest among the respective (i) BERERER AT A T BERS

shareholders and the Project Company may exist

(@) Potential conflicts of interest among AK Subsidiary, AK
Suzhou, the Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders may exist

AK Subsidiary shall rely on the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements to exercise control over and to draw the
economic benefits from AK Suzhou. AK Subsidiary may
not be able to provide sufficient incentives to the Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders for the purpose of encouraging
them to act in the best interests of AK Subsidiary, other
than stipulating the relevant obligations in the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements. The Suzhou Biomedical
Shareholders may breach the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements in the event of conflicts of interest or
deterioration of its/their relationship with AK Subsidiary, the
results of which may have a material adverse impact on AK
Subsidiary’s business, prospects and results of operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G wm N NT

o

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(iij)  Potential conflicts of interest among the respective

BHZH (&)

B (FM) EXRZHR X BE N EH
LB 2B R R L AR 2 FE IR A B
2155 (&

(iii) FEKRRIEE 2\ 5] 2 B 7 G 17 1E B 7l it

shareholders and the Project Company may exist (Cont’d) B ()

(a)  Potential conflicts of interest among AK Subsidiary, AK (a) ZHIHTELE] - B (FIM) REIMNE
Suzhou, the Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders may exist Wl R B 2 (2] 7] BE 77 75 )BT Fl| a5 17
(Cont’d) & (&)
It is not assured that if conflicts arise, the Suzhou B REBE HEFERE - HMNEMR
Biomedical Shareholders will act in the best interests MARR G AR B R R 2 R EFE
of AK Subsidiary or that the conflicts will be resolved in TERERBG UL RINNE R TAEF
favour of AK Subsidiary. If any of the Suzhou Biomedical 27 R R o {8 (AT ER N AR W AT AR
Shareholders fails to perform its obligations under the HARBTERSHREY (FMN) 64
respective AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements, AK LTHETZEME  BRYWBE LRI aE
Subsidiary may have to rely on legal remedies under BB FDKERBLER T Z20E
the PRC laws through legal proceedings, which may BER WEAESE - ERRTE
be expensive, time-consuming and disruptive to AK BIMBARZEE - BErJsemER £
Subsidiary’s operations and will be subject to uncertainties X itz NEABAE & o
as stated above.

(b)  Potential conflicts of interest among Tianjin Subsidiary, b) KEWE LA KIEEH R EEL]

Tianjin Weikai, the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders may exist

Tianjin Subsidiary shall rely on the Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements to exercise control over and to
draw the economic benefits from Tianjin Weikai. Tianjin
Subsidiary may not be able to provide sufficient incentives
to the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders for the purpose of
encouraging them to act in the best interests of Tianjin
Subsidiary, other than stipulating the relevant obligations
in the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements. The
Tianjin Weikai Shareholders may breach the Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements in the event of conflicts
of interest or deterioration of its/their relationship with
Tianjin Subsidiary, the results of which may have a
material adverse impact on Tianjin Subsidiary’s business,
prospects and results of operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G wm N NT
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J CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(iii) Potential conflicts of interest among the respective (i) FERRRIEE 4 8] 2 o7 1 B 1E Fll 5

shareholders and the Project Company may exist (Cont’d)

(b)  Potential conflicts of interest among Tianjin Subsidiary,
Tianjin Weikai, the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders may exist
(Cont’d)

It is not assured that if conflicts arise, the Tianjin Weikai
Shareholders will act in the best interests of Tianjin
Subsidiary or that the conflicts will be resolved in favour of
Tianjin Subsidiary. If any of the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
fails to perform its obligations under the respective Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements, Tianjin Subsidiary
may have to rely on legal remedies under the PRC laws

FHZxE (H)

(b) XEWELRA  XFEEHHRXEE
R Z [ AT RET7 FE B Fz 5 (48

M REEELEHRE - REFIR
REUARZHBRAR 2 RENRITE
FEREAHRZMBE AR AN 27
HERR o W ERREFINRIRAREE
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through legal proceedings, which may be expensive, BOgERE - ERRPERENBEAR
time-consuming and disruptive to Tianjin Subsidiary’s Al &8 - BAJREMEER E3CFifi e

operations and will be subject to uncertainties as stated
above.

(iv) The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin

Weikai Contractual Arrangements may be subject to
scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax
may be imposed

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements may be subject to scrutiny of the
PRC tax authorities and additional tax may be imposed on the
Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary, as the case may be.
Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary, as the case may be,
may face adverse tax consequences if the PRC tax authorities
determine that the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements were not entered into
based on arm’s length negotiations. If the PRC tax authorities
determine that the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements were not entered
into on an arm’s length basis, they may adjust the income and
expenses of Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary, as the
case may be, for the PRC tax purposes, which could result in
higher tax liabilities on Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary,
as the case may be.

(iv)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G wm N NT

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) BHRH (E)

B (FM) EXRZHR X BE N EH
LB 2B R R L AR 2 FE IR A B

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual

Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(iv) The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements may be subject to
scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax
may be imposed (Cont’d)

The operation results of the Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK
Subsidiary, as the case may be, may be materially and adversely
affected if the tax liabilities of AK Subsidiary, Tianjin Subsidiary,
Tianjin Weikai or AK Suzhou increase significantly or if they are
required to pay interest on late payments.
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(iv) R (FFM) ERLHRXZEHNEALH

REER FEH B HAFE L NI HE
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L (FRIN) Z B B E AR IRIE DN i 1
FARBBN KM AFE - REHE QR
R/HBHYMBAR (RERME) 2%
KBRIRIBERBEATNTE -

(v) Ability to acquire the entire equity interests in or assets (v) WHEEERAREREXEEZEED
of the Project Company
(@ AK Subsidiary’s ability to acquire the entire equity interests (@) RIHE L AJKRERS] (#-IN) 2 28D

in or assets of AK Suzhou may be subject to various
limitations and substantial costs

In case AK Subsidiary exercises its options to acquire all
or part of the equity interests and/or assets of AK Suzhou
under the relevant exclusive option agreement, the
acquisition of the entire equity interests in or the assets
of AK Suzhou may only be conducted to the extent as
permitted by the applicable PRC laws and will be subject
to necessary approvals and relevant procedures under
applicable PRC laws. In addition, the abovementioned
acquisitions may be subject to a minimum price limitation
(such as an appraised value for the entire equity interests
in or all assets of AK Suzhou) or other limitations as
imposed by applicable PRC laws. Further, a substantial
amount of other costs (if any), expenses and time
may be involved in transferring the ownership of AK
Suzhou, which may have a material adverse impact on
AK Subsidiary’s businesses, prospects and results of
operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

J CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(v) Ability to acquire the entire equity interests in or assets
of the Project Company (Cont’d)

(b)

Tianjin Subsidiary’s ability to acquire the entire equity
interests in or assets of Tianjin Weikai may be subject to
various limitations and substantial costs

In case Tianjin Subsidiary exercises its options to acquire
all or part of the equity interests and/or assets of Tianjin
Weikai under the exclusive option agreement, the
acquisition of the entire equity interests in or the assets
of Tianjin Weikai may only be conducted to the extent as
permitted by the applicable PRC laws and will be subject
to necessary approvals and relevant procedures under
applicable PRC laws. In addition, the abovementioned
acquisitions may be subject to a minimum price limitation
(such as an appraised value for the entire equity interests
in or all assets of Tianjin Weikai) or other limitations as
imposed by applicable PRC laws. Further, a substantial
amount of other costs (if any), expenses and time may
be involved in transferring the ownership of Tianjin
Weikai, which may have a material adverse impact on
Tianjin Subsidiary’s businesses, prospects and results of
operation.

In light of the above risks associated with the AK
Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements, the Group has adopted
a set of procedures, systems and internal control
measures to ensure the sound and effective operation
of the Group and the implementation of the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements. Such procedures, systems and internal
control measures include (i) regular discussions of matters
relating to compliance and regulatory enquiries from
governmental authorities, if any, by the board of directors
of the Company at board meetings; and (i) retaining legal
adviser and/or other professional to assist the Group
to deal with specific issues arising from the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements, if so required.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Company signed two sponsorship agreements with the University
of Oxford for the researches on cell therapy and tissue engineering.
The Company agreed to provide GBP9.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$102.6 million) to the University of Oxford by
instalments over the period covered by the agreements. Up to 30
April 2017, the Company has paid GBP4.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$52.6 million) to the University of Oxford.

On 15 July 2017, China Regenerative Medicine Limited (“CRML”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the limited
partnership agreement with independent third parties, pursuant to
which the CRML will commit to invest US$75 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$585 million) in Haitong International Zhong Hua
Finance Acquisition Fund I, L.P. (“the Fund”) as a limited partner of the
Fund after receiving a drawdown notice from the general partner. It is
expected that the subscription would allow the Group to participate
in investing in innovative healthcare and healthcare related business
which would generate a favourable return to the Group.

CHARGES IN ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 30 April 2017, bank loans of HK$754.0 million were secured
by the Group’s property, plant and equipment, land use rights and
pledged bank deposits with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$78.0 million (2016: HK$84.5 million), HK$4.2 million (2016:
HK$4.6 million) and HK$794.7 million (2016: HK$558.9 million)
respectively.

As at 30 April 2017, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(2016: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Directors do not have any plans
for material investment or capital assets at this point in time.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND
REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 April 2017, the Group had 542 (2016: 520) employees
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China. As an equal opportunity
employer, the Group’s remuneration and bonus policies are
determined with reference to the performance and experience of
individual employees. The total amount of employee remuneration
(including that of the Directors and retirement benefits scheme
contributions) of the Group for the year was approximately HK$131.7
million (2016: HK$95.1 million).

In addition, the Group may offer options to employees as a
recognition of and reward for their efforts and contributions to the
Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
sEEZ2NEETBAERBNT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Sai Hung (“Mr. Wong”), aged 62, is an executive
Director and the vice-chairman of the Board (“Vice-chairman”). He
is also a member of each of the nomination committee of the Board
(the “Nomination Committee”) and the remuneration committee of
the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”). Mr. Wong joined the
Group in June 2008 as a non-executive Director. He had been re-
designated as an executive Director between August 2012 to April
2013 and in January 2016, as the Vice-chairman between July 2009
to August 2012 and May 2013 to July 2014 and in October 2016.
He also serves as a director of some subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Wong graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
higher diploma in business studies (marketing). Currently, he is an
independent non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China, Ltd. (the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2318) and JP Morgan
Chinese Investment Trust plc (an investment trust listed on the
London Stock Exchange); a non-executive director of Credit China
Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8207) and a
director of One Asset Management Limited (a company incorporated
in Thailand). Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive director
of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 388); an executive director of LW Asset Management Advisors
Limited; a non-executive director of ARN Investment SICAV (an
investment company listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange)
and ARN Asian Enterprise Fund Limited (formerly listed on the Irish
Stock Exchange); the chief executive officer and an executive director
of ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited; the chief
executive director of BOCI Prudential Asset Management Limited;
and a regional managing director of Prudential Portfolio Managers
Asia.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
sEEZ2NEETBAERBNT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Dr. Shao Zhengkang (“Dr. Shao”), aged 64, is an executive
Director. He is also a member of each of the Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee. Dr. Shao joined the Group in May
2013 as the general manager and had been appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company (“Chief Executive Officer”/*CEQ”) in
September 2013. He also serves as a director of some subsidiaries
of the Company. Dr. Shao has 13 years’ experience in bio-medical
industry. Prior to joining the Company, he served as a director and the
general manager of a biomedical technology company in the PRC.
From 1999 to 2002, he was an executive director and the general
manager of China Everbright Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 165) and
as a non-executive director of several companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Before joining the Everbright Group,
he was a deputy chief of the International Department of the People’s
Bank of China’s head office, and served as an economist of the Asia
office of International Monetary Fund. Dr. Shao holds a Bachelor’s
degree in arts from Shanghai Institute of Foreign Languages, China.
He also obtained his master’s degree in business administration from
the George Washington University, U.S.A. and a doctorate’s degree
from the International Management Centre, U.K.. Dr. Shao has over
30 years’ experience in banking, corporate finance, treasury, business
development and corporate management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
sEEZ2NEETBAERBNT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. Chen Chunguo (“Mr. Chen”), aged 44, is an executive Director
and the CEO. He is also a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration committee. Mr. Chen joined the
Company in October 2016 as the president and re-designated as the
CEQ in February 2017. Mr. Chen has 20 years of relevant experience
and has accumulated abundant experience in investment and M&A
as well as corporation management. He also serves as a director
of some subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics and obtained a master’s
degree. From 1996 to 2012, Mr. Chen served as the president of X
EE®EE (Dalian Shide Group Co., Ltd.?) (“Dalian Shide”) who was
responsible for the overall management of this 3000-employee group.
Under his management, he established 8 production bases across
the country for new construction materials, all of which were put into
operation successfully, and developed over 100 distribution channels,
making “Shide Profiles” one of the well-known brands in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). During his tenure with Dalian Shide,
he led the investment in and acquisition of ;i 1t)& E 5 AR A7)
(Lingyun Industrial Corporation Limited* (SSE code: 600480)) and %
B RITh AR A 7 (Ningxia Dayuan Chemical Co., Ltd.” (SSE code:
600146)), and invested in a number of financial institutions such as X
BRI D BBRA A (Bank of Dailian Co., Ltd."), A ERERNDE
R A ] (China Pacific Insurance Co., Ltd.#), £ ASFREBRMHBERA
&) (Sino Life Insurance Co., Ltd.*), [ A BRI (7D B BR2AF) (Sino-
Conflux Insurance Company Ltd.*), #28iR1TAX D BR 2 &l (Bank
of Tieling Co., Ltd.") and RIERHESEEERAA (Invesco Great
Wall Fund Management Company Limited®), etc. During such period,
he also formed XEEEA({LBFRAR] (Dalian Shide Petrochemical
Co., Ltd.%), BEEBEIERAR AT (HE) (Shide Group (Hongkong)
Holdings Co., Ltd."), KiEE = EIKIELEES (Dalian Shide Football
Club?), REEEKEBR AR (Dalian Shide Investment Co., Ltd.?)
and other dozens of companies. In total, Mr. Chen managed nearly
a hundred of parents and subsidiaries and a billion-dollar group
during his tenure with in Dalian Shide. From 2012 to 2016, as
president of A:E/&HEE (Hairunlai Group Co., Ltd."), Mr. Chen
has led the investment in and acquisition of Z%$R B Bt48 4 gtk &
#L (Shengyin Internet Financial Services Co., Ltd.#, based in Korea)
and the investment in BATERKEMABR A A (Beston Global
Food Company Ltd"), based in Australia, ;Al1t/E R B EHEAZE A
[ /A7) (Chinatsi Big Data Inc.*) and B¢ & @A EAR A (Guojin
Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.#), etc. In addition, Mr. Chen has integrated
the group’s resources and implemented an overall transition in the
group. Mr. Chen is also the chairman of /& @R EAEREFRA A
(Shanghai Yonghan Equity Investment Co., Ltd.®).

# for identification only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
sEEZ2NEETBAERBNT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Cui Zhanfeng (“Prof. Cui”), aged 54, is a non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Board (“Chairman”). He is also a
member of the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”).
Prof. Cui joined the Group in November 2013 as a consultant.
He currently serves as a director of a subsidiary of the Company.
Prof. Cui obtained his bachelor’s degree of in science from Inner
Mongolia Polytechnic University, the PRC in 1982, and a master’s
degree in science in 1984 and a doctorate’s degree in philosophy
in 1987 from Dalian University of Technology, the PRC. Prof. Cui
was a postdoctoral fellow in the Bioengineering Unit, Strathclyde
University, the United Kingdom from 1988 to 1991 and a lecturer in
Edinburgh University from 1991 to 1994. He moved to the Oxford
University as a lecturer from 1994 to 1999 and was promoted to a
reader in 1999. In 2000, he was elected to the Donald Pollock Chair
of Chemical Engineering in the Oxford University at the age of 37. He
is a professorial fellow of Hertford College, the Oxford University. He
was a visiting professor to Georgia Institute of Technology, the United
States of America (“USA”) in 1999 and University of Minnesota, USA
in 2004, and to several universities in the PRC. He is a chartered
scientist, a chartered engineer, and a fellow of the Institution of
Chemical Engineers. Prof. Cui was awarded the Doctor of Science
(DSc) by the Oxford University in 2009. In 2013, Prof. Cui was elected
to a fellow of the Royal Academy of Engineering (FRENQ).

Prof. Cui was the first Chinese who was elected to a Statutory Chair
in the Oxford University. He has a wide range of collaborative activities
with universities and Chinese Academy of Sciences in the PRC. He
was a Chang Jiang Scholar of the Ministry of Education of the PRC
and has acted as an adviser to several governmental organisations,
including the Overseas Chinese Affair Office of the State Council.

Dr. Ray Yip (“Dr. Yip”), aged 66, is a non-executive Director. Dr.
Yip joined the Group in February 2017. He is also a member of each
of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He is an international public health leader
who has made a significant contribution to global health in the areas
of nutrition, maternal and child health, HIV/AIDS and tobacco control.
Dr. Yip has been working on emergency response to war and famine,
long term program and policy development effort in the PRC in recent
years. Dr. Yip was the founding director of the Chinese office of U.S.
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (the “CDC”) in 2013, and
the China program director of the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation
(the “Foundation”) in 2017. Dr. Yip is known as a specialist for health
and medical issues in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
sEEZ2NEETBAERBNT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Dr. Yip’s major contributions to the global health include: refining the
international criteria for screening for malnutrition and anemia and
increasing the awareness of diarrhea as a major contributor to acute
malnutrition. His work in the PRC has resulted in the mainstreaming of
hepatitis B vaccine for routine immunization, the adoption of hospital-
based delivery as a strategy which significantly reduced maternal
mortality, transformation of the national AIDS response to one
targeting those high-risk groups by accepting the role of civil society
and assisting in engineering the policy support for tobacco control at
the top level.

Dr. Yip established the Foundation’s mission in China by assisting the
government in addressing the key public health issues such as HIV
and tobacco. He also transformed the Foundation’s strategy in giving
it a new focus “China-for-Africa” which includes identifying successful
Chinese experience and technology to assist in the development of
Africa. Since 2017, Dr. Yip has served as a special advisor focusing on
health and clean energy for bgC3, a think-tank headed by Bill Gates.

Dr. Yip served at the faculty of the University of California-San Francisco
between 1990 and 1994 and was an adjunct professor at the Friedman
School and Nutrition Science and Policy of Tufts University between
2006 and 2010. Currently, Dr. Yip is an adjunct professor at the
Research Centre for Public Health of Tsinghua University.

Dr. Yip graduated from the Medical School and the School of Public
Health of the University of Minnesota, and he was then certified as a
pediatric haematologist-oncologist.

Professor Xiong Chengyu (“Prof. Xiong”), aged 63, is a non-
executive Director. He is also a member of the Audit Committee.
Prof. Xiong joined the Group in March 2017. Prof. Xiong is currently a
professor and a doctoral supervisor of the School of Journalism and
Communication of Tsinghua University in the PRC. Professor Xiong
has extensive experience in new media studies, media development
and journalism. He was a member of each of IR 2 B/t EXRFHEAE
B& X8 (the Advisory Committee for State Informatisation”) and
ROBPEERATEERAMANLZELELE (the Advisory Committee
for Internet Development and Management”), and served as a vice
dean of the School of Journalism and Communication of Tsinghua
University in the PRC. Professor Xiong currently serves as a member
of the University Academic Committee and the chairman of the
National Research Center of Cultural Industries in Tsinghua University
in the PRC. Professor Xiong was an independent director of each
of W B EEERMN AR AT (Hunan TV & Broadcast Intermediary
Co., Ltd.*) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 000917) and A i i (&
HEB K BER AR (China South Publishing & Media Group Co.,
Ltd.*) (Shanghai Stock Exchange: 601098). He currently serves as
an independent director of JTEA&EEHFESBEBRMDERD
A] (Jiangsu Broadcasting Cable Information Network Corporation
Limited”) (Shanghai Stock Exchange: 600959).

# for identification only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
sEEZ2NEETBAERBNT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. Wang Hui (“Mr. Wang”), aged 59, is a non-executive Director.
He is also a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Wang joined the Group
in June 2015. He was re-designated as a non-executive director
in June 2017. Mr. Wang has been serving as the chief executive
officer of First China Capital, Inc. (“FCC”) since 1995, which provides
financial advisory services in M&A and strategic alliance including
corporations in the PRC and oversea. Over the past two decades,
FCC served as financial advisor to Morgan Stanley, UBS, Sumitomo
Mitsui Banking Corporation, financial institutions in the PRC, and
other public and private businesses. Some of the transactions that
Mr. Wang advised, such as UBS establishing UBS Securities through
acquiring Beijing Securities, were considered as landmark in the
industry.

In addition, Mr. Wang is a governor of Pardee RAND Graduate School
of US RAND Corporation (“RAND”). For much of the time since 1988,
he has been associated with RAND as a policy analyst and an adjunct
researcher. Mr. Wang is also a committee member of China Society
of Economics Reform. During the period between 1986 and 1988,
Mr. Wang was assistant to president of China Institute for Economic
Reform (“CIER”) and the director of department of quantitative studies
of CIER. Mr. Wang has published more than 20 books and academic
publications over the years.

Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in economics from China
Academy of Social Sciences and a Ph.D. in policy analysis from
Pardee RAND Graduate School.
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AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS ' J
SENZEHTTHABRN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lui Tin Nang (“Mr. Lui”), aged 59, is an independent non-
executive Director. He is also the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee, and a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Lui joined the Group in September
2004. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from the University
of Leeds and a master’s degree in business administration from the
University of Bradford in United Kingdom, and a postgraduate diploma
in insolvency from Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Mr. Lui is a fellow member of the HKICPA (Practising), the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and The Society of Chinese Accountants
and Auditors. He is also a member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountant, Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
Australia and the Certified Tax Adviser. Mr. Lui has years of experience
in accounting, auditing, taxation, corporate finance and business
advisory. Mr. Lui is currently an independent non-executive director of
Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited (the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1008)
and Northern New Energy Holdings Limited (the shares of which are
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8246).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
sEEZ2NEETBAERBNT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny (“Mr. Pang”), aged 44, is an
independent non-executive Director. He is also the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee, and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Pang joined the Group
in September 2012. He is the managing partner of Benny Pang &
Co which specializes in capital markets and general corporate and
commercial work. Mr. Pang is also an executive director and a vice
chairman of Huabang Financial Holdings Limited (previously known
as Goldenmars Technology Holdings Limited) (“Huabang”), the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3638),
since January 2017. He was an independent non-executive director
of Huabang since June 2012. Between 1997 and 2017, Mr. Pang
practiced as a lawyer with several international law firms in Hong
Kong and Sydney. He received his bachelor’s degree in laws with
honours from Bond University, Australia, in 1996. In 1997, Mr. Pang
obtained his graduate diploma in legal practice and master’s degree
in laws from The College of Law, Sydney and the University of New
South Wales, Australia, respectively. He has been admitted as a legal
practitioner of the Supreme Court of New South Wales, Australia
since 1997 and as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since
2009. Mr. Pang is a member of both the Law Society of New South
Wales, Australia and the Law Society of Hong Kong. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Yuanda China Holdings
Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 2789).

BMYFATES ()

EHEEE ([REE]) 4457 BBILIENTT
E=Z-WNhAFHNEZESXR ULKEZZES
RIRREZEESAZKE - ZEER T —ZF
NAMMAREE ° 1 & Benny Pang & Co H)EIE
A% A ' Benny Pang & CoEFIM EE AT IH A
R—REEREETIE - ZXENTE T —+F
—ARAEARTRMITRER AT (BB & TEHL
TRARAR) ([ZEFR] - ERGOAE R ET
B 3% : 3638) vHTTESREIERE - B8
ZECZHENARBRAERIBUIRTES - 8
—NMNEFE-ZT—+F TEEREBRER
LREBEMEBHMNEBER - TR AN
FEENBAFEHERE  BEEIBLES L
B - R—ANtF  ZhAERBRERERK
AN BB KED FIES EERERR
MR ARBELSBM - TR —ANEFER
AFEHERBN R AR R BNERM - I
REZZETNFEEES S AR LAEM - &
ERBAMGHBEBRNIEMASRESEME
IR B o BIRERAPBIER AR AR (K&K
RERFTER LT - B - 2789) BILIEH
TE=E -

' 0 China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2016 /2017



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
sEEZ2NEETBAERBNT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

Mr. Chan Bing Woon, sBs, Jp, (“Mr. Chan”), aged 72, is an
independent non-executive Director. He is also a member of each
of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Chan joined the Group in March 2014. Mr. Chan is
a consultant of Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., Solicitors and Notaries. He
has over 40 years’ experience in the legal profession. Mr. Chan has
been involved in numerous public duties including being Advisor of
the Joint Mediation Helpline Office. He is also a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a council member of the Hong Kong
Society of Notaries, a general accredited mediator of Hong Kong
International Arbitration Centre and the Law of Society of Hong Kong,
and the chairman of the Hospital Governing Committee of Castle
Peak Hospital and Siu Lam Hospital. Mr. Chan was a member of the
Hospital Authority and a past chairman of the Hong Kong Mediation
Council. He is currently an independent non-executive director of
Kwoon Chung Bus Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 306).

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (“Mr. E Wong”), aged 49, is an
independent non-executive Director. He is also the member of each
of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee. Mr. E Wong joined the Group in February 2017. He has
over 25 years of experience in venture capital, corporate finance,
business development and general management. Mr. E Wong has
served as the president and group chief financial officer of KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited (“KVB”) since November 2011 and as the
chief financial officer and the company secretary of KVB’s group
company, KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange, HKEx stock code: 8077) since
October 2014. Mr. E Wong has also served as an independent non-
executive director of Renheng Enterprise Holdings Limited (HKEx
stock code: 3628) since October 2011, HongDa Financial Holding
Limited (HKEx stock code: 1822) since July 2014, Legend Strategy
International Holdings Group Company Limited (HKEx stock code:
1355) since November 2016 and Progressive Path Group Holdings
Limited (HKEx stock code: 1581) since November 2016.

Mr. E Wong also served several positions at Adamas Finance Asia
Limited (LSE stock code: ADAM), including its executive director from
May 2008 to February 2014, its chief financial officer from May 2008
to October 2011 and its non-executive director since February 2014.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
sEEZ2NEETBAERBNT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

Mr. E Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration
from The University of Hong Kong in 1991, a master’s degree of
science in investment management from The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology in 1998 and a master’s degree of science
in electronic engineering from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
2008.

Mr. E Wong was admitted as a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in November 1999 and October
2002, respectively. He was admitted as a chartered financial analyst
of the Institute of Chartered Financial Analysts in September 1998
and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales in January 2008. He is also acting as the
president of the Hong Kong University Graduates Association, the
deputy chairman of the HKU Convocation, the court member of The
University of Hong Kong, a committee member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants Hong Kong and an executive
director of the Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. The Group believes that high standard of
corporate governance provides a framework and solid foundation for
achieving, attracting and retaining the high standard and quality of the
Group’s management, promoting high standards of sound internal
control, accountability and transparency to all shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) and also meeting the expectations of the
Group’s various stakeholders.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
contained in the Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “CG
Code”) throughout the year ended 30 April 2017, with the exception
of code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive Directors and other non-executive Directors, as equal
board members, should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of Shareholders. Two non-
executive Directors, Professor Deng Shaoping and Mr. Wang Jianjun
and one independent non-executive Director, Mr. Wang Hui, did not
attend the Company’s annual general meeting held on 9 September
2016 (the “AGM”) due to their engagements in other business
commitments. Other Board members, including members of the
Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees, attended the
AGM and made themselves available to answer questions to ensure
effective communication with the Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is charged with the duty to put in place a proper corporate
governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for
setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and
managing risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently
3 subcommittees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. All these committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms
of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of
the senior management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition and Board Practices

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs. Details of the membership of the
Board together with their roles and functions are posted on the Stock
Exchange and the Company’s website and such information shall be
updated as soon as practicable whenever there are changes.

The composition of the Board reflects a balance of skills and
experience desirable for an effective leadership of the Company.

As at 30 April 2017, the Board had eleven Directors, including
three executive Directors; three non-executive Directors, and five
independent non-executive Directors.

Given below are names of the Directors as at the date of this report:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Sai Hung (Vice-chairman of the Board,
member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee)

(Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee)

(Chief Executive Officer and member of
the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee)

Dr. Shao Zhengkang

Mr. Chen Chunguo

Non-executive Directors
Professor Cui Zhanfeng (Chairman of the Board and
member of the Audit Committee)
(member of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Audit Committeg)
(member of the Audit Committee)
(member of the Nomination,

Remuneration and Audit Committeg)

Dr. Ray Yip

Professor Xiong Chengyu
Mr. Wang Hui

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lui Tin Nang (chairman of the Audit and
Nomination Committee and
member of the Remuneration
Committee)

Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny  (chairman of Remuneration Committee
and member of the Nomination and
Audit Committee)

(member of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Audit Committee)

(member of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Audit Committee)

Mr. Chan Bing Woon

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Board Composition and Board Practices (Cont’d)

Biographical details of each director are set out in the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Chief Executives” on pages 63
to 72 of this annual report.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst the Directors.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.
The principle functions of the Board are to:

establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

determine the broad policies, strategies and objectives of the
Group;

approve annual budgets, major funding proposals, investment
and divestment proposals;

oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy and integrity
of internal controls, risk management, financial reporting and
compliance;

approve the nominations of Directors by Nomination Committee
and appointment of external auditors;

ensure accurate, adequate and timely reporting to, and
communication with Shareholders;

monitor and manage potential conflicts of interest of
management, Board members and Shareholders, including
misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related party
transactions; and assume responsibility for corporate
governance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Board Composition and Board Practices (Cont’d)

The Board delegates day-to-day management, administration
and operations of the Group to the executive Directors and
senior management, while reserving certain key matters for its
approval. The management is responsible for the implementation
of the Company’s strategies and policies, while the progress
and development are periodically reviewed by Directors. During
this financial year, the management provided all members of the
Board with monthly management updates (“Monthly Management
Updates”) in accordance with the code provision C.1.2 of the CG
Code. The Monthly Management Updates contained latest financials
with summaries of key events of the Group, giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in
the boardroom and has adopted the board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee has primary
responsibility for identifying and giving recommendation suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate Board decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board has also regularly reviewed the contribution of each
Director as to whether the Director is spending sufficient time to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Board.

The Board considers that the current composition of the Board, with
core competencies in areas such as accounting and finance, business
and management, medical science, legal profession, marketing
management, media development and M&A, is appropriate for the
businesses of the Company. The Board will review its composition
from time to time taking into consideration of the specific needs for
the overall Company and its subsidiaries’ businesses.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Board Composition and Board Practices (Cont’d)

During this financial year, there were five independent non-executive
Directors so that there is a strong element of independence in the
Board to exercise independent judgment and of sufficient caliber
and number for their views to carry weight. Amongst them, at least
two of the independent non-executive Directors have professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors have the same duties of
care and skill and fiduciary duties as the executive Directors. Their
functions include, but not limited to:

° participating in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of corporate strategy, corporate
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standard of conducts;

° taking the lead when potential conflicts of interests arise;

o serving on Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, if invited; and

° scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors of their independence to
the Company. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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J BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd) EEE (@)
Board Composition and Board Practices (Cont’d) EFECHKREFSZH (1)

The Board schedules four meetings a year at approximately quarterly EFESFLHHREH - KOBFRIT R
intervals and organises additional meetings as and when required. R ERERAMEINGE - ES0HANE
The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through other means B A GIAZEIRMAAI A AT 2 HMthEFEHT
of electronic communication in accordance with the Company’s HHEEH - ARFHREETHEETEEZ AR
articles of association. Notice of at least fourteen days is given of a T VPUK ' MMAESHLHBAN  FEERSLE
regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. &% c HMEFEREZEEGE —REBNAERK
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice time ~ FZE LB - RAFBFE - EFEHEBT KX
is generally given. During this financial year, the Board held nine & * HFRIMAAEHEH - TRIAIEARIZES
meetings, of which four were regular meetings. The following table ~FRHFEEHE 21BN

shows the attendance of individual Directors at the meetings held

during the year:

Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
General Meeting Board Meetings
entitled entitled
to attend to attend
Name of Directors EZ % HE/ BRLE HE/ BRLE
(From 1 May 2016 to 30 April 2017) (Z2— "R A-BE_T—+FMA=1+ A ) RRAEHE EXeo3¥E
Cao Funshun 3 N/A T 1/1
(resigned with effect from 18 July 2016) (RZZE—R"FLA+\HET)
Chan Bing Woon BRImR 1/1 9/9
Chen Chunguo BREE N/A @ FR 3/3
(appointed with effect from 25 January 2017) (RZE—tF-A-THAREZE)
Cui Zhanfeng EhE N/A T 7/7
(appointed with effect from 7 October 2016) (RZE—R"FTAtBREZT)
Deng Shaoping AT 0/1 11
(retired with effect from 9 September 2016) (RZE—R"FENANBREL)
Lui Tin Nang EPN:7 11 9/9
Pang Chung Fai Benny ZHE 11 9/9
Ray Yip & N/A i@ A 2/2
(appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) (RZE—tF_A-T=-HREZE)
Shao Zhengkang AR BR 1/1 9/9
Wang Hui I® 0/1 7/9
Wang Jianjun TEE 0/1 1/1
(retired with effect from 9 September 2016) (RZE—R"FENANBREE)
Wong Sai Hung gL 11 8/9
Wong Yiu Kit Ernest EiRf N/A @ FR 2/2
(appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) (RZE—tF-_AZT=-HREZE)
Xiong Chengyu BREF N/A @ FR N/A @R
(appointed with effect from 20 March 2017) (RZE—tF=-A=+HREZE)
Yang Zhengguo 15 EE N/A i A 1/1
(resigned with effect from 5 August 2016) (RZE—R"ENARHRET)
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TEERRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Board Composition and Board Practices (Cont’d)

Board papers are circulated at least three days (or other agreed
period) before the regular Board meetings and/or other Board/
Committees meetings to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings. In addition,
the Company has maintained a procedure for the Directors to seek
independent professional advice, in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense in discharging their duties to the Company.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
prepares minutes and/or written resolutions and keeps records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.
The Company Secretary also keeps the minutes, which are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

Continuing Professional Development

The Company Secretary is responsible for updating the Board on
governance and regulatory matters.

Training will be provided to newly appointed director to his/her
individual needs. This includes introduction to the Group business
activities, their responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory
requirements.

The Company will arrange and/or introduce training courses and/or
reading materials for Directors to develop and explore their knowledge
and skills.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills, ensuring that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. During this financial year,
all Directors participated in continuous professional development and
had provided the Company with records (if any) on their participation.
The individual training record of each Director for this financial year is
set out below:
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Continuing Professional Development (Cont’d)

Directors and Types of continuous professional development
programmes

Cao Funshun (resigned with effect from 18 July 2016) N/A
Chan Bing Woon AB,C
Chen Chunguo (appointed with effect from 25 January 2017) ABC
Cui Zhanfeng (appointed with effect from 7 October 2016) B C
Deng Shaoping (retired with effect from 9 September 2016) N/A
Lui Tin Nang AB,C
Pang Chung Fai Benny AB,C
Ray Yip (appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) AB,C
Shao Zhengkang AC
Wang Hui C
Wang Jianjun (retired with effect from 9 September 2016) N/A
Wong Sai Hung AB,C
Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) AB,C
Xiong Chengyu (appointed with effect from 20 March 2017) AB,C
Yang Zhengguo (resigned with effect from 5 August 2016) N/A

A: attending seminars/meetings/forums/conferences/courses/workshops
organized by professional bodies or regulatories

B: reading journals/newsletters/seminar materials/publications/magazines

C: reading memoranda issued or materials provided by the Company

All information and materials aforesaid relate, but not limited to the
latest development of the GEM Listing Rules, other applicable legal
and regulatory matters as well as directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the corporate activities,
which is in compliance with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

Appointment, Election and Re-election

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. It reviews the profiles of the candidates
and makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
nomination and retirement of the Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Appointment, Election and Re-election (Cont’d)

According to the Company’s articles of association, one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office at each annual general
meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once in every three years. The Directors who will
retire at the annual general meeting of the Company shall be those
appointed by the Board during the year and those who have been the
longest in office since their last election or re-election.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The following sets out the responsibilities for the Directors in relation
to the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements:

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements, and announcements
to Shareholders, the Directors aim to present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

Accounting Policy

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements,
the Group uses appropriate accounting policies that are consistently
applied, and that all applicable accounting standards are followed.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent or detect
fraud and other irregularities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
(Cont’d)

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

CHAIRMAN AND CEO

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the role of the Chairman
and the CEO should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and CEQ should be clearly established and set out in writing.

During the year, the roles of the Chairman and the CEO were
segregated and performed by different individuals.

On 7 October 2016, Mr. Wong Sai Hung was re-designated from
the Chairman to Vice-chairman and Professor Cui Zhanfeng was
appointed to serve as the Chairman.

On 23 February 2017, Dr. Shao Zhengkang has ceased to serve as
the CEO and Mr. Chen Chunguo was appointed to serve as the CEO.

The segregation of duties ensures a clear distinction of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the CEO which allows a balance of power
between the Board and the management of the Group, and ensures
their independence and accountability. There is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship between the Chairman
and the CEO.

Either Mr. Wong Sai Hung or Professor Cui Zhanfeng, as the
Chairman during this financial year, has taken overall responsibility for
providing leadership for the Board. They ensure that:

° the Board functions effectively, and that all key and appropriate
issues are properly briefed and discussed by the Board in a
timely manner;

° the responsibilities for drawing up the agenda for each Board
meeting and, where appropriate, taking into account any
matters proposed by each Director for inclusion in the agenda;

° good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established and encourages all Directors to make full and active
participation to the affairs of the Group; and

° the Board acts in the best interests of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN AND CEO (Cont’d)

Either Dr. Shao Zhengkang or Mr. Chen Chunguo as the CEO during
this financial year, was responsible for the day-to-day management
of the business of the Group, attends to formulation and successful
implementation of policies, and assumes full accountability to the
Board for all operations of the Group.

Mr. Chen possesses extensive experience in investment, M&A and
corporate management. He has given valuable experience and
contribution to the Group. Working with the management team of
each core business division, he ensures the smooth operations and
development of the Group. He maintains a continuing dialogue with
the Chairman and all Directors to keep them fully informed of all major
business development and issues.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and are subject to re-election.
All non-executive Directors (including Independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company are appointed for a term of two years and
they are required to retire by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE
OFFICER

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
Board procedures are followed and that the Board is fully briefed on
all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance development and
accounts for such when making decisions. The compliance officer
is directly responsible for advising on and assisting the Board in
implementing procedures to ensure the Company complies with the
GEM Listing Rules and other relevant Laws and regulations applicable
to the Company.

According to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, in each financial
year an issuer’s company secretary must take no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training. During this financial year, the
Company Secretary has complied with the rule by taking more than
15 hours of relevant training courses and seminars.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

According to code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code, the Company
has to set up a nomination committee with a majority of the
members thereof being independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee has been established since 22 July 2005 with
written terms of reference which was revised on 16 March 2016 in
compliance with code provision A.5.2 of the CG code.

During this financial year, following the nomination of Mr. Wong Sai
Hung, Dr. Shao Zhengkang, Mr. Chen Chunguo, Dr. Ray Yip and
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest on 23 February 2017 as the members of
the Nomination Committee on, the total members of the Nomination
Committee are nine and majority are independent non-executive
Directors.

Mr. Lui Tin Nang has served as chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least
once a year. The quorum shall be any two members.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include:

° to make recommendations to the Board on all new
appointments or re-appointments of Directors, the establishment
of a succession plan for Directors, in particular the Chairman
and the CEO and the composition of the Board;

° to identify and nominate qualified individuals, subject to the
approval of the Board, to be additional Directors or to fill
vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;

° to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each Director to the Board;

° to review the Board structure, size, composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity as well as the
independent element of the Board on an annual basis and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° to develop the criteria for selection of Directors; and

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

During this financial year, six meetings of the Nomination Committee
were held to review and recommend the structure, size, composition
and diversity of the Board. Altogether the members of the Board
bring a wide range of knowledge and experience to the Board,
which contributes to the effective direction of the Company. The
following table shows the attendance of the members of Nomination
Committee at the meetings of the Nomination Committee held during
the year:
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Attendance/

Number of

Meetings

entitled

to attend

Name of Nomination Committee Members 24 ZE &R B4 & HE/BRHE
(From 1 May 2016 to 30 April 2017) (ZE— A~ RA-BE-_Z—+FNA=+HHMHE) R
Chan Bing Woon B A% 6/6
Chen Chunguo (appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) B&EE (R-ZF—tF_A-+=AREZT) 212
Lui Tin Nang (chairman of the Committee) BAEE (FEEETE) 6/6
Pang Chung Fai Benny ZHE 6/6
Ray Yip (appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) ¥& (RZZ—tF-_A-T=AREZT) 212
Shao Zhengkang (appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) BMER (RZE—tF-_A-T=HREZ{T) 2/2
Wang Hui T 5/6
Wong Sai Hung (appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) Ettl (R-F—tF_A-+=AREZT) 212
Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) R4 (R-ZF—tF_A-T=AREZT) 2/2

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has to set up a remuneration committee with a majority of the
members thereof being independent non-executive directors. The
Remuneration Committee has been established since 22 July 2005
with written terms of reference which was revised on 16 March 2016
in compliance with code provision B.1.2 of the CG code.

During this financial year, following the nomination of Mr. Wong Sai
Hung, Dr. Shao Zhengkang, Mr. Chen Chunguo, Dr. Ray Yip and Mr.
Wong Yiu Kit Ernest on 23 February 2017 as the members of the
Remuneration Committee, the total members of the Remuneration
Committee are nine.

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny has served as chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee is
scheduled to meet at least once a year. The quorum shall be any two
members.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

° to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

° to recommend a fair and transparent framework of executive
remuneration for the Board and senior management of the
Company, including share option scheme, based on the
skill, knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and
by reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits-in-kind, pension rights, and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
the non-executive Directors.

No Directors can determine their own remuneration package. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting. In
developing remuneration policies and making recommendation as
to the remuneration of the Directors and senior management, the
Remuneration Committee takes into account of the corporate goals
and objectives of the Group as well as the performance of those
individual Directors and senior management.

The remuneration package of Directors and senior management
includes the following:

(@) Basic salary

The basic salary (inclusive of statutory employer contributions to
Provident Fund) of each executive Director/senior management
is recommended by the Remuneration Committee, taking into
account the performance of the individual, the inflation price
index and information from independent sources on the rates
of salary for similar jobs in a selected group of comparable
organisations.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

yMEsE (&)

(b) Fees b) #E
Fees paid/payable to the executive Directors are determined by B EARTEZSZHNE  AEBEGLE
the Board after considering the individual’s relative performance BIAARI @ WHHAIELLREIBEZ RE1E
against the comparable organisations. The fees paid/payable to BE - BN/ EMNERTESZHRE F £F
the non-executive Directors take into account factors such as RZEEETFERFICERERBE M
effort and time spent, and responsibilities of these Directors. EiE

(c) Bonus scheme (c) 7TEALE 2]
The Group operates a bonus scheme for all employees, TEERMEEL (BERTEZRSRE
including the executive Directors and senior management. BAB) B IEAFE o ZEHEI 2 ERIRA
The criteria for the scheme is the level of profit achieved from EEETHBEBMERZBIKFERZ
certain aspects of the Group’s business activities against 2R AR ERBAFRRRFE -
targets, together with an assessment of corporate and FTHNEESBRIENRTES BRER
individual’s performance during the year. Bonuses payable to ANB 2Tl - WAHESSHE - UBEREGE
the executive Directors/senior management are reviewed by the IR EBEFIZS o
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board to ensure
alignment of their interests with those of Shareholders.

(d) Benefits in kind (@ EYFz
Other customary benefits (such as private medical cover) are Efh—MAEF (A BEIRE) 570
made available as appropriate. ERREH o

(€) Share options scheme (e) FEIRFEZ

The Group operates a share option scheme for participants,

ZIK%II%/ HE BREE SABEEA

including Directors, senior management, employees, suppliers 8- -EE HEBLEFR iﬁﬁﬂxﬁéfqﬂriﬂ
and customers. The terms of the scheme are set out in note B 2 AERE R IS IRERMIFE33 - AA

33 to the financial statements. The movement of share options
under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on
14 September 2011 during the year ended 30 April 2017 is set
out on pages 122 to 131 of this annual report.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to the Directors by the
Company in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company. The amounts paid to each Director for the year ended 30
April 2017 are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.
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J REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

During this financial year, seven meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held to review the remuneration package of the
Board and the senior management. The following table shows the
attendance of the members of Remuneration Committee at the
meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during the year:

Attendance/

Number of

Meetings

entitled

to attend

Name of Remuneration Committee Members HMZS &R S 4 HE/BRHE

(From 1 May 2016 to 30 April 2017) (ZE—~ERA-BE-Z—+FNA=+HHME) R

Chan Bing Woon BRimsR 77

Chen Chunguo (appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) B&EE (R-ZF—tF_A-+=AREZT) 212

Lui Tin Nang EPN: 7/7

Pang Chung Fai Benny ~ (chairman of the Committee) ZHiE (FZE21R) 7

Ray Yip (appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) X% (RZE—+F-A-+=-AREZHT) 212

Shao Zhengkang (appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) BMERE (RZE—tF-_A-T=HREZ{T) 2/2

Wang Hui T 6/7

Wong Sai Hung (appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) Ettl (R-F—tF_A-T=AREZT) 212

Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) =4 (R-ZF—tF_A-T=AREZT) 2/2
AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREES

According to Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
to establish an audit committee comprising of at least three members
who must be non-executive directors only, and the majority thereof
must be independent non-executive directors, at least one of whom
must have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Audit Committee has
been established since 4 July 2001 with written terms of reference
which was revised on 16 March 2016 in compliance with the code
provision C.3.3 and C.3.7 of the CG Code.

During this financial year, following the nomination of Professor Cui
Zhanfeng, Dr. Ray Yip and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest on 23 February
2017 and Professor Xiong Chengyu on 20 March 2017 as the
members of the Audit Committee, the total members of the Audit
Committee are eight and majority are independent non-executive
Directors.

Mr. Lui Tin Nang has served as chairman of the Audit Committee. The
quorum shall be any two members.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The principal
functions of the Audit Committee include:

° to consider and recommend the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors;

° to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditors, any questions of resignation or dismissal of
external auditors;

° to review and monitor external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in

accordance with applicable standards;

° to discuss with external auditors the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

° to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditors to supply non-audit services and to make
recommendations on any measures for improvements to be
taken;

° to review the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements
and the quarterly, interim and annual reports before submission
to the Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting principles and standards;
and

(vi)  compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

'J

BERZEGZBERESNE ?&Fﬁ&zﬁ G

ERNMEBERE - B NERINEZEEAED

BEAESNISAZ BRED 2 BN MBS R R - IARE
BRSNS AZ BUEM 2 B (kAR SR R RE

*ﬁET&Eﬁ%—iﬁ\\ﬁ%’f?%(EﬁZ?%I'\E&%TEE’I‘EE '
AR ARG E IR EETTE R 2 B

HERAEZA - EIMNEZBEI R B 2 1E
ENEE  AREHRZEME
HE KR B MIMNE B IR L IFE R RS

ZIRE - WS ERE Z (R R E e VR

WAEE PHRERFEVBRE - URF
B FHRFERS  BRRXESE  EF
JLEBEF

() EFBRRERZANEZS

(iy EBHRAVE 2 &

(i) BEFZMIEL 2 ERNFE

(v) FELERBAREMREB

(v) SFEFTRARAER

vy BTEPE2HRAMIAIERLETR
A FORERTE

2016 /2017 3§ PEBLEELEEFRAS '@



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1P

/\-/-\—\

/l:l#&m

J AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

to review the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems and ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have an effective internal control system;

to consider major investigations findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response;

to review the external auditors’ management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditors to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response and to ensure that the Board will
provide a timely response to the issues raised; and

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any
matter under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain
independent professional advice. It is given full access to and
assistance from the management and reasonable resources to
discharge its duties properly.

During the financial year, the Audit Committee has met once with the
external auditor without the presence of the management.

The Group’s results for the three months ended 31 July 2016, six
months ended 31 October 2016, nine months ended 31 January
2017 and audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 April 2017 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d) BEREES (&)

During the financial year, five meetings of the Audit Committee
were held to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal control of the Group. The following table shows the
attendance of the members of Audit Committee at the meetings of
the Audit Committee held during the year:

Attendance/

Number of

Meetings

entitled

to attend

Name of Audit Committee Members B ZE KB % HE/BRHE
(From 1 May 2016 to 30 April 2017) (ZE—~ERA-BE-Z—+FNA=+HHME) R
Chan Bing Woon BRimsR 5/5
Cui Zhanfeng (appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) EhLE (RZE—tF-A-T=HRBEZT) 1/1
Lui Tin Nang (chairman of the Committee) BAEE (FEEETE) 5/5
Pang Chung Fai Benny ZHE 5/5
Ray Yip (appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) ¥& (RZZ—tF_A-T=AREZT) 1/1
Wang Hui T 5/5
Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (appointed with effect from 23 February 2017) =4 (R-ZF—tF_A-T=AREZT) 1/1
Xiong Chengyu (appointed with effect from 20 March 2017)  R&EF (RZZ—tF AT HREZT) 1/1

Full minutes of the Audit Committee are kept by the Company BRZRZEES/TEERLHERAANERT &
Secretary. Minutes are drafted and finalised in sufficient details and i VR EERARFEI R EHERE 2

are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee, as the case
may be, for their comments and records within reasonable time after
the conclusion of the meetings.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An amount of HK$790,000 (2016: HK$720,000) was charged to
the Group for the year ended 30 April 2017 for the auditing services
provided by BDO Limited, the existing auditor of the Company who
was appointed on 13 December 2010. There was no non-audit
service provided by BDO Limited during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

According to code provision D.3 of the CG code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Company in accordance with the written terms of reference adopted
by the Board on 15 March 2012. The Board shall have the following
duties and responsibilities for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
and disclosure in the corporate governance report in the annual
report of the Company.

During this financial year, the Board has performed the above
corporate governance functions through discussion in the Board
meeting and by reviewing the Company’s policies and practices from
time to time in accordance with the legal and regulatory requirements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s internal
control system includes policies and procedures and limits of authority
governing the authority level and business processes. It is designed
to help achieve business objectives, to safeguard assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, to maintain proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information and to ensure
compliance with relevant legislations and regulations. The system is
intended to manage rather than to eliminate or eradicate risks.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont’d)

Risk Management Process

With the support from internal control adviser (“the Adviser”), the
Group has performed risk management procedures including risk
identifications, risk assessments, risk prioritization as well as risk
owner appointment. Management’s inputs on risk exposures were
obtained through risk identification questionnaires. Identified risks
have been further assessed and evaluated by the Management
across the business lines. The risks have been evaluated in terms
of their impacts and the likelihood of their occurrences. As part of
the evaluation process, the risks have been prioritized based on the
evaluation results. Follow up action on key identified risks are being
taken by the management.

Risk governance structure

The Group has established an enterprise risk management structure
in line with the “Three Lines of Defense” model that defines the three
layers of roles and responsibilities of oversight, risk monitoring and
review as well as risk and control ownership.

The Group’s operating units are the first line of defense. They
are responsible for the day-to-day risk management and control
procedures. The second line of defense is led by the Group’s
Management who are responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring over the Group’s risk exposure. The third line of
defense comprises the Audit Committee and the Group’ outsourced
internal auditor. The Third line of defense is responsible for the
independent assessment of the effectiveness of our risk management
and internal control systems. The external auditor of the Group
further complements the third line of defense by independently
auditing material internal controls over the Group’s financial reporting
processes and reports on material control weaknesses to the Audit
Committee on a regular basis.

Internal Control

The Board has engaged the Adviser to conduct internal control
review over the key business operations of the Group for the year
ended 30 April 2017. The scope of the review includes key business
subsidiaries and the scope of review has been determined and
approved by the Board. Findings and areas for improvement have
been communicated to the Management. The Board and the Audit
Committee are of the view there are no material internal control
defects during the course of review.
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CODES AND POLICIES

Securities Dealing Code

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions as set out in the GEM Listing Rules as the
required standard for securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of the Directors, has
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standards of
dealings regarding securities transaction by the Directors as set out
on the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 30 April 2017.

Code of Ethics

The Company adopts a Code of Ethics that applies to the
Company'’s principal executive officer and senior financial officers
in the conduct and practice of financial management and lays
down the key principles that they shall follow and advocate, which
include honest and ethical conduct; full, fair, accurate, timely and
understandable disclosure; compliance with the GEM Listing Rules
and accounting standards and regulations; prompt internal reporting;
and accountability for adherence to the code. The Code of Ethics is
also intended to promote the ethical standards of all the employees,
officers and Directors in the workplace, and advocate high standards
of professional conduct and work performance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT

The Company values communication with Shareholders and
investors. The Company uses two-way communication channels to
account to Shareholders and investors for the performance of the
Company. Enquiries and suggestions from Shareholders or investors
are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders or investors may
be put to the Board through the following channels to the Company
Secretary:

1. By mail to the Company’s head office at 10th Floor, Everbright
Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong;

2. By telephone at telephone number (852) 3966 8388;
3. By fax at fax number (852) 2802 0026; or

4. By email at info@crmi.hk
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (Cont’d)

The Company uses a number of formal communication channels to
account to Shareholders and investors for the performance of the
Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly, interim and
annual reports; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary general
meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise comments and
exchanging views with the Board; (jii) updated and key information
of the Group available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offering communication
channel between the Company and its Shareholders and investors;
and (v) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong serving the
Shareholders in respect of all share registration matters.

The Company aims to provide its Shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board
is committed to providing clear and detailed information of the
Group and on a timely and regular basis to Shareholders through
the publication and/or dispatching of quarterly, interim and annual
reports, circular, notices, and other announcements.

The Company strives to take into consideration its Shareholders’
views and inputs, and address Shareholders’ concerns. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting for which at
least 20 clear business days’ notice will be given. The Chairman as
well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, or in their absence, the Directors
are available to answer Shareholders’ questions on the Group’s
businesses at the meeting. To comply with code provision E.1.2 of the
CG Code, the management will ensure the external auditor to attend
the annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence. All Shareholders have
statutory rights to call for extraordinary general meetings and put
forward agenda items for consideration by Shareholders.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (Cont’d)

According to the Company’s articles of association, general meetings
shall be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
Shareholders deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. General
meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of any one
member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company. The poll will be conducted by
the share registrar of the Company and the results of the poll are
published on the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a
written notice (the “Notice”) at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong at 10th Floor, Everbright Centre, 108 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the personal
information of the Candidate as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM
Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (i) must be signed by
the Shareholder concerned including the information/documents to
verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the Candidate
indicating his/her willingness to be elected and consent of publication
of his/her personal data. The period for lodgement of the Notice shall
commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such meeting. In order to ensure
the Shareholders have sufficient time to receive and consider the
proposal of election of the Candidate as a Director without adjourning
the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the
Notice as soon as practicable, say at least 15 business days prior to
the date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy
on 15 March 2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness to comply with the code provision E.1.4 of the CG code.

In order to promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website (www.crmi.hk) which includes the latest
information relating to the Group and its businesses.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited ("CRMI") (Stock
Code: 8158) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter "the Group") are pleased
to present the Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
(the "ESG Report") for the year ended 30 April 2017 and express
the commitment of the Group to sustainability. This is the first ESG
Report of the Group which discloses the management, policies,
performance, targets and feedbacks of the business of the Group
in providing services in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC")
and Hong Kong in relation to sustainable development. The Group
would like to take this opportunity to present ESG performance to all
investors and stakeholders, and put forward the commitments and
contributions on social responsibility.

Report Compilation Basis

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide enclosed in Appendix 20 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on Growth Enterprise Market published by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited to fulfil all general disclosure
requirements.

For details of the Group’s financial performance and corporate
governance issues, please refer to the previous sections of the annual
report of which this ESG Report forms part.

Source of Data

The data and case studies reported in this ESG Report are prepared
based on our internal statistics, internal policy documents and
other internal records. The Group hereby confirms that no false or
misleading statements are made in this ESG Report.

This ESG Report contains forward-looking statements that are
based on several assumptions and expectations at the time of its
publication. Those assumptions and expectations are deemed to be
reliable after internal reviewing process. The statements consist of
known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which implies that actual
results may differ from the expectations, forecasts and conclusions
made herein.
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OUR VALUE

The Group currently focuses on four major business segments,
namely tissue engineering, cell, cosmetic and others and medical
equipment. ‘ActivSkin’, the only tissue-engineered skin developed
in the PRC that contains living cells, engraved a leading position in
tissue engineering and regenerative medicine industry. Patients whom
applied the ActivSkin can shorten healing time for burns and scalds,
and relieve pain. ‘Acornea’, the world’s first bio-engineered cornea
which completed its clinical trials and obtained China Food and Drug
Administration (“CFDA”) approval for commercialization, helps elevate
the Group as well as the nation to the world stage of regenerative
medicine research.

Other tissue engineering products of CRMI include: Calcined Bovine
Bone — “Gegreen”, Acellular Anal Fistula Repair Stroma — “Asiunin”,
Cell Sheet-Autologous Chondrocyte Implantation — “CS-ACI”,
Guided Tissue Regeneration Biological Membrane — “Megreen”. With
sophisticated technology and know-how on live cell culture, CRMI
has launched a series of bioactive cosmetics called “AMYbio”that
aims to enter the anti-aging, beauty and healthcare industry. Also,
CRMI has collaborated with Mila D’Opiz Group in Switzerland to
research, develop and production of famous biomedical skincare
products “Ascara” and responsible for its overall business in the PRC.
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OUR VALUE (Cont’d) BMNEHE (&)

To become a global
leading force in medical
innovation
SINEI
RS - 5| RRIR
BEEH

To become China’s one
of the pioneers in tissue
engineering and bio-

medical industry Strive to enhance health
AR B4R TR A and improve quality of
HE )R G S L R — life To lead a new era into
BHEFRE A LT the construction of
HESENREED human’s organs and
tissues from tissue
engineering development
SRR IIRER
MARBRE MABEEE
BIFETACTT

To develop cutting-
edge medical products
and technologies with a
focus on innovation in
regeneration medicine
B EE B RAEMR
Bl BENBARE
ob=p=3=Ei

A value-creating business — this is what the Group aim to be. The /R —REIEEEHN R - EAKEH ZERD
Group achieves this goal by leveraging the biological science research B 1% ° RE BB /RFEE A Y RIEMT 5T A A BE
competence to create a positive impact to the world. The research of /1 * AR EEEBIGRH L o NE BB
the Group contributes the society by catalyzing bio-medical research ~ HEEVE Y B EAEMNER - RESHELER - &
and development. The services make biological sciences research 189 AR % A] 8 2% 4 52 4 W BT B ST AR - P 55 B0 B
more efficient by shortening the time required for biotechnology [ @ IE@ A MBI B RUE - ZEK - BEBER
research procedures. Since the Group is brave in taking innovative ~ BIFTEVKE S - RNEB KN ER ZIABE K EWE
steps, it has contributed to breakthroughs in medical and biological ~ ZfFTZRE - THTEBEEEE -

science research over the years — thus living out the value.
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OUR VALUE (Cont’d) EKMNEE (&)
The Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility Model AEFHLEFEHEELEL

The ESG Report provides detailed explanations with regard to the  ®3%  H & RERMEFMANA T AKE T5 b
Group’s corporate social responsibility model, shown in below, on X @B EER - BEFHEBE  EEREH -
different aspects, including stakeholder communication, employee R HEZ % - RIFRE - A FLE HEHERR
welfare, health and safety, environmental protection, fair operation, #FFAIFHEZEREHE °

social contribution and maintaining sustainability.

Stakeholder Communication
Fel 5 i
Fair Operation
AT

Employee Welfare

& B 1wl
Social Contribution

A ERR

Health and Safety CRMHI
i e S % 4 thE B4 EEEs

Maintain Sustainability

AT AT R A B R

Environmental Protection

BRBE IR
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OUR VALUE (Cont’d) KFMEE (5
Our Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility Model AEFYEEMEEFES (B
(Cont’d)

=

The Group has conducted a comprehensive materiality assessment AEEERAEENCEHEEERNETEE
with regard to the Group’s corporate social responsibility model to B9 8 21 RVl LA Al I Bt SRS IO A7 ~ IR 3% Jeat
identify issues that reflect significant economic, environmental and EBHAEZBEAZEZERHBHEMEBRAE
social impacts of the business, and the issues that matter most to 22 F18 « REBEFTEER - NEBECHRAT 7
stakeholders. Based on the results of the assessment, the Group has & Z &3 i AL AR -

identified the following 17 material areas for inclusion in this report:

Contribution to local economic development
i 5 B EROAR

Bribery ang corruption
IR R AT

Data privacy and security
BRI SR 2

Corporate governance
TEER

Diversity and equal opportunities
St R TEKS

Energy conservation

Greenhouse gas emissions

BEREBIEK

Intellectual property

HBERE

Occupational health and safety
BEERELTE

Spirit of the contracts
BB

Stakeholder engagement Supply chain management and product responsibility

FHE2E HEEEERERET
Support in community development/Community care Team Profile
TRt RERHREE ElESEP

Use of resources

BIRER

Training and education
BIR#E

Waste management
REE TR

For detail of contribution to local economic development and BEEHFLEBEEZENERILPEE G ZFFE -
corporate governance, please refer to the previous sections of the BT IR AT EE o
annual report.
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iﬁiﬁ Zi&kk\ FYI:I

J STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND BHENSHEREEM
MATERIALITY

The Group understands that the long-term success is due to the AEEARRAOKNINFTREXENAIFEER
commitment to the sustainability of businesses and the diligent and R EIVEEIFT - MEF REEBHRHEE RS X
innovative employees who deliver quality services to the clients and ~ HAEE & TROHEELBEEENERMNES -
business partners and make worthwhile contributions to several

stakeholders of the Group.

The Group has consolidated and identified seven different groups of AN EBEARE R#M P K EF Z X B+ ETR
stakeholders that are related to its main business. These stakeholders ~ #FfA & D4 - ZER/FMHEBEBERH - 1= -
include business partners, community, customers, employees, &7 *EE * BN - HERKRE 1REE -
government, media and shareholders/investors.

The Group regards stakeholder’s opinions as a key to the long term  AEBERARNEMNER NE RPN R FHE
success and sustainable development. The Group will increase the /& E’Jfﬂ'ﬁfk RNEE S FE BRI AR MR
involvement of stakeholders via constructive conversation in order to & F)2 8L - LUER REFELER o

achieve long-term prosperity.

Stakeholder Communication Channels
R BERE

Business Partners 1.Company news updates
[EZEZ 253 NRFTEER

2.Email, facsimile and phone contacts
B  FEREFBEIN

3.Visits and regular meetings
FE ke

Community 1.Company website
#HE YNCIEER

2.ESG Report
BE - HgRERWRS

3.Proactive visits
FHEHMHE

4.Sponsorship of public welfare activities
= IYNEE)
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND BEmENZSEREEMN (8)
MATERIALITY (Cont'd)
Stakeholders Communication Channels
& BBRE
Customers 1.Company news updates
Py AR E

2.Conference

i

3.Customer Service Hotline

B P IR 2 AR

4.Email, facsimile and phone contacts
TH - FARTEBESTR

Employees 1. E-mail
== S
2.Internal website
BB A
3.Regular meetings
plg
Government 1.Cooperate with the government and regulatory authorities on
B compliance inspections

EBNTREERENERRE
2.Conference
L

3.Email, facsimile and phone contacts
B FERBEFEBE T

Media 1.Company website
IRee NGIE
2.Press releases
#E A
Shareholders/Investors 1.Annual General Meeting
BRRREE REBEFAE
2.Company news updates
NEFTEER

3.Email, facsimile and phone contacts
B BAREEBGTR

4.HKEXx Website: announcements, notices, annual reports, etc.
EBRZ SR - RE - BE - FRE

5.Press releases
FTEEH
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

The Group recognizes the importance of good environmental
stewardship and is committed to protect and conserve the
environment. The Group hopes that the concept of environmental
sustainability lies in all aspects of daily operation.

The Group strives to balance quality, price and environmental
impact when consuming resources and materials. The Group is
closely monitoring the energy consumption and water consumption,
and impressing employees on the rationale and importance of
environmentally friendly choices.

As principal operation is based in the PRC, the Group is principally
subject to the PRC environmental laws and regulations such as A1
AR EMBIREREE (Environmental Protection Law of the PRC#),
FREE A RENENGTRBGAA (Law on the Prevention and Control
of Water Pollution of the PRC#), and A% A R HFEI AR5 20756
7% (Law on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of
the PRC#). The senior management team are delegated to perform
the maintenance of the Group’s sustainability. The representatives
of each operation management team, actively manages business in
an environmentally and socially responsible manner. The Group will
review the key processes and identify possible aspects underlying the
operation of such department annually. The senior management team
will also discuss on any significant aspects identified, and design
measures accordingly. These measures will be documented for
reference to ensure effective implementation.

* for identification only

REEH

AEEROIRFNRTEENSTEN - IWD
RERE - AEEREREAFBELERNERE
BNESHEENSEE® -

EHRERMM BRI  REBRHINERE
B ERERRFENTE - ARETIEE
RBFRENFEKE - WAB TRFEERERT AN
ERRBEN -

HRAREEEETRHEE  HAKEERET
FERRARKESR - Pl EARKANBEIRE
REE ~ EAREMBAGTREEERPEA
REMBARISRIEE - 2R EREEBER
REEREENAHERR SKEEEERK
ZRRBEEBHARGRIEHEREZHAETEE
%o ARESEFRIERRERBAIAE B
MEER RS RNER - SREEBEBTE
P 38 B B9 1T (] BB K B 1 H#E 1T 57 am M I E AR B 1S
e o ZEEHEFEE2EURRERER -
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Cont’d) RIZEE (&)

The Group’s ultimate goal is to minimize the adverse impact of ~AEBEM &L B IZE 5L IRIF TR 2 2%
businesses on the environment. The efforts being made throughout ~ EHIX o REBRAFEZAAVERN TIEEAEWNT
the year can be concluded as follows:

Practice =#2

I8N Avoiding generating waste that polluted the environment
R E TR IRITHRER

2B Compliance with all relevant laws, regulations, rules and requirements of environmental protection
BT IARGERERBAER AR REREX

e Creation of an environment for sustainable development
BIER B ERNRR

Z88 Provision of training for employees on the protection of the environment
RETIRHABRERRANE

8 Reduction in the consumption of various resources including raw materials and fuel

O BEREEIRHEFRE - BIERME LR

A Reduction in the generation of waste, recycling and reusing as much as possible of the waste
AR ESE - W] se R RLETT R AMNBER B A

& Using environmentally friendly materials as well as design, technology and raw materials capable of conserving
energy and reducing waste
TEERET ~ BRTERMEIAER L - REHEAREMEL - ATE Q8RR Bk

sl Vigorous promotion and implementation of the recyclable economy, minimizing and avoiding negative effects to the
environment due to the Group’s development

AAMEENERBREE  ROMBEEAKEENERIRFERNEAATE

2016 /2017 £k PEFEBEBEFRAT ‘ @



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRIR e lEaksE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Cont’d)

Use of Resources

The Group understands that an excellent resource management
system can improve the efficiency of utilization of resources.
Resources consumed in the daily business operation are mainly
electricity, water and paper. The Group has monitored the use of
resource, specified the duties and authority of relevant employees,
and avoided resource wastage. Measures aimed at controlling the
use of the electricity and fuel in air-conditioning, lighting, machinery
and vehicles, as well as water consumption in its operations and
daily usage by the Group’s staff are put in place. For example, the
Group arranges air-conditioning and light zoning in offices to minimize
unnecessary energy wastage. After the work is done, all electric
equipment must be turned off. In addition, the Group arranges for the
equipment and vehicles to undergo regular maintenance in order to
improve the performance of equipment and to dispose high energy
consumption equipment as part of the efforts to conserve resources
at source.

Currently, water resources supply comes from the government via its
domestic water supply. The Group is strengthening the management
of water usage and the inspection of water conservation. The
Group has adopted internal guidelines and provides staff education
to promote water conservation, as well as routinely inspects
and upkeeps water supply facilities, to reduce water wastage.
Rectifications would be implemented whenever a water leakage is
found.

Management of Wastes

The Group has taken several measures to deal with wastes. The
Group strictly complies with local regulations to ensure safe treatment,
transportation, storage, use, recycle or reuse and disposal for them.
The Group also conforms to industry practices in order to reduce
wastes. The main emissions of the operation include wastes, polluted
water and exhaust gas. The Group intends to minimize environmental
impacts associated with wastes generated from the operations.

RIREHE ()
BIREH

AEERARMNEREEEREAVIRAER
ERAME AREKLERBNEREBEN
KRR - ARBEEEERNERBR - HHE
JIHERREBMNBERER  HEBERRE - K%
BHER - R BENEWETMRANENR
AR AREEMAKEE T HENKER  #
117 BB HEMIESEE - Pla0 - REEHH
RENEFHRR LB B ETHAES - AR DT
ZHRERRE - TIEERIR > IENETFREL
FRAE - WS AERBERFRELEWETED
RE - URARBUENBESEERE 8BS
RSB LR EIR ©

2R KEREETS BB E b HKERPIER M -
AREBEMBRAKER - WIREEHLIAK - K&
BERMANERIESI RSB THETHE AR EE
KT KA B2 TE B R e i SRR B AR D 7)OR
B mBERRKIER  BEETEE -

BEYEE

AEBECROZAEGEERY - AEBEREE
SEWESR  NERLE2RE  EH - H7TF @
A BN ENAREEME - NREBETERE
RERARLEY - AEEEENTIRERDE
YREEY) - KRR c AEERREEEESE
BEYHBERELE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Cont’d)

Management of Wastes (Cont’d)

In this regard, the Group promotes the “3-R” concept which aims at
minimizing, to the extent practicable, the amount of wastes produced
during the course of the Group’s business operations. The term “3-R”
represents:

Practice
B

Concept

REEME (&)
BEYEE (&)
ARBERU ST ERT (3RS FERDE

ATHBRA TR AREEEHEZEBRETME
HHIEEEYEE - [3-R] 45 -

a) Reduction

TR alternative materials, processes and procedures
FREAERME  REREFRIEITNER TR ELE B BEZYVNHE
OBl Reuse Reusing wastes generated and returning unused materials
BREA BIRBRELENERY REREREROME

9B Recycling
mREE

Reducing the volume of daily wastes generated to the extent practicable, by using

Converting waste materials into usable materials or extracting useful substances from
them, such as recycling packaging material and paper

R AT Ak s B BRI MYE - fIMERBEREMH RARR

Emission of Greenhouse Gases

In the global trend of emission reduction, the Group not only complies
with local regulations, but also conforms to industry practices in
order to reduce the emission of greenhouse gases. Greenhouse
gases by the Group are principally emitted from transport vehicles
commissioned. In addition to the direct and indirect gas emissions,
the use of electricity by the Group is also indirectly attributable to
production of greenhouse gases, most notably carbon dioxide, in
the electricity generation process. With reference to the kilowatt-hour
power generation to carbon dioxide emission ratio general adopted
in the PRC, approximately 2,010 tonnes of carbon dioxide were
attributable to the Group’s electricity usage in daily operation during
the year ended 30 April 2017.

IBER B

EHZRBBEOABE - NREERETEMER
Hh - TBRERERABDBEREHFN - A&
ERAERBIBZHNEERANERER - KE

BEREZRRER . AEENBETRERES
BERE ZABRENRZEBRETEEN_SA

ik - 2BHPBEBEANTENEESEYH — S
HELR  AEBREZE T —+FWNA=T
HtFEHELEREELAN2,010M — &1L
B o
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Cont’d)

Emission of Greenhouse Gases (Cont’d)

During the period, the Group did not receive any complaints, fines,
sanctions in respect of any environmental protection issues or
breaches of environmental regulations, and had not experienced any
material environmental incidents arising from daily activities. During
the year, no material administrative sanctions or penalties were
imposed upon the Group for the violation of environmental laws or
regulations which had an adverse impact on the operations.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

Labor Standards

The Group has set up a comprehensive set of human resource
policies stipulating rules on recruitment, compensation, training,
welfare, promotion guidelines and dismissal. In order to safeguard
benefits for the employees, the Group abides by FFZE A R 1L F1ET 44
&% (Labor Law of the PRC#), F#EEAREFEH L E A F)E (Labor
Contract Law of the PRC#), the Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong and employment laws applicable to relevant jurisdictions where
operations are located. Labor contracts or employment contracts
are entered into between the Group and the employees. Moreover,
the Group regularly monitors information related to employment to
prevent non-compliance with labor laws and regulations.

As the Group strictly adheres to the FZE AR EFIEIRKF AR
)% (Protection of Minors Law of the PRC*), the Employment of
Children Regulations of Hong Kong and other laws and regulations in
all aspects, the Group does not permit forced labor or employ child
labor under any circumstances.

Diversity and Equal Opportunities

In order to increase efficiency in hiring and to ensure consistency
and compliance in the recruitment and selection process, as well
as to promote a fair opportunities to each candidates, the Group
has detailed recruitment policies in place. An objective and carefully
documented recruitment process ensure that any discrimination risks
are minimized and give us the best possible chance of identifying
the right candidate. Regardless of nationality, gender, age, race,
religious belief or disability, etc, candidates with relevant professional
qualifications and working experience receive equal consideration for
employment.

# for identification only

RIREHE ()
IBERBEHA (E)

RARE  AEEYEZESBEMREREEL
ERIRROEREM I - FIRRHIE - HEE
HARBEHELENTAEAREER - RAF
B AEEYERERRRERIERMERS
RITE b Bk Ba 5 i 6 2 @A T M E -

HEER
% TEH

AEBECER - HB - B B B
KRR -EEZENANERBRAT - /R
BREERAMN AKEIETHREARANELSH
E - PEARANESHERZE  TEREMBIED
REEMAEMPIERENERERER - 584
Rk ERARIAAKEEEERIS  fHh - &
SEEHEREREREANERTTEEEE
REERER -

AEERZELESBERETHEARKMBER
REFEAREL - BEERAZERPI REMERZR
AR BB N ARES N AFFRES TN

BHEETL -

ZTIRFEHRE

RTRSHEEEEORE  UHREBERRZEB
B —SERERNE  ARAEIRE AR
RIS AEBECHEZFANEBERE -
BB B /DR EH RIS E Fr R B R T AR R
B XRBEMAVESEREARERERS - T
B R Fik - Bk RBEIXERE
% AREREEERLIELRORBELER
BERTHZEEFEHE -
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (Cont’d)

Team Profile

The Group recruits talents in a fair and equitable manner through
social media such as online platforms and newspaper advertisements.
Across the Group’s diversified business portfolio, as of 30 April 2017,
the Group had a workforce of 542 in a number of locations in the
PRC and Hong Kong. The composition of staffs was as follows:

weEm (&)
EE g

AEEFNBRLEFERBEEESHLGERATF
REMBEAST - EAEEZ LN EBKES
hREERE-ZT—+FNA=+HEETEH
MEBEE42FET - BTHAKIT ¢

56%

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY GENDER
BUERESNETAR

B Female Z1f M Male 214

44%

Categorized by employee’s gender, female employees accounted for
approximately 56% and male employees accounted for the remaining
44%. The Group has adopted equal employment opportunity policies
and treats all our employees equally, implying that their employment,
jobs allocation, remuneration and promotion.

RESMRDE KRB HEFG6%  MBIEE
BT 44% - REBRAFERERERR R
RNPHFEEES  BRERENER - TES
i HMREATE -
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weEm (&)
B &R (&)

SOCIAL ASPECTS (Cont’d)
Team Profile (Cont’d)
TOTAL WORKFORCE BY AGE
BRERSIDTHWE THEE
5% ﬁiﬁ 1%
12% wl
40%
W 20-30 W 31-40 41-50
208305 31E40m 41 E508%

42%
W 51-60 B Above 60
512603 608 L

As for employee distribution by age, aged 20 to 30 accounted for
approximately 42%, aged 31 to 40 accounted for approximately
40%, aged 41 to 50 accounted for approximately 12%, aged 51 to
60 accounted for approximately 5% and aged above 60 accounted
for approximately 1%.

REEBFHDTE 202305 E442% * 31 240
RAEHI40% © 41 EB05R 541 12% » 51 E 605k
#5% K60 BRIA F1E#I1%

30%

B Master
[

W Doctor of Philosophy (“Ph.D”)
B ([1Bt])

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY EDUCATION
BEBKFPETHNETHRR

~,

12%

40%

W Bachelor
2+

Ml Other
Eith

Diploma
SUR
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (Cont’d)
Team Profile (Cont’d)

Employees in different fields are the Group’s precious assets.
Categorized by education level, employees with Ph.D background
accounted for approximately 2% of the total number of employees;
employees with Master degree accounted for approximately 12%;
employees with Bachelor degree accounted for approximately 40%;
employees with diploma accounted for approximately 30%; and
others accounted for the remaining 16%.

Health and Safety

Safe, effective and cozy workplace is essential to support the Group’s
precious asset, employees. In addition to the international labor
standards and laws, the Group has created internal guidelines and
systems specific to industry to make sure employees would discharge
their duties effectively. The Group insists that the injuries and diseases
can be prevented effectively by identifying safety risks of various job
positions.

Employees Development and Training

The Group recognizes the importance of empowerment through
development and training in the Group. Equipping employees with the
appropriate knowledge not simply benefits the long term development
of the Group, but the society as a whole.

On-job Training
EREHE

Internal

AEB

Self-learning

B & iHE

Mutual
Communication

BORiR

2016 /2017 3} PEHEEZERBERAT

Training Course
= 5| BRI

External Parties
IEBHEHE

weEm (&)
B &R (&)

ZEEESHNEERTEBENEELE - HHAK
ok BEBLIBENEELMEEBHNY
2% HBEITEUMEEBNNI12% : HEE L
BAMREML40%  EEEEXERMNEEMY
30% : MEMMEEHERT 16% °

RERZZ
Z5 AR RAEN TERAYN L HAEEL

BEEEE EEZMEE - KEBRS TEARE
o REECHIEEPIFHHATENARRIES
KHIE - AERESRARCETERE - A5H
BRPHBERREETERBERNELE - LEER
PRIEEZNZ 2 E R -

1B S /R AIZ 3
AEERARBRREEYEAEE BB

RIVMEEBENANZ  TEANRARENRE
R HEBEMSTEERER -

On-site Visit
I E 2R

Case Database
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J SOCIAL ASPECTS (Cont’d) tEEm (&)
Employees Development and Training (Cont’d) 18 S Z/RAIZ (48)

Understanding that employees are a vital factor for success in the & B & 11T EUS R AT #E 8137 2 B g A
competitive industry and promotion of innovation, during the year the = @ B R Rt - REEBRAFAFBERB—ESR
Group continued to provide a wide range of training opportunities.  EZ BB I & o A& EREIE I QRN R
The total number of training hours provided by the Group was  1,270/)\Ef < &R & 15 M EE RE S BIEE TR A
approximately 1,270 hours. The comprehensive training and &I

development opportunities include, but not limited to the followings:

Development and training Target Summary of Training
BERAEI HR EHIHE
Induction Training New employees Introduction of the Group’s vision, mission, culture,
BT ARSI EB organizational structure, rules and regulations as well as
trainings on operational standards, job specifications, work
procedures and customer service etiquette for each department
of the Group
REB R - Ban - b - AEEE - RRAIRARGINT B
RASEZIAPIAREER - TIEHRE - TEREMNERR
T )
Measures for Implementation | Manufacturing Internal training on work safety in the daily operation
of Work Safety in departments HESENTIEL 2 AZBET
Production SLEERPT

TEHEEETERIR

Reinforcement Class for Quality control Comprehensive training specific to the quality control team
Managerial department on building effective coaching techniques; mastering problem
Representatives B analysis and decision making; strengthening interpersonal skills;
in Medical Equipment and recognizing team success with enthusiasm
Business EFSHEZERR BB SRR ZEREINTK

BESMEEREREERRIE REIEI  BEABRRERTT - RAVERZEBKI A EEH

= EERTINEEIE

Measures for the Supervision | Related Training on the measures deliberated and adopted at the

and Administration of departments executive meeting of the CFDA
Medical Devices AEMEABEN | YEEARTEYRERRBMNEEETIEREI
BRRMCLEEERIE
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (Cont’d)

weEm (&)
1ES #/RFZ (&

Employees Development and Training (Cont’d)

Development and training

R ML

Target
Hx

Summary of Training

I

Director’s Induction Training Directors Specific induction training for directors

EE ARG oS EEABARE

Training on Emotional Employees Training is provided to ensure the mental health of employees
Management EE RELIETI - AREIRIE B O IR R

Training on Detection Production Sessions regarding the detection technologies and CRO service
Technology, Detection technology process
Measures and Contract department B BRBEM R E TR E R R EN S
Research Organization’s A E R AT AR

(“CRQ”) Service Process
Management

ROBIBEAT ~ RORBIFER 2
LR EE IR RIE

i

Fire Safety Training
SH % 2 EL B

All employees
EEEE

Training on fire prevention and fire escape
FaBT KK K E B 2k A

Through comprehensive, diversified and systematic development
mechanism, the Group broadens the international perspectives of
the employees, deepens their professional knowledge, strengthens
corporate vision and brings out creative ideas to the ever-changing
environment.

FBRERE - ZTERRGICOBERES - REH
MARENERGE  RCEFEMRE - wd
EBERHEREBENRERBAR -
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (Cont’d)
Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are the Group’s long-term business partners. Stability, safety
and effectivity of product quality is directly influenced by the selection
of suppliers. To effectively manage the supply chain, the Group has
developed a comprehensive system for assessing new and existing
suppliers. The Group has further regulated the operational procedures
of evaluation and approval for main suppliers, and clarified the
suppliers’ qualification, selection principle, quality evaluation methods,
evaluation standard, and approval procedure for main supplier. The
Group requires suppliers to comply with local laws and regulations in
all aspects. Most of the supplies of the Group are procured from the
PRC. The PRC government has strict laws and regulations governing
social and environmental risks.

Anti-corruption

To ensure honest, loyal behaviors and ethical conduct among
employees, the Group has adopted code of ethics and applicable
requirement of the relevant anti-corruption laws and regulations, so
as to enable employees’ conducts and behavior to be monitored
throughout daily operations. The Group performs annual self-
evaluation to look at the implementation of code of ethics and
relevant laws and regulations, the objective of which is to ensure the
thoroughness and consistency in actual operations and management
practices, with a view to balancing and safeguarding interests of the
stakeholders and establishing long-term partnerships. The Group
also engaged independent auditors to carry out external audits and
internal control reviews on the Group, aiming at preventing corruptive
behaviors within the Group through internal supervision and external
audits.

During the period, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with any relevant standards, rules, codes and regulations.
There were no complaints of corruption against the Group or any of
the Group’s employees during the year.

Product Responsibility

The Group strives for products and services excellence across all the
business activities. To protect the samples from contamination in the
laboratory, the Group has devised procedures for operations in the
laboratory. The Group also requires the laboratory technicians to wear
protection suits and to regularly clean and disinfect the laboratory
equipment, in order to maintain workplace hygiene and prevent the
cross-contamination of the products.

weEm (&)
RIEREEE

HEREAKENRPETAERH - HEEN
DEERPEERLGENREN  Z2UERER
e REMERHRER  AKECEY—E2@A
REHE R R A EERR B HER - ARED
HEHERERRR  HEEHEBHOFELE
HIRERFETHE  ARYEI2HEHOHEE
mmEENR - JERA - EFTL - FHERER
BHEF AREERUEFCESEIEETE
Mo R R RORMR o ANERE B KR E A B R
B PEBTHEABRROLERRERREE
SRR

RE)T
REREENHE  BHTRANERET A%

B EREE TR R R EER RERD
ERRE  UWERENTAMEENRREREZ
ERAXBNER - ARBEETFEB R H AR
BEETAIRARGINEERBR  RENERE
RRERZEREZBIGI T2 —BWET
fem & RRER 0 & R st SR R
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IRIB B NE RS
SOCIAL ASPECTS (Cont’d)

Product Responsibility (Cont’d)

Apart from the hygiene control in laboratory, the Group also
understands the importance of an accurate testing result. Thus, the
Group has developed policies in relation to the management and
maintenance of laboratory equipment, especially the calibration of
laboratory equipment. Our equipment is calibrated externally by
professionals and internally when necessary to ensure its accuracy.
Qualified personnel is assigned to each equipment for the daily
management and maintenance, to make sure equipment that we are
using is in good condition. Damaged equipments will not be used
until they are fixed by the suppliers.

Also, listening to customers about their experiences with products
and services is the key to the Group’s success. The Group constantly
interacts with customers by reviewing their enquiries and feedback
so that performance can be tracked regularly. Also, the Group is
dedicated to provide after-sale maintenance and operational technical
supporting services to customers. Training is provided to employees
in offering comprehensive services to customers.

Intellectual Property and Confidential Information

The Group has stringent measures in place to protect operational
and customer data privacy. A systematic approach is implemented
internally to ensure that only designated employees have access to
sensitive and confidential information. No confirmed cases of data
leakage were identified during the year.

The Community

With the market’s focus on corporate behavior, the short-sighted
behavior of maximizing financial returns to shareholders is no longer
the management goal of business. The Group stays proactive in
fulfiling the responsibilities as a corporate citizen of the community,
promote the application of the regenerative medicine products and
related healthcare services, and to further raise the awareness of
public health. The group will continue its effort in promoting and
applying our profession in regenerative medicine products and related
healthcare services. The Group believes that employees are the
core value makers in the society. The Group will continue to pool the
strengths and commit itself in increasing community participation,
balance of interests of stakeholders and strives to build a corporate-
community relationship that promotes harmony, security and
prosperity.
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4

Aspect
B

Aspect A1:
Emissions
AT
BER)

Aspect A2:

Use of Resources
[EEA2 :
EIREA

Aspect A3:

The Environment and
Natural Resources
[Em A3 :
RIERARANEIR

Description
it

General Disclosure
— =

Information on:
BHEBERIBERBYN - MK R
5 BERBEEEEYNELSH -

(@)  the policies; and
B &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BFHBETAGEATENRBEER
ER

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

B -

General Disclosure
—RRIEEE

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials
ERERER (BERER  KREMEM
) BBER -

General disclosure

—RRIRE

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural
resources.
BEEITALRBERRABREKNE R
EHER o

TYETS

For more details, please refer to pages 104
to 108.
BRAELZHIE  B2ME104£108E -

For more details, please refer to pages 104
to 106.
BHFE %5 F2HFE 10421068 ©

For more details, please refer to pages 104
to 108.
BERAE S5 F2H% 10421088 °
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Aspect
B

Aspect B1:
Employment
BT :
1R

Aspect B2:
Health and Safety
[EEB2 :
fERRERZ? 2

Aspect B3:
Development and
Training

[EE B3 :

R MIE

Description
it

General Disclosure
— =

Information on:

BT SEOER -

(@)  the policies; and
B &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BFHBETAGEATENRBEER
ER

General Disclosure
—REIEEE

Information on:

BRENATEENER :

(@)  the policies; and

B - &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BTHBETABERZENHEBERZR
TERR

General disclosure

—RRIRE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

AR EES BT LIERE N A XA
B - i FnES -

DTYETS

For more details, please refer to page 108.
BEAELZFHIE  B2ME108E -

For more details, please refer to pages 108
and 111.
BHREZHE  F2HF108R111E

For more details, please refer to pages 111
to 113.
BEAEZHE  F2HFE 11 E113E -
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4

Aspect Description Details

=] it EE

Aspect B4: General disclosure For more details, please refer to pages 108
Labor Standards —e R and 110.

[EE B4 : EEEZFHE  F2MFE 108 1108 °

25 TR Information on:

BREPIEET HEH S TH -

(@)  the policies; and
B - &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

BTHRETABERZENHEREIRER

ERR

relating to preventing child and forced labor.

HWER -
Aspect B5: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to page 114.
Supply Chain —RERE ERAEZHE  F2HE 1148 -
Management
[EHE B5 : Policies on managing environmental and
HpEsEEIR social risks of the supply chain.

FRERHEENRSE I ERARNK

% o
Aspect B6: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to pages 114
Product — MR EE to 115.
Responsibility BREZHE - A2HFE114E 1168 -
[ETB6 : Information on:
EmEE ERFRRMERMRBHEREZS - B

& RELLEEEUARMERED

(@)  the policies; and
BE &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BIHBETAGEATENRBEER
ERR

relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods
of redress.

BB R -

' @ China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2016 / 2017



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRIR e lEaksE

Aspect Description Details

=] it EAE

Aspect B7: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to page 114.
Anti-corruption — = EHEZFIE  H2HE1148 -

[ B7 :

RE&5 Information on:

BRI LI - BR - BEFROERER

(@)  the policies; and
B &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BFHBETAGEATENRBEER
ER

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

&R o
Aspect B8: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to page 115.
Community — MR = ERAEZHE  w2HFE 1158 °
Investment
[EmEBS : Policies on community engagement to
R E understand the needs of the communities

where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
ERAAMTERER T FREIT NS ERMEAL
EFENRREAEBEDEEEL RN
HBUR ©

2016 /2017 3 PEFLEBSEMRFRAE] ‘ @



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEEWE

The Directors present to the Shareholders the Company’s annual
report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 April 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are engaged in the R&D of bio-medical
and healthcare products, and medical techniques; the provision of the
production and sales of tissue engineering products and its related
by-products; as well as sales and distribution of medical products
and equipment.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2017 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 152.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 248.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 30 April 2017 amounted to approximately HK$2,263,445,000
(2016: HK$2,444,449,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 154 and note 30 to the financial statements,
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

EZRENARRREEARANHE_T—LFMOA
= tRLEFEZEFBREERGEMHRE -

EEERH
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EREE  UREERDHEEERREE -

%I“;\ & Hxll_,\

AEBHE_T—+FMOA=THLFEZESE
HNFE 12 Az A BE MEMEERARA -

EXWMZFIRERPE -

MBEE

AEEBERAAMREEZEEUAREEREGRE
TMEFHNE 248 H

LU
AR FRARE R 2 BB B BRI 15 MR o
287
it
R-T—LFMAZ+A  ARATHIEFR

B R R 2,263,445,0008 7T (ZE—/NE
2,444,449,00087T) °

AEERARNRBDRNFAZHBEDFIE > H5IH

REB1BABE 2R AR BB R LIS MRARMIFE30 o
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Wong Sai Hung
(Vice-chairman)

Shao Zhengkang

Chen Chunguo
(Chief Executive Officer)

(appointed with effect from
25 January 2017)

Non-Executive Directors

Cui Zhanfeng (Chairman) (appointed with effect from
7 October 2016)
(appointed with effect from
23 February 2017)
(appointed with effect from
20 March 2017)
(re-designated from independent
non-executive Director to
non-executive Director with effect
from 1 June 2017)
(retired with effect from
9 September 2016)
(resigned with effect from
18 July 2016)
(resigned with effect from
5 August 2016)
(retired with effect from
9 September 2016)

Ray Yip
Xiong Chengyu

Wang Hui

Deng Shaoping
Cao Fushun
Yang Zhengguo

Wang Jianjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Lui Tin Nang

Pang Chung Fai Benny
Chan Bing Woon
Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (appointed with effect from

23 February 2017)

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny shall
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with article 99 of the Company’s articles of association,
Professor Cui Zhanfeng, Mr. Chen Chunguo, Dr. Ray Yip, Mr. Wong
Yiu Kit Ernest, Professor Xiong Chengyu and Mr. Wang Hui shall hold
office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company are set out on pages 63 to 72 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors has signed an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of two years commencing from the
date of appointment. After the expiry of the appointment letter(s), the
Director(s) shall agree to continue to hold office as a Director, subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. In the event that the Director(s) is successfully re-elected
at the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company, the
Director(s) shall enter into a supplemental letter with the Company for
continuation of his/her appointment for a term of two years.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as those set out in note 35 to the financial statements and
under heading “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in this report, none
of the Directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
on 14 September 2011 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees of the Company.

EENRESTHRAERT
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SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd) BB (M)

BIRER ) (&)

The movement of share options under the share option scheme REZE_ZT—+FHA=+HILFE - KRAAR
adopted by the Company on 14 September 2011 during the year —Z——F A +TUAFEMNZEREEIETZ
ended 30 April 2017 was as below: EiREZEHOT

Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 30 April 2017

BE-R-tERACTHLEEZBRERD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule Exercisable portion as at as at
Eligible Date of price  and exercise period of the Share Options 30 April 30 April
persons grant (HK$)  of the Share Options  granted 201}}2 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 201}}1
BREL ZZ-7E ZZ-tF
ke BERERR BRLERES mA=tA MA=TA
RERAL RiAE (Br)  AFEHE B AR B B BENAE BAN HATE
Directors 16/9/2015 045 16 September 201610 Up to 20% (“1st Options’) 73,720,000 NIL NIL (1,620,000 (35,090,0000 37,010,000
£ “I-1f 15 September 2017 &%20% ([E—1ERKE] ) i &
hATHA (both days
inclusive) (the
“1st Period”)
ZZRENATRER
“T-tENATHA
(RfEEEMA)
([Z-E5E])
16 September 2017to ~ Upto 20% (2nd Options”)
15 September 2018 (together with any 1st Options
(ooth days inclusive) which have not been
(the “2nd Period”) exercised during
“E-LFARTRBE  the st Period)

“T-\FAATER
(BEEEME)
([£-R#R))

5% 20%( 5 HERE])

(ERRE-BERRATE

LEAE-HERE)

16 September 201810~ Up to 20% (“3rd Options’)
15 September 2019 (together with any 1st and
(both days inclusive) 2nd Option’s which have
(the “3rd Period”) not been exercised during

“T-N\FARTREE  the 1stPeriod and
“E-NFAATER  2nd Period)
(BEEERR) 55 20%([ £=RERE])

(TE=fEsm])

16 September 2019t0  Up to 20% (“4th Options’)
15 September 2020 (together with any 1st, 2nd and
(both days inclusive) 3rd Options which have
(the “4th Period") not been exercised during
“E-NEARTRBE  the st Period,
“Z-ZEAETER 2ndPeriodand
(BfEEEMA) 3rd Period)
([EmiEHE] ) 55 0% [£RAERE] )

(ERARE-REHRR

&~ EHRRATRE [

F-RE-HBRE)

(ERRE—RHR

Emi e
HATRZEME
F-NRE=NHERE)
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Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

E%HQ*' (mﬁ)
FEIRIER 2 ()

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 30 April 2017
HE-Z-tEMAZTALEEZERERD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule Exercisable portion as at as at
Eligible Date of price  and exercise period of the Share Options 30 April 30 April
persons grant (HK$)  of the Share Options  granted 201}}2 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 201}}1
BREL ZE-RE TE-tE
kE  BERERR ERLBREZ MA=TA MA=TA
RERAL RiAE (Br)  AFRHE B AR B g 2ENAE BAN HATE
16 September 2020to ~ Upto 20% (‘5th Options )
15 September 2025 (together with any 1st, 2nd,
(ooth days inclusive) 3rd and 4th Options wh\ch have
(the “5th Period") not been exercised during
“E-EFARTRBE  the st Period,
“EZREAATRER 2nd Period,
(BfEEEmA) 3rd Period and
(FnEsE]) 4th Period)
ra%%\%ﬁf$h$n
(BRR - B
ZHE £ M%ﬁ&
S ﬁiﬂf
1( —fH E=f-
_f&%lfﬁ%ﬁ)
9/9/2016 0291 9 September 2017 to Up t020% ( First Options”) NIL 56,200,000 NIL 4,000,000 NIL - 60,200,000
“E-RF 8September 2018 &% 20%([E-HERE]) E £ Eid
nANA (ooth days inclusive)

(the “First Period’)
ZE-tENANRE
“T-NENANA
(RfEEEMA)
([Z-E5E])

9 September 2018 to
8 September 2019
(ooth days inclusive)
(the “Second Period")

“E-\FAANRE
“E-NEAANA
(REEEMA)
(£=F%R))

9 September 2019 to
8 September 2020
(both days inclusive)
(the “Third Period”)

ninﬂnai
“TCEEAANA
\@%EEWW
([£=A%H))

Up to 20% (*Second Options’)
(together with any First Options
which have not been
exercised during
the First Period)

55 20%([ £-(ERE])
(BRRZ-ERRARTR
EmE-HERE)

Up to 20% (‘Third Options’)
(together with any First and
Second Options which have
not been exercised during
the First Period and
Second Period)

55 0% [£=hERE] )
(BRAZ-EHRR
E-REREATR R
E-HRE-[BRE)
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Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

B ()
BIRER ) (&)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 30 April 2017

BE-R-tERACTHLEEZBRERD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule Exercisable portion as at as at
Eligible Date of price  and exercise period of the Share Options 30 April 30 April
persons grant (HK$)  of the Share Options  granted 2016 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 201}}1
BREL ZZ-RE ZZ-tF
kE  BERERR BRLERES BmA=tA MA=TA
RERAL RiAE (Br)  AFRHE B AR B g 2ENAE BAN HATE
9 September 2020 to Up to 20% (*Fourth Options’)
8 September 2021 (together with any First, Second
(ooth days inclusive) and Third Options which have
(the “Fourth Period") not been exercised during
ZFITENANRE the First Period,
“EZ-EAANA Second Period and
(BfEEEMA) Third Period)
([EmiEHE] ) 55 0%( [£BAERE] )
(BEAZ-EHR
£ ERRE =R
HARTTRZEAE— -
E-HRE=RBRE)
9 September 2021 to Up to 20% (*Fifth Options”) (together
8 September 2025 with any First, Second,
(both days inclusive) Third and Fourth Options which
(the “Fifth Period") have not been exercised
“3T-ENANAE during the First Period,
“TCREAANA Second Period,
(REEERA) Third Period and
([£RA%HE]) Fourth Period)
55 0%([£0A%RE] )
(RIS — 5
EZRLRE - =P
] Mlﬁﬁfaih?&ﬂfiz
£ £-f = 1/‘&
EMHERE)
26/1/2017* 03025 1 August 201910 Up 0 30% (A Options”) 0 500,000,000 NIL NIL NIL 500,000,000
IRtE 31 July 2020 5% 30%([ARERE]) & B i
-A=taR" (both days
inclusive) (the
“A Period”)
m NR-RZ
“ToTEEAST-A
\E%E‘Eﬁ A)
(5] )
1 August 2020 to Up t0 30% (‘B Options’)
31 July 2021 (together with any A Options
(ooth days inclusive) which have not been
(the “B Period") exercised during
“E-TE\A-HE the A Period)
ZE2-FLA=-B 5230%(BEERE])
(REERMA) (BRRABEREKEL
(B&E]) I ARERE)
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Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

B ()
BIRER ) (&)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 30 April 2017

BE-R-tERACTHLEEZBRERD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule Exercisable portion as at as at
Eligible Date of price  and exercise period of the Share Options 30 April 30 April
persons grant (HK$)  of the Share Options  granted 2016 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 201}}1
BREL ZE-RE ZZ-tF
kE  BERERR BRLERES BmA=tA MA=TA
RERAL RiAE (Br)  AFRHE B AR B g 2ENAE BAN HATE
1 August 2021 to Up to the remaining
24 January 2027 balance of the options
(ooth days inclusive) granted (together with
(the “C Period”) any A.and B Options which
“E--E\A-HE have not been
ZEHF-AHEA  exercised during the
(2EERMA)([CHR]) A Periodand
B Period)
SHRERIBRE &8
(BRRASER
BEMEAITE,
AR R BERERE)
Others 16/9/2015 045 For Grantegs other than new employees who have joined 176,940,000 NIL NIL 1,620,000 (79,000,000 99,560,000
it “E-1F the Company for less than 12 months or are yet to & B
NATHA commence work with the Company on the relevant date of

grant (as the case may be):—
HREERGBRZRRN (BIAZRTIRT =055
DREGRER AR FESN) M5 (EERRE) —

1st Period 1st Options
£ £-hiEhi
2nd Period 2nd Options (together
£-[5R with any 1st Options
which have not been
exercised during
the 1st Period)

F-hBREER
1E-EHRRANEL
fEfE-(BRE)

3rd Period
£=[5R

3rd Options (together
with any 1st and 2nd Options
which have not been
exercised during
the 1st Period and
2nd Period)
F-hERE(ERNE (R
HARE - AHEHE
2 fEE—{R
£-hERE)
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Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)
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Movement of Share Options during the year ended 30 April 2017
HE-Z-tEMAZTALEEZERERD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule Exercisable portion as at as at
Eligible Date of price  and exercise period of the Share Options 30 April 30 April
persons grant (HK$)  of the Share Options  granted 2016 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 201}}1
BREL ZZ-RE ZZ-tF
kE  BERERR BRLERES BmA=tA MA=TA
RERAL RiAE (B)  WEEHE aERf AR BRH: BfiE  BENAE BAN WA
4th Period 4th Options (together
FMEEHE with any 1st, 2nd and
3rd Options which have
not been exercised during
the 1st Period, 2nd Period
and 3rd Period)
EMRERE (ERRE-E
o S EEER
LR
iz EmE—R
Z-HRE=RBRE)
5th Period 5th Options (together
ERIEHH with any 1st, 2nd, 3rd and

4th Options which have
not been exercised during
the 1st Period, 2nd Period,
3rd Period and 4t Period)
FRhERE (ERRE-E
e (A -
Z-EERENE
HEEATRL
HE-H 2
E=HREMABRE)

For Grantees who are new employees who have joined
the Company for less than 12 months or are yet to
commence work with the Company on the relevant date of
grant (as the case may be):—

AREERGBRZRRA (BIAARTSRT =055
IREERARGEEZFER) M7 (BERRE) —

16 March 2017 to Up t0 20% (Options 1')
15 March 2018 55 0%([ERE])
(ooth days
inclusive) (the
“Period 1)
B o 3 RN
ZF-\E=RtER
(RfEEEMA)
(1)
16 March 2018 to Up t0 20% (Options 2')
15 March 2019 (together with any Options 1
(ooth days inclusive) which have not been
(the “Period 2') exercised during the
“E-\F=A1/~HZ  Perod)
ZZ-NEZATREE BH20%([HBiE2])
(REEEMA) (B
([4@al) AT EERE)
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Movement of Share Options during the year ended 30 April 2017
HE-Z-tEMAZTALEEZERERD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule Exercisable portion as at as at
Eligible Date of price  and exercise period of the Share Options 30 April 30 April
persons grant (HK$)  of the Share Options  granted 2016 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 201}}1
ElRE ZE-RE ~g-i
kE  BERERR BRLERES BmA=tA MA=TA
RERAL RiAE (Br)  AFRHE B AR B g 2ENAE BAN HATE
16 March 2019 to Up t0 20% (Options 3')
15 March 2020 (together with any Options 1
(ooth days inclusive) and 2 which have
(the “Period 3') not been exercised during
“E-NE=RF7BE  thePeriods 1and?)
“RORECATRR R50%([EKEY )(ER
(2EEEMA) B R2mATEL
(IH#mal) HERE R2)
16 March 2020 to Up to 20% (‘Options 4")
15 March 2021 (together with any Options 1,
(both days inclusive) 2 and 3 which have
(the “Period 4') not been exercised during
“T-TFZRRBEE  thePeriods 1, 2and 3)
ZBC-ESATER SH00%(TEREL ) (ERR
(RfEEEMA) B 2RSHATEL
(IHm4)) ERE 2R3)
16 March 2021 to Upto20%
15 September 2025 (together with any Options 1, 2,
(ooth days inclusive) 3and 4 which have
ZTT-E=RAFRHE ot been exercised during
“Z-REAATRR  thePeriods 1,2 3and4)
(RfEEEMA) 5% 00% (8RR
o102 IR4BKITEZ
fEfERET -2 3R4)
9/9/2016 0.291 For Grantees other than new employees who have joined 0 171,130,000 NIL (4,000,0000  (28,100,000) 139,030,000
ZTF the Company for less than 12 months or are yet to i
nANA commence work with the Company on the relevant date of

grant (as the case may be):—
HREERGBRZFRN (BIAARAGIRT =057
DREGRER AR FESN) M5 (EERRE) —

the First Period
-8R

the First Options
£-hiEhiE

the Second Period
£-[5R

the Second Options
(together with any First Options
which have not been
exercised during the
First Period)

Qe (ERRE-E
HEEATRL
EE-hEkE)
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Movement of Share Options during the year ended 30 April 2017

BE-R-tERACTHLEEZBRERD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule Exercisable portion as at as at
Eligible Date of price  and exercise period of the Share Options 30 April 30 April
persons grant (HK$)  of the Share Options  granted 2016 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 201}}1
BREL ZZ-RE ZZ-tF
kE  BERERR BRLERES BmA=tA MA=TA
RERAL RiAE (B)  WEEHE aERf AR BRH: BfiE  BENAE BAN WA
the Third Period the Third Options
= EEE (together with any First and
Second Options which have
not been exercised during
the First Period and
Second Period)

the Fourth Period
£NEHE

the Fifth Period
£1E5R

F=HBRE (EARE-E
HRE-EEERA
T2 EAE )
F0ENE)

the Fourth Options
(together with any First, Second
and Third Options which have
not been exercised during
the First Period,

Second Period and
Third Period)

EMhERE (ERRE-R
0 Z-EER
LR
iz EmE—R
Z-HRE=RBRE)

the Fifth Options (together
with any First, Second, Third
and Fourth Options which have
not been exercised during
the First Period,

Second Period,
Third Period and
Fourth Period)

FRhERE (ERRE-E
o S EEE
Z-EERENE
HEEATR
HE-H 2
E=HREMABRE)
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Movement of Share Options during the year ended 30 April 2017
HE-Z-tEMAZTALEEZERERD

J SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d)

Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Outstanding Outstanding

Exercise  Vesting schedule Exercisable portion as at as at

Eligible Date of price  and exercise period of the Share Options 30 April 30 April
persons grant (HK$)  of the Share Options  granted 2016 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 201}}1
BREL ZE-RE ZZ-tF

ke BERERR BRLERES BmA=tA MA=TA

RERAL RiAE (Bn)  REH B AR B g 2ENAE BAN HATE

For Grantees who are new employees who have joined
the Company for less than 12 months or are yet to
commence work with the Company on the relevant date of
grant (as the case may be):—

RRBERGAB2ARN (BUARRALRT =85S
DREERAR AR FER) M5 (BERRE) —

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2016 /2017

9 March 2018 to
8 March 2019
(both days inclusive)
(the “I Period”)
“3-\E=RAnAZE
ZF-WE=ANR
(BfEEERR)
(1))

9 March 2019 to
8 March 2020
(ooth days inclusive)
(the “Il Period")
“E-NE=ANRE
“EZEZAA
(2EEEMA)
([E8))

9 March 2020 to
8 March 2021
(both days
inclusive)
(the “IIl Period”)
“E-TEZANRE
“E2-E=A/\A
(REEEMA)
(e )

9 March 2021 to
8 March 2022
(both days inclusive)
(the “IV Period”)
“E--FZANAR
“ToZEZRNA
(BfEEERR)
(]

Up to 20% (‘Options I')
5%20%( [BRE])

Up t0 20% (“Options II")
(together with any Options |
which have not been
exercised during the
| Period)

5% 20% (TEREN ) (ERR
BEIEATRZ
HERE)

Up to 20% (“Options Il
(together with any Options | and
which have not been
exercised during the
| and II Periods)

55 00%( [FHEN] ) (ZRR
I RIAERAFEZ
EfmERE R

Up to 20% (“Options V")
(together with any Options |, Il and I
which have not been
exercised during the
I, Il and Il Periods)

550%( [EREV] ) (BRR
R I RINEREZ
EfTHMRIE 1R
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SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d)
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)
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Movement of Share Options during the year ended 30 April 2017
HE-Z-tEMAZTALEEZERERD

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  Vesting schedule Exercisable portion as at as at
Eligible Date of price  and exercise period of the Share Options 30 April 30 April
persons grant (HK$)  of the Share Options  granted 2016 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 201}}1
BREL “B-RE “E-tF
ke BERERR ERLBREZ MA=TA MA=TA
RERAL RiAE (Bm) k88 B AR B g 2ENAE B&M HATE
9 March 2022 to Up to 20% (together
8 September 2025 with any Options |, Il, Il and IV
(ooth days inclusive) which have not been
ZECCE-ANRE exercised during the
“EIENANR 1,11, 11l and IV Periods)
(RfEEEMA) 5% 20% (B
B IRV ERTEZ
FEMEREL 1 NRWN)

1 The outstanding share options as at 30 April 2016 and as at 1 May
2016 were 73,720,000 and 50,750,000 respectively. The difference
is due to the reclassification arising from the changes of the roles in
directorship.

2 References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 25
January 2017, 20 March 2017 and the circular dated 26 June 2017 in
relation to the conditional grant of Share Options to Mr. Chen Chunguo
to subscribe for up to an aggregate of 500,000,000 ordinary shares. On
17 July 2017, the Shareholders excluding Mr. Chen and his associates
(the “Independent Shareholders”) has approved the resolution at
the extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”), please refer to the
announcement dated 17 July 2017 for details.

© The outstanding share options as at 30 April 2016 and as at 1 May
2016 were 176,940,000 and 182,410,000 respectively. The difference
is due to the reclassification arising from the changes of the roles in
directorship and other function.

Share Options of placing agreement

On 5 March 2015, pursuant to a placing agreement dated 10
November 2014 between the Company and a placing agent,
495,000,000 share options with exercise price of HK$0.25 per share
and exercisable period from 5 September 2015 to 4 September 2016
were issued to All Favour and independent parties. The share options
had been lapsed on 13 September 2016.

Save as disclosed above, no further share options were granted,
outstanding, lapsed, cancelled or exercised for the year ended 30
April 2017.

N R RNEMA=F+BRE -_T—XRNERAA—
H 2 #R17T 88 IR 9 5 A73,720,00015 &
50,750,0001% - ZFE RN E S ABEE) S| HA
ER R

2 ZIRMARARBHA-_ZT—+tF—A-+AHAB -
—E—+F-A-tHZAERHEAE-T—+
FRAZTARBZEEK  NABBERARERTE
FAIEE T AR A £ 4 % 500,000,000 % & i@
BrERE - R-E—+FtA+LtA BE
(TBREREEREBEA) ([BYBRE]) BER
BEREFRRE ([BRREFAE]) B AEZRE
= HEHELHMEBA-E—+E+ATHRY

Do

8 R RNEMA=F+BRE -_T—XRNERAA—
H 2 iR 776 IR #E D 5 /176,940,000 17 &
182,410,00017 ° Z B TIHNEE A G & H B
REEESIBMET O -

BREOE S

R-Z—AF=ZFAAAB REEHE-ZT—MF
+T—A+TAARARHEEERE 2 ENEREHE -
2 #8 I %8 37 A 817 495,000,000 17 B i% 4 -
THEEAEZROB T AATFERE AT —H
FAAREAZ=-Z—X"FNLANA - BRESK
—E-RFENLA+T=HKRK -

BREXFEEEN BE-_ZT—LtFMOA=1H
LHFE SIEEGBRESRD - BRTE X
X AEHEBEITE
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EFTWE

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 April 2017, the following Directors and chief executives of
the Company had or were deemed to have interest or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(iiy which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) which were, pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules related to securities
transactions by the Directors to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange:

ESERESTHRAENKRN RAEER
2B RAE

RZE—+tFWNA=+H " THEFERARAI&H
BITBABRARBREMAEEZE (EXALES
EOIESTIEEFEF MBS ([FHFRPEK
Bl)) EXVER) 2D - ARG REST - %
BRI R IS () RIFEFH M EE 15558 XV ISR
TRS8DEBHME RN A MRz R AR
(BREESREFES KBS KRDEBIEGEE E
BIEH A 2 AR ) () RIEEAFRPE K
BI85 352 (KB R A RZAKFT M & 5ol 2 S SR B
(i) IRIERI IR E AR AIEE5.46 £ 5.67 155
EERTEFRGZHETANSARNE KB AT
ZHERTAR

Long Positions HE
Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company  REX L a7 RIGEIR (7.2
Aggregate long Approximate
position in percentage of
Name of Directors/ the shares and the issued
chief executives Capacity underlying shares share capital
N RB G RIEERH HEERTRE
Ex BETBRASHS 514 ZHERiEEt BHRBED
Wong Sai Hung (Note 1) Interests held jointly 30,000,000 0.17%
B with another person
s Ef A TR M
Beneficial owner 31,560,000 0.18%
BESEAA
Shao Zhengkang (Note 2) Beneficial owner 35,530,000 0.20%
AR R (MYEt 2) EnlAA
Chen Chunguo (Note 3) Bene}ioial owner 500,000,000 2.84%
PRAEE (MHEE3) EmEE A
Cui Zhanfeng (Note 4) Beneficial owner 78,630,000 0.45%
ELE(ME4) EmAA
Lui Tin Nang (Note 6) Beneficial owner 4,500,000 0.03%
EPNEIETS) EnBAA
Pang Chur]g Fai Benny (Note 6) Beneficial owner 4,410,000 0.03%
ZHE(MEE6) EnEE A
Chan Bing Woon (Note 6) Beneficial owner 4,230,000 0.02%
FRIFE(KEE6) EmAA
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont’d)

Notes:

1.

Mr. Wong Sai Hung (“Mr. Wong”) is an executive Director and the Vice-
chairman. Mr. Wong's interests are held jointly with his spouse. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. Wong and his spouse are deemed to be interested in
30,000,000 shares of the Company.

On 16 September 2015, Mr. Wong was granted 7,560,000 share
options (the “Share Options”) by the Company under the share option
scheme of the Company adopted on 14 September 2011 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) entitling him to subscribe for 7,560,000 shares of the
Company at the exercise price of HK$0.45 per share, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme.

On 9 September 2016, Mr. Wong was granted 24,000,000 Share
Options by the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling him
to subscribe for 24,000,000 shares of the Company at the exercise
price of HK$0.291 per share, subject to the terms and conditions of the
Share Option Scheme.

Assuming the Share Options granted to Mr. Wong on 16 September
2015 and 9 September 2016 have been exercised in full, Mr. Wong
shall hold the 31,560,000 shares of the Company as beneficial owner.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wong and his spouse, together with their
deemed interest in the shares held jointly, shall be deemed to be
interested in an aggregate of 61,560,000 shares of the Company as at
30 April 2017.

Dr. Shao Zhengkang (“Dr. Shao”) is an executive Director. Dr. Shao
personally holds 500,000 shares of the Company.

On 16 September 2015, he was granted 12,030,000 Share Options
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling him to
subscribe for 12,030,000 shares of the Company at the exercise price
of HK$0.45 per share, subject to the terms and conditions of the Share
Option Scheme.

On 9 September 2016, he was granted 23,000,000 Share Options
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling him to
subscribe for 23,000,000 shares of the Company at the exercise price
of HK$0.291 per share, subject to the terms and conditions of the
Share Option Scheme.

Assuming the Share Options granted to Dr. Shao on 16 September
2015 and 9 September 2016 have been exercised in full, Dr. Shao shall
hold an aggregate of 35,030,000 shares of the Company as beneficial
owner.

By virtue of the SFO, Dr. Shao shall be deemed to be interested in an
aggregate of 35,530,000 shares of the Company as at 30 April 2017.

,>

S R IR0 R iBRE IR

=L ( [Bh4E]) BRITEEHRIEF -
HAEMBEEEERBEAREE - BREZSFR
B GpI - E ok A R ERRB R A7 30,000,000
AN B P AR o

RZZB-AFAATAB  BERERARARRE
NZE——FNATHBRRMNZ AN REERE
P& (TERERT 8] ) & T 7,560,000 17 B A 7
(THERE]) By ERNARER0468TZ
171 E R 7,560,000 B A A B () - HEZRE ST
BRI RERT B Z (R R A 1 -

—NEAANE  BEAEARRBREE
BERE ST 219% F 24,000,000 1) BERS#E - B T EL#EF
AR &% 0.291 8 7T 2 1718 {E 53 % 24,000,000 %
AR - AT B 2 R TR A& -

B/\\i
N —=

BER-_ZE—RAFAA+ABR-ZE—AFNA
NERTFEEEZBRBETEITE  HXER
EAE A A1EE 31,560,000 i A A BIRLH

BEBEHFRPERN RZFT—tFEOA=+
B BAERERGB ERESHEEARHE
EHEZROPHEAZEZEERS AN S HK
61,560,000 fx AN A B IR 19 B i s -

B EE L ([8EL]) ARITES - AE (@
A$5E 500,000 [ A A GRS ©

R-Z—FAENA+/B  HEAQFREER
HEET213% F 12,030,000 17 B A% 4 - BE T H AR AT
B8 0.45 8L 2 1T ERIE 12,030,000 R A~

R - MEZB B STRE R AT B 2 R IR -
R-ZZE—A"FNLANB @ HERQARRIEERE
5T 213% F 23,000,000 7 B A #E - B T H AR AL
FR%0.291 BT 2 17 B3R5 23,000,000 R A 2
R - MEZB B STRE R AT B 2 R IR -
BER-_ZE—RAFAA+ABR-ZE—AFNA

na%%aﬁ@tmﬁﬁﬂxﬁé%%%{ﬁﬁ BB L35
ERE=MA AFA G 35,080,000 B AR &%

{/'\ o

TEHJ% S LHEEN R-T-—tFOA=+
’ ”ET@iW?BZZE?%E’\\/—\/\35,530,OOOH’XL$/A\ET
fo’ﬁ'?%ﬁﬁ* e
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

3.

Mr. Chen Chunguo (“Mr. Chen”) is an executive Director with
effect from 25 January 2017 and the CEO with effect from
23 February 2017.

On 25 January 2017, he was conditionally granted 500,000,000 Share
Options by the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling
him to subscribe for up to an aggregate of 500,000,000 shares of the
Company at the exercise price of HK$0.3025 per share, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme. On 17 July 2017,
the Independent Shareholders has approved the resolution at the EGM.

Assuming the Share Options granted to Mr. Chen on 25 January
2017 have been exercised in full, Mr. Chen shall hold an aggregate of
500,000,000 shares of the Company as beneficial owner.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chen shall be deemed to be interested in
500,000,000 shares of the Company as at 30 April 2017.

Professor Cui Zhanfeng (“Prof. Cui”) is a non-executive Director and the
Chairman with effect from 7 October 2016. Prof. Cui personally holds
65,000,000 shares of the Company.

On 16 September 2015, he was granted 9,630,000 Share Options
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling him to
subscribe for 9,630,000 shares of the Company at the exercise price
of HK$0.45 per share, subject to the terms and conditions of the Share
Option Scheme.

On 9 September 2016, he was granted 4,000,000 Share Options
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling him to
subscribe for 4,000,000 shares of the Company at the exercise price of
HK$0.291 per share, subject to the terms and conditions of the Share
Option Scheme.

Assuming the Share Options granted to Prof. Cui on 16 September
2015 and 9 September 2016 have been exercised in full, Prof. Cui shall
hold an aggregate of 13,630,000 shares of the Company as beneficial
owner.

By virtue of the SFO, Prof. Cui shall be deemed to be interested in an
aggregate of 78,630,000 shares of the Company as at 30 April 2017.

,>

S R IR0 R iBRE IR

MEEEE(REE]) BZ-FE—+EF—A
“T+HEARARHTEERE-_ZE—tF A
ZH=ARATTIRAE -

RZZE—+F—A=-+HB BEARQRARERE
Hx%”r%lﬁw#%%fsooooo 00017 BE A4 + AR
FHEBEF A EER0.3025 B T2 ITEBRES
# % 500,000,000 B AR R B - HEZB ST IR
P E 2 G R R E—+F LA+t
B BB ERDARESRIAS FHEZORES o

BERZZE—+EF-AZTERRTREENE
BAREERITE  REESIERERHEBARH
& 500,000,000 IR AR A AR S ©

*E%F HEREEEN R_T—+tFMWA=+
+ R 4 A JIE 1% 48 A 7 500,000,000 % AR A & B
@$%ﬁ%§o

BZZE—RE+TALAR  EHERK ([EHR
Bl RERTEERIE - EHRBEARA
65,000,000 AR A2 B A7

RZE—RAFNA+B  BEAQFREER
HESTE19% 79,630,000 17 BE AL 7 - BB T EAEF A
B EAR0.458 7L 2 1T E585 9,630,000 R A~
AR MEZBIE STRERRAE AT 81 2 R AE L ©

RZZE—R"FNLANB @ HERDGREERE
=T 21#% F 4,000,000 17 & A5 1% - ﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬂ‘ﬁg
§A%0.291 L 2 1T{E{E 3R 4,000,000 R A
B - MR ST REIRAE AT B 2 G TR AR -

BER—ZZ—RAFALA+BRERZZE—XRFNA
NERTFERRNBRBETEITE  E5EE
ERE=ZMA AFAE G 13,630,000 AR F K

T/\ o

RBEEFIHAEGD K=
B EHRRERRERRE KT
B AR

—tFWOA= +
630000Hx2!S
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

5.

On 16 September 2015, Mr. Wang Hui (“Mr. Wang”) is a non-executive
Directors (who was re-designated from independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 June 2017), was granted 1,750,000 Share
Options by the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling him
to subscribe for 1,750,000 shares of the Company at the exercise price
of HK$0.45 per share, subject to the terms and conditions of the Share
Option Scheme.

On 9 September 2016, Mr. Wang, was granted 2,100,000 Share
Options by the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling
him to subscribe for 2,100,000 shares of the Company at the exercise
price of HK$0.291 per share, subject to the terms and conditions of the
Share Option Scheme.

Assuming the Share Options granted to Mr. Wang on 16 September
2015 and 9 September 2016 have been exercised in full, Mr. Wang shall
hold 3,850,000 shares of the Company as beneficial owners.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wang shall be deemed to be interested in
3,850,000 shares of the Company as at 30 April 2017.

On 16 September 2015, Mr. Lui Tin Nang (“Mr. Lui”), Mr. Pang Chung
Fai Benny (“Mr. Pang”) and Mr. Chan Bing Woon (“Mr. Chan”) are
the independent non-executive Directors, were granted 2,100,000,
2,010,000 and 1,930,000 Share Options respectively by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme entitling each of them to subscribe
for 2,100,000, 2,010,000 and 1,930,000 shares of the Company
respectively at the exercise price of HK$0.45 per share, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme.

On 9 September 2016, Mr. Lui, Mr. Pang and Mr. Chan, were granted
2,400,000, 2,400,000 and 2,300,000 Share Options respectively by
the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling each of them
to subscribe for 2,400,000, 2,400,000 and 2,300,000 shares of the
Company respectively at the exercise price of HK$0.291 per share,
subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme.

Assuming the Share Options granted to Mr. Lui, Mr. Pang and Mr. Chan
on 16 September 2015 and 9 September 2016 have been exercised
in full, Mr. Lui, Mr. Pang and Mr. Chan shall hold 4,500,000, 4,410,000
and 4,230,000 shares of the Company respectively as beneficial
owners.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lui, Mr. Pang and Mr. Chan shall be deemed
to be interested in 4,500,000, 4,410,000 and 4,230,000 shares of the
Company respectively as at 30 April 2017.

i
8t
X
)
o}
)
el
>_
il
X

P40 K AHRA AR

R-ZE—RFAATRE  FRTEFTELLE
([EEE] ER-ZZ2—+tF XA -HEFHER
BYFATESR) BARRRBEREAZET
1,750,000 {7 BB A 4% - B T EL R F Al i & 12 0.45
BT Z TR ER 1,750,000 AR A AR - HE
R ST BB A B Z AR S AR A -

RIZE—RENANE » TEAEARBREE
RS A 51 &1 9% F 2,100,000 17 BE B - B P EAEF|
AlE S 0.291 B 2 1T{EE 7R 2,100,000 A 2N
RNRR ¢ BB TR B 2 ARFR SR AF o

BER—ZZ—RAFALA+BERZZE—XRFNA
NEBRTEEENBREETETE  TEER
{ERER A A A 3,850,000 AR A EIRLS °

BEFHFLRPEKN RZFT—tFTOA=+
B E &4 mHE AR 3,850,000 i A& A & M) &
HmEREE -

RZZ—RFNA+ B BUFRTEERX
BEE ([EEE]) ThBas ([Eh4E])
MRS E ([BREAE]) DRIEARRIRE
RS % R 5 20 9% F 2,100,000 ~ 2,010,00019 K
1,930,000 FEAR#E - B T HRES 8N DRI A
% R%0.457% ;o 2 1T 1# B 52 882,100,000 f% *
2,010,000 f% } 1,930,000 & KA A1 B9 + MEZB 8
SPEE AR MR AT B 2 ARER S A o

RZZE—RENLANE B4 ZEERME
& 9 R EZR A TR 15 B AR 4 51 & % T 2,400,000
1%+ 2,400,000 17 2,300,000 17 B A4 » B F 1%
EEEENT D BIETI0.201 BT ZITFEER
f% 2,400,000 f% - 2,400,000 f% % 2,300,000 & 7%
DRI - AT B 2 AR A -

BER—ZZ—RAFALA+BERZZE—XRFNA
NWBEEFELEE ZhERRLENERERES
HFE BhE - EBAERBEESRBES
BB A A 4,500,000 « 4,410,000 i K
4,230,000 B AR EIRAD

BREFHRHBEGN R_F—LFHA=1
A a2kid ZREERREEBEER/D IR
4,500,000 % - 4,410,000 & K 4,230,000 % 74~ 22
AR A M o
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2017, none of the Directors
nor the chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (i) which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (i)
which were, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as known to the Directors, as at 30 April 2017, the following
parties (not being the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
had, or were deemed to have, interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company (i) which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or
(iiy which were required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein:

ESERESTHRAENKRN RAEER
Rk AR (&)

B ENHEEEN RZE—+FNA=+H"
BEESENARAERITHRAEBRARG RE
REEAE (EEBEHFLHEBERHEXVE) 2
D BRI DR ESFP A R IERES () IRE
FHEMEEIEOEXVIBET RS HAEMET AR
AR RFTZ EDZAR (BREEEREESR
BGOSR B ERRIEE B 2 msiR
B ¢ k(i) BIREHF R EE 05 352 RARARZ
RFT & e 2 R BOR B+ B (i) ARIB AV ZEMR
MRAEL 46 E567TKEBEFTETELRRSHZ
REBEMEARNE LB TR SAAE °

TERRREMALTRRS RBER
7z e

BEBFM R_B—tFMA=T8 - THIA
T (FEBRARARSIHAR) RAD AR
5 - BRI LA Sk B RN ()18
T R S O B XV 55 2 B3 82 X /A
P B BB SR P B B 2 MR SRR ¢ o () AR 0
B % 0 I 55 336 HUB R AR RFTA B R MR
M2 RERAR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont’d)

Long positions

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

o

FERREEMA LR REER

== N\ 2

W ziEm (5)

%

m)

RER ARG RIEBR G 2 s

Aggregate long
position in

Approximate
percentage of

the shares and the issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity underlying shares share capital
R G R AERER G HEBTRE
BRREE BB g4 A% iy BHAED
All Favour (Note 7) Beneficial owner 3,708,100,319 21.09 %
288 (f5E7) EnEAA
Hu Yonggang (Note 7) Held by controlled corporation 3,708,100,319 21.09%
FAAKE (FIEET) BXEERE
Dai Yumin (Note 7) Held by controlled corporation 3,708,100,319 21.09%
25 (ME7) BXEERE
Beneficial owner 510,880,000 2.91%
EnEEA
China Orient Asset Held by controlled corporation 1,685,320,319 9.58%
Management Corporation B EEEFHH
(Note 8)
FERSEEEIRAA]
(Mf7E8)
China Orient Alternative Held by controlled corporation 1,301,320,319 7.40%
Investment Fund R EERE
(Note 8)
(Mf7E8)
China Orient Alternative Investment manager 1,301,320,319 7.40%

Investment Fund WEKIE
Management Limited
(Note 9)

(KM 9)
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J SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont’d)

Long positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

FERRKREMA L RRS RERER
s ()

H#E (&

RER RO RIEBER G 2 s ()

Aggregate long
position in

Approximate
percentage of

the shares and the issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity underlying shares share capital
R0 R AR R 7 HEBITRAE
BREME EB 514 ZiFREE BAEDL
Kwan Man Cheuk Held by controlled corporation 1,184,565,000 6.74%
(Note 10) BEEEERE
#asE (FisE10)
Beneficial owner 66,890,000 0.38%
EREAA
Contech Bio-Med Ltd. Beneficial owner 1,184,565,000 6.74%
(Note 10) EmEBA
REEMEBEFR A
(FFE10)
China Dragon Asia Investment manager 1,094,929,300 6.23%

Champion Fund Series

REKE

SPC (Note 11)

(B

Notes:

7.

F11)

All Favour Holdings Limited (“All Favour”) is beneficially owned as to
(i) 40% by Nat-Ace Wood Industry Ltd. (“Nat-Ace Wood Industry”)
and 20% by Honour Top Holdings Limited which are both ultimately
wholly owned by Mr. Dai Yumin (“Mr. Dai”), and (i) 40% by Mr. Hu
Yonggang (“Mr. Hu”). On 5 March 2015, the Company granted to All
Favour an option (“Option”) which carries a right to subscribe for up to
360,000,000 new shares of the Company at the initial exercise price
of HK$0.25 per share (subject to adjustment) upon exercise of such
Option by All Favour. The Option had been lapsed with effect from 13
September 2016. Moreover, All Favour has been the beneficial owner
of 3,708,100,319 shares of the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Dai, Mr. Hu and Nat-Ace Wood Industry are deemed to be interested in
3,708,100,319 shares of the Company in which All Favour is interested
as of 30 April 2017.

SEIERAERAR ([288]) m()BAEREFR
N ([FBoaARZE] ) BEXHA 40% KX Honour Top
Holdings Limited & z # 5 20% * 1M 1% & 19 3 A1
WITEREHSHELE ([EBkhE]) RRE2EHS
K Gi)AAsk M4 (T8RS E]) EXHA40% ©
R-IZE—HAFE=ZARB » ARAAERELER
W (TERRAE]) » ZIERREASH BEFN 2T
FRBBRERZYPITEESRRM .25
(7] F %) R &% 360,000,000 %A A &) #7 A%
e BRECBE-_ZE—AFNLAT=ZABEY
gEoh - 298 43,708,100,319 R AR TR M 2 &
HHEAAN REBEEHFRBEES  BE=F—+t
FMA=+H HE4E  HAEERFERERSE
B EEEE 2/ 3,708,100,319 & AR 2 A %
DR E R -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d) Pt - (88)
7. (Contd) 7. (&)

RZTB-—AFAATAB  BELBRARARE
FBRR g 813X 7 17,500,000 1) BE AR A - BT H AR

On 16 September 2015, Mr. Dai was granted 17,500,000 Share
Options by the Company under the Share Option Scheme entitling him
to subscribe for 17,500,000 shares of the Company at the exercise FAMZEITEE SR 0.45 8 7L 328 17,500,000 A 2N
price of HK$0.45 per share, subject to the terms and conditions of the NER - WRETRERER S IR RE Y -
Share Option Scheme. Moreover, Mr. Dai personally holds 493,380,000 BEA - # %E A {E A R B 493,380,000 R A8 2 &A%
shares of the Company. Assuming the Share Options granted to m e BRFETFRLEZBREEREITE - &L
Mr. Dai has been exercised in full, Mr. Dai shall hold an aggregate of ERIERERMER AEE A 510,880,000 iz A

510,880,000 shares of the Company as beneficial owner.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Dai, together with his deemed interests in All
Favour, was deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 4,218,980,319

shares of the Company as at 30 April 2017.

The Company was informed by All Favour that it has pledged its
interests in 1,301,320,319 shares of the Company in favour of Optimus

Prime Management Ltd.

8. Based on Forms 2 both filed on 20 May 2016 by China Orient Asset
Management Corporation (“COAMC”) and China Orient Alternative
Investments Fund (“COAIF”), Optimus Prime Management Ltd.
(“Optimus”) has a security interest in 1,301,320,319 shares of the

REP

BIEFEHFLBEEN R=ZF—+tFMA=+
B ERFHKEEREERA 2R BhEw
BANAF£4,218,980,319 AR AR MH T HEE
e o

RATERBEM - A2 HEM1,301,320,319
& 2N A & IR 19 R 4 7 3K PR T Optimus Prime
Management Ltd °

BEFBERAFEEERBRAR([RAFEE])
K China Orient Alternative Investments Fund
([COAIF]) IRZZT—R"EFRERZTHRXR
#) X #2 Optimus Prime Management Ltd.

([Optimus| ) #1,301,320,319 8% A 2 & B 1%
FRHERBEZBETRREAEEESE (BK) =
AERAR ([RAFEE]) 7 384,000,000 & A&
A % o ¥ G # &= o Optimus B COAIF & &
WA o COAIFFR R 7 B #E B 45% © 3 75 B R
f ()Wise Leader Assets Ltd. ( [Wiseleader] -
MRRER (ER) ARAF ([RIE]) 25%
B) HEES0%: RRB(ARFEEZEE
B) HEHS0% - RIBEFAFRBEGKN - RiR -
Wise Leader R R T BEEWH R AR R T BEKF
A #9384,000,000 J& AN A 7 B 15 R HE B
MCOAIF + 3 5 Bl B« E iR - Wise Leader &
REEEWHBEABNROptimusHERFEZ N
1,301,320,319 R AR FIAR (D R HE B 2 ©

Company and China Orient Asset Management (International) Holding
Limited (“COAMI”) has an interest in 384,000,000 shares of the
Company. Optimus is wholly owned by COAIF. COAIF is owned as to
45% by COAMI. COAMI is owned as to (i) 50% by Wise Leader Assets
Ltd. (“Wise Leader”) which is wholly owned by Dong Yin Development
(Holdings) Limited (“Dong Yin”); and (ii) 50% by Dong Yin which is
wholly owned by COAMC. By virtue of the SFO, Dong Yin, Wise Leader
and COAMC are deemed to be interested in 384,000,000 shares of the
Company held by COAMI, and COAIF, COAMI, Dong Yin, Wise Leader
and COAMC are deemed to be interested in 1,301,320,319 shares of
the Company held by Optimus as security interest.

9. Based on Form 2 filed on 20 May 2016 by China Orient Alternative 9. R % China Orient Alternative Investment Fund
Investment Fund Management Limited (“China Orient Alternative Management Limited ( [ China Orient Alternative
Investment Fund Management”), China Orient Alternative Investment Investment Fund Management| ) & X H 8 A&
Fund Management holds 1,301,320,319 shares of the Company as an ZZT-XFA A=+ H#KKE2  China Orient
Investment manager. Alternative Investment Fund Management {E &%

BRI 1,301,320,319 B AR A A EAD ©

REFEZEMERERRAF ([EFR]) REXE
A ([BEE]) RRAPR-F—LtFRHAN
FHRR2 RERB1 > BEABEE2ERA - K
Z£/31,184,565,000[k R A AR 2 B ERB A ©

2016/2017 3 PEBLBBERHRAT ‘@ '

10.  Based on Form 2 and Form 1 both filed on 4 May 2017 by Contech ~ 10.
Bio-Med Ltd. (“Contech”) and Mr. Kwan Man Cheuk (“Mr. Kwan”),
Contech is wholly owned by Mr. Kwan. Contech has been the beneficial
owner of 1,184,565,000 shares of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)
10.  (Cont’d)

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Kwan is deemed to be interested in
1,184,565,000 shares of the Company in which Contech is interested
as of 30 April 2017.

Mr. Kwan personally holds 66,890,000 shares of the Company. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Kwan, together with his deemed interests in
Contech, is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 1,251,455,000
shares of the Company as at 30 April 2017.

The Company was informed by Contech that it has pledged its interests
in 1,184,565,000 shares of the Company in favour of Mason Resources
Finance Limited.

11.  Based on Form 2 filed on 23 January 2017 by China Dragon Asia
Champion Fund Serise SPC (“China Dragon”), China Dragon holds
1,094,929,300 shares of the Company as an Investment manager.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2017, the Directors are not
aware that there is any other party (other than the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company (i) which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (i) which were required, pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES” in this report, at no time during the
year were the rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
chief executive of the Company or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights or benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

FERREEMA LR REER
s ()

BisE : (48)
10. (&)

BEEHLMBEES B2 — timﬂ
=t+H BEEREAERRTER RS
1,184,565,000 IR AN A &I D R B S o

E«%f‘aii/\ﬁﬁ 66,890,000 f& AR A &)y © 1RIE
BERBERDN R-T—+FHA=+H " &
Hﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁ/\/q\qﬂ%ﬁz*&m B AR AE
AA $1,251,455,0000% A2 &) f 0 R B RS o

KABEERZEN - EB1#E 7 1,184,565,000
AR BIRR D R SIKIR FRRE RIS ER
NGO

11. R ¥ China Dragon Asia Champion Fund Serise
SPC ( [China Dragon| ) IRZXWM BB A-T—+
F—A-+=HHEK2  China DragonE &%
BEIEFEH 1,094,929,300 fx AR BIREAD ©

B EXPREEIN RZTE—tFMUA=+H"
EEHIABEMEMAL (EERARARS

THABBRIN RARRRG - HERND RES
o ﬁﬁﬁﬂ&‘%ﬂf’ﬁ%ﬁ()*E%ifmz%&ﬁﬁiﬂwﬁu
XVESE 2 R 3D 2 G AMARN R PTIR
(e i AN %-i(u)*ﬁ%gmﬁﬁzﬂ;ﬁfﬂwu
336 KB ARG E RN 2 R FA R ©

ESWBROEER 2 ER

BARE [EERETHRABRERN RAREK

Dz Em Ok R | —EFEEE - NFREM
BE - ENEFHARARSTRABHRES
B ZRESARM 18R F X BER A BWEA
RERMDREREF MBS EAHERN - REIE
TTEEAEM L4 R AR B REME QB RERT

SEAMZH  FEFAERKREARRREIAE
1A 2 B S ERERE A ERGZ SHEM S A &5
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Company had not entered into any connected transaction during
the year which is required to be disclosed under the GEM Listing
Rules.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and chief executives and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 9 to
the financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in
note 33 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or the substantial shareholders of the Company,
or any of their respective close associates (as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 87% of the Group’s total turnover for the year. In
particular, sales to the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 46% of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 95% of the Group’s total purchases for the year. In
particular, purchases from the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 47% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company, their close associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors of the Company own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests in the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

N
=

ZAN/N ﬂﬁéiﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁi{ﬂﬁﬁﬁmiwjz A8 Al
ATHEN

3t

i
g
!

EERESTHRABURANESH
AT &

EENESITBRABUNAEERUESHAL
ZNE IR IS TRERMI S -

HEABCR

RIFHEEGEERBAKEZKLZXE - (@
ARBRAEBLBRZTIHED - A KBz H
MBEREEAEEEREENSRERE ZHMER
e

ARFERM—IEBREAE - ERHEERE
BiREE Z5EE - ZA B ZHBHNMBRRM
330

*¥ ¥,

EERARATIERRIBES G 2 EMETH
ZA (ERRAEREMRA) HEARREE R
ﬁkiziﬁm&i—mbigi S Ak ¥R TN

ETREFPRMEER

AEERARAREFNHEEAKREAFRERER
BMIBT% > MM T - ARERZATFHIHE
HAREARERENEEEEL46% °

AEERIAHEANRBEAREAFEER
FBREMIO5% - ML - ARBERHRAHEED
RBEASBARFENERBEOAT% -

BMEARNRES HETBEA (ERRAER
EARAD HEFMBR (MARREEFRE - B8
RRBEEITRABEE% 2 RR) RAEBEK
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USE OF PROCEEDS FRERIEAR
The following table sets out the revised use and actual use of the net F&R#BIIEE—FT—tFHA=1THIE - BEM
proceeds from the placings as at 30 April 2017: BRIBFELETRERERRS
Revised use of the net proceeds
Date of announcement Fund raising activities FEREREZ Total net proceeds Utilised Unutilised
AEAH 557 "ETRE FEREFELSE EBA KEA
(HKD Milion) (HKD Milion) (HKD Milion)
(BB%T) (BE%ET) (BEB%T)
10 November 2014, Placing of 3,300,000,000 (a)  Used for existing operations and 73.0 73.0 -
6 February 2015 and 5 new shares and grant products development and expansions in
March 2015 of share options under tissue engineering
—Z-WF+—-A+R =% specific mandate under (6) BREBTRZEALENESREN
—hFEZARBRZZ—RF  theFirst Placing LR
=A%A RE—REEHE TRERRIHRE
23,300,000, 000 BT (o) Used for broadening R&D coverage, 269.0 269.0 -
R AR capturing strategic investment

opportunities in regenerative medicine
and stem cell related industries, and
other investments

b) ARBERARBEEE BEELRZ
RBAMEREENERREREMA
iR &

() Settlement of consideration under the 475.0 475.0 -
Sale and Purchase Agreement

(0 FEEEEBHEETZRE

Sub-total 817.0 817.0 -
P
23 March 2015 and 22 Placing of 977,300,000 (@)  Used for existing operations and 64.6 64.6 -
April 2015 new shares under products development and expansions
“Z-AF=ZAZ1+=HRZZ  general mandate under in tissue engineering
—REMAZF+ZA the Second Placing (@) AREBTIRZRELENERMEN

REZREEHE TRE—REHE RiER
fid & 977,300,000 B3 7

(b)  Used for broadening R&D coverage, 81.4 81.4 —
capturing strategic investment
opportunities in regenerative medicine
and stem cell related industries, and
other investments

b) BRERMEEZHE PLEELES
LB EENEREEARENA
&

(c)  Settlement of consideration under the
Sale and Purchase Agreement 130.0 130.0 -
© FEEEGIETIRE

Sub-total 276.0 276.0 -
INEE
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USE OF PROCEEDS (Cont’d) FrSRIBAZE ()
Revised use of the net proceeds
Date of announcement Fund raising activities FEREFE2 Total net proceeds Utilised Unutilised
AERE £EEH KETTRR FEXEFELE 2EA REA
(HKD Million) (HKD Million) (HKD Million)
(R8%T) (Bg%T) (B8#ET)
10 July 2015 and 30 July Placing of 1,150,000,000 (@)  Money lending operation 150.0 120.0 30.0
2015 new shares under @) MEXH
“T-RFLA+AR-F—T  general mandate under
FLA=TA the Third Placing ... 0 Medcal equipment tracing
REZAEEBTRE-REE ) BELEZS 50.0 500 _

B & 1,150,000,000 R & 13
(©)  General working capital
(© :

—HEEAS
256.0 256.0 -

Sub-total 456.0 426.0 30.0

bt

Total 1,549.0 1,519.0 30.0

o

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED [BE - BOIHEAR AT LHES
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 30 April 2017, the Company repurchased a total #ZE T —+FMHA=FTHILFE AR ﬂ EEA
of 6,390,000 shares, which were wholly cancelled on 8 September Hﬁ*“ﬁﬁ%@ & 4£6,390,000 Hxﬂxfﬁ (BR=

2016, at an aggregate purchase price of HK$1,847,425 (excluding /L A\ B 2 &1 8H) - W%F%1m7@5
commission of HK$11,120) from the Stock Exchange. Particulars of 7T (T BEHE &£ 11 120/%75) o Rl v F B

the repurchases are as follows: — N
Price per
share or
Total number highest price Lowest
Repurchase date of shares paid price paid Total paid
[EEE=7:3
BN et
BB A A IR 4B BEER REERK X
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
(BT) (BT) (BT) (BT)
26 July 2016 ZE-RFEHZ+XH 1,000,000 0.295 0.295 295,000
27 July 2016 ZE-RFEHZ++tH 230,000 0.29 0.29 66,700
28 July 2016 ZE-RFEHZTNH 1,130,000 0.29 0.29 327,700
29 July 2016 —E-RFEHZTANAB 1,035,000 0.29 0.285 296,975
1 August 2016 —E-RFNA—H 995,000 0.29 0.29 288,550
3 August 2016 —E-RFNA=H 500,000 0.29 0.29 145,000
4 August 2016 ZE-RFNAMA 1,000,000 0.285 0.285 285,000
5 August 2016 —E-RFNARA 500,000 0.285 0.285 142,500
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
practices. Details of the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 73 to 96. The Directors believe the long term financial
performance as opposed to short term rewards is a corporate
governance objective. The Board would not take undue risks to make
short term gains at the expense of long term objectives.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director the written confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has eight members, comprising of all non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors),
namely Mr. Lui Tin Nang (the chairman of Audit Committee), Professor
Cui Zhanfeng, Dr. Ray Yip, Professor Xiong Chengyu, Mr. Wang Hui,
Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny, Mr. Chan Bing Woon and Mr. Wong Yiu
Kit Ernest. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

PN IUN
JJ:%'E'/I:

ARA—HERRKFZEEERTR - AR7
PR EEERERFBNENETZIEF 6
Bz h¥ERAWME EFHE CEBERERD
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Sai Hung
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 17 July 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN 2 AR S

|IBDO

Tel : +8522218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EEE 1 +8522218 8288 5B
{8H : +85228152239 FEER11158

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA REGENERATIVE MEDICINE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
HEBLEBEERERAR

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 152 to 247,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 April 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 April 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN 2 AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment

(Refer to notes 14, 16 and 18 to the consolidated financial
Statements)

As at 30 April 2017, the carrying amounts of goodwill, other intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment are HK$197 million,
HK$426 million and HK$220 million respectively. These assets are
mainly relating to Aierfu Business, Reshine Business, Weikai Business
and AK Business and are assessed annually for impairment. The
Group has made losses for current and previous years. These
situations increase the risk that the carrying value of these assets may
be impaired.

Impairment tests require the estimation of recoverable values of
the relevant cash generating units using a discounted cash flow, as
detailed in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

We have identified such impairment assessment is a key audit
matter because of their significance to the consolidated financial
statements and it involves a significant degree of judgement made by
management which includes:

—  Preparing future cash flow forecasts for Aierfu Business,
Reshine Business, Weikai Business and AK Business; and

—  Selecting and applying appropriate growth and discount rates.

The Group engages an independent external valuer to assist the
management in assessing the recoverable values.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Our response

Our procedures in relation to the management’s impairment
assessment included:

— Assessing the accuracy of management’s forecast by
comparing previous budgets to actual results;

— Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions of the
forecast based on our knowledge of the industry and evidence
provided;

—  Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies;

— Reconciling input data to supporting evidence and checking the
mathematical accuracy of the calculation of the valuations; and

— Evaluating the independent external valuer’'s competence,
capabilities and objectivity.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the annual report but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
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BB E T AR A M S R AR
Bt (&)

J AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise {ERBEBABFTERETESTNBIES - HME

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism T ¥ E - RF T EXERRREE - M5 -
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Pik Wah

Practising Certificate Number P0O5325

Hong Kong, 17 July 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e Bm R EMEEAK

J For the year ended 30 April 2017 HE=Z—+FMHA=1THIEFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET FAETT
(restated)
(&&E7)
Revenue Wz 5 356,987 27,751
Cost of sales SHE KA (219,462) (9,410)
Gross profit EX 137,525 18,341
Other income H YA 5 45,144 110,981
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R HH X (66,796) (33,078)
Administrative and other expenses TR H M B 2 (322,464) (270,171)
Finance costs B 7% & A 7 (24,426) (25,827)
Fair value gain on contingent FEY A RIEZ
consideration receivables A ERE 17 20,097 8,556
Loss before income tax KRET BB AT E A 8 (210,920) (191,198)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe, (Ax) 11 11,728 (3,326)
Loss for the year TEEHE (199,192) (194,524)
Other comprehensive income HiZ2mUWA
Items that may be reclassified subsequently — E & AJfEE# HIEZE
to profit or loss: BamsHE -
Exchange loss on translation of BB GINETS I S TR
financial statements of foreign operations ZER R (87,777) (23,412)
Total comprehensive income for the year ZAEEZEEAWA (236,969) (217,936)
Loss for the year attributable to: R ATEEREEES :
Owners of the Company RAREERA (184,502) (190,902)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR I R i i (14,690) (3,622)
(199,192) (194,524)
Total comprehensive income for the year LT ALEEEREE
attributable to: EEABKA :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NGTE 2 =D/ (215,988) (213,085)
Non-controlling interests RS IR R A i (20,981) (4,851)
(236,969) (217,936)
Loss per share for loss for the year AATFEE AEL
attributable to owners of the Company AEEEFRZERER 13
— basic (HK cents) — B (BL) (1.049) (1.108)
— diluted (HK cents) — #5E (BL) N/A i A N/A 73 F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIO

sra IO R

As at 30 April 2017 A =%

—tFMOMA=+H

o

2017 2016
—EB—+F —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
hE=s FET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERER
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - E MR 14 220,114 172,753
Land use rights + s R 15 4,219 4,584
Goodwill mE 16 196,983 196,983
Contingent consideration receivables JEM S ARE 17 46,259 28,030
Other intangible assets HE i a e 18 425,716 486,500
Deposits for acquisition of property, BEME - BE&EE
plant and equipment k2 70,136 17,934
Pledged bank deposits E}ﬁﬁﬂfiﬂffﬁ\ 23 794,743 —
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESmERE 19 112,928 =
1,871,098 906,784
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 20 60,567 8,967
Trade receivables e E 5 BR18 21 39,117 19,992
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &4 - [ FUIE K&
H At e U AR IR 21 333,679 105,836
Financial assets at fair value through BAFERERTYR
profit or loss ZEMEE 22 12,036 —
Pledged bank deposits BERBITER 23 - 558,873
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeSE TEIEE 23 571,732 1,300,825
1,017,131 1,994,493
Current liabilities }ﬁibﬁfs
Trade payables ERES 24 38,993 1,570
Accrued charges and other payables ﬁ.ﬁr%ﬁﬁ &,H\WEJEHHEIE— 25 104,689 139,651
Bank borrowings RITIE K 26 28,345 542,553
Current tax liabilities EHNIEAE 4,267 8,997
176,294 692,771
Net current assets RBEEFE 840,837 1,301,722
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBERE 2,711,935 2,208,506
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Bank borrowings RITHEK 26 725,632 —
Deferred taxation RIEFIE 27 78,411 90,306
804,043 90,306
Net assets EEFE 1,907,892 2,118,200
EQUITY =
Share capital PR 28 175,858 175,922
Reserves Gl 1,701,179 1,890,442
Equity attributable to owners AARHEEAELER
of the Company 1,877,037 2,066,364
Non-controlling interests IR R RER 30,855 51,836
Total equity BRER 1,907,892 2,118,200
On behalf of the directors RERE=S
Mr. Wong Sai Hung Mr. Chen Chunguo
L FREE L
Director Director
EZE EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EHR

For the year ended 30 April 2017 #ZE ==

—A= \ / —
1{% . ingin

/\\/T\

—tFHA=THILEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Non-
controlling
interests

FER

ADAEEAERE RREx ait
Share Share  Translation Special QOther Share option Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total
Rx  ROEE BERE WHEE  HUEE BRERE  ZEE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThETL T Tin T Tin Tin Tin Fin Fin Tin
(note 28)
(K3t 28)
At 1 May 2015 K-%-1%%8F-A 164422 2,754,185 4,436 (200) (410,463 24678 (734,060 1,802,998 4217 1,844.215
Loss for the year REERR - - - - - - (190902 (190902 (3622) (194,524
Other comprehensive income Hfp2EHA
Exchange loss on translation of financiel BEBISHEB AR ELBR
statements of foreign operations - - (22,183) - - - - (22,183) (1209 (23412
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2FARA - = (22,189) = = - (190909  (213,089) (4851 (217,936)
Shares issued at premium REBEIRG 1500 448500 - - - - - 460000 - 460,000
Issue of share options (note 33) BTimiE () - = = = = 20,345 = 20,345 = 20,345
Lapse of share options (note 33) EM BiRE (3 3) - - - - - (60) 80 - - -
Acaisttion of subsiolaris (note 3¢) WERBAR (Rit3e) - - - - - - - - 12173 12178
Capital contributions from non-contraling HBAZHERRF A
interests of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 3297 3,297
Share issue expense UL - (38%4) - - - - - (3,804) - (38%4)
At 30 April 2016 RZZ-~EMA=1H
and 1 May 2016 R=E-AERA-A 175922 3,198,791 (17,747) (200)  (410,463) 44943 (924882 2,066,364 51,83 2,118,200
Loss for the year FEEES = - - - - - (184502) (1845020 (14690 (199,192
Other comprehensive income Ay 2EhA
Exchange loss on translation of financil BEBI BB RR ELBR
statements of foreign operations - - (31,486) - - - - (31,486) 6291 (87,777)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2FANA - - (31,486) - - — (184502 (215989 (20981)  (236,969)
Issue of share options (note 33) LT (i 8s) = - - - - 28520 - 28,520 - 28520
Lapse of share options (nots 33) E%ﬂ%&%(T}%/ - - - - - (88789 38789 = = =
Shares repurchased and canceled BEER:HHERD (64) (1,79) - - - - - (1,859) - (1,859)
At30 April 2017 R-2-tEMAZ1E 17508 3196996 (49289 (00 (410463 MM (1070595 18700 30855 1907802
The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal  HHkEBEAEER — T —FH4E - WIKE

value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the time of the
Group’s reorganisation in 2001.

The other reserve represents the difference between the fair value
of consideration paid to increase the shareholding in a subsidiary,
Shaanxi Aierfu Activtissue Engineering Company Limited (“Shaanxi
Aierfu”), and the amount of adjustment to non-controlling interests
during the years ended 30 April 2011, 2013 and 2014.

B AR EEEAR AR EZFHE AR
TP RETZARRRNEE L Z5 -

HFBERBE—T——F —T—=FKk_
E-NFEMA=THIEFERENN —FHBA
A REVEEAZTREARLAA ([BRAXEA

Bl ZREREZ R FEEIEEAR AR R E
AR SR R ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

\\/T\/\Iﬁiﬁs%_ﬁ

For the year ended 30 April 2017 #ZE ==

—tFHA=THILEFE

o

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities KRETH2HERE
Loss before income tax BRPT1STRRTE 1B (210,920) (191,198)
Adjustments for: R
Amortisation of land use rights o Hh (55 PR AR 6 102 109
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b S A AN 40,997 38,565
Depreciation e 14,181 13,218
Interest income FEWA (20,128) (109,562)
Gain on disposals of property plant HEWE  BRER&E
and equipment, net Wz (F5E) (48) (77)
Gain on financial assets at fair value BAFEREZRYEE
through profit or loss ZeBMEE W (2,006) —
Fair value gain on contingent consideration FER S AREZ
receivables NEER S (20,097) (8,556)
Equity-settled share-base payment expenses — LAREzS 45 & 2 fiiE
XER 28,520 20,345
Interest expenses ISk==E! 24,426 25,827
Operating loss before working capital EEESEEA
changes 2R EE (144,973) (211,329)
Increase in inventories FEHEM (51,600) (4,000)
Increase in trade receivables FEUE 5 BRI AN (19,125) (19,327)
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits, E& - BAREREA
prepayments and other receivables FEMERTE (3E00) /R (237,278) 61,737
Increase in trade payables BB 5 BRIEIE N 37,423 635
(Decrease)/Increase in accrued charges FEET B R R E b fE T BRIE
and other payables (A /& (34,962) 74,269
Increase in financial assets at fair value BEAFEREZS R
through profit or loss 2 & B E EE N (10,030) —
Cash used in operations REEBFERAZES (460,545) (98,015)
Income taxes paid ERPTSHE (348) (1,102)
Net cash used in operating activities RETEFEARESFH (460,893) (99,117)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FEEERER
For the year ended 30 April 2017 HEZE =T —+FMNA=FTHIFE

J 2017 2016

—E—+F S ANCS
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i FBT FET
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZHERE
Interest received B U F 8 29,563 92,679
Increase in pledged deposits B 17 58 10 (235,870) (536,251)
Increase in deposits for acquisition BEYWE  BEIEHE
of property, plant and equipment & 10 (52,202) (17,934)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BEMEE 14 (70,947) (16,348)
Purchase of other intangible assets BEEMEREE 18 (2,576) (4,021)
Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets & At HES R EE (112,928) —
Acquisition of subsidiaries, UG EEFT B A A -
net of cash acquired BEHREWEIIR S 34 - (40,284)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEE - BE L&
plant and equipment Fr3 sk IE 227 172
Net cash used in investing activities RETEBFEARSTHE (444,733) (521,987)
Cash flows from financing activities AEETH2RERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BATRR M K B AR e
and share options FriSskIE - 460,000
Share repurchased and cancelled B B0 &R D (1,859) —
Share issue expenses paid BEROEITHS - (3,894)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIERPTIE IR 725,632 486,012
Repayments of bank borrowings EZBIRITIENK (514,208) —
Capital contributions from non-controlling Bt A Rz FEFERR
interests of subsidiaries BRERTE - 3,297
Interest paid on bank borrowings BEATIRITERK
and other payables K B FE SRR IE 2 FI 2 (24,426) (25,827)
Net cash from financing activities MEETEMERESFE 185,139 919,588
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRkBEESEEER
and cash equivalents 2 GRd) /#EhnEsE (720,487) 298,484
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning SHZHER
of the year BEZEER 1,300,825 1,008,984
Effect of exchange rate changes EXSEHHRES R
on cash and cash equivalents ReEEEAZHE (8,606) (6,643)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FERZEER
of the year Re&Z%EER 571,732 1,300,825
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTk B ot

For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

o

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law (Revision 2001) of Cayman Islands on 20 April 2001.
The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is 10th Floor, Everbright Centre, 108
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares
are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to
the financial statements. The Company and its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as the “Group” hereafter.

The comparative figures of selling and distribution expenses
and administrative and other expenses have been reclassified
to conform with the current year’s presentation.

The financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2017 were
approved for issue by the board of directors on 17 July 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 152 to 247 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI =t

For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

J 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTBERHZE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the
impacts on the Group’s financial statements, if any, are
disclosed in note 3.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for contingent consideration
receivable and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, which are stated at fair value. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in note 4.

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

2.1

WREE (&
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTk B ot

For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTBERHZE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Business combination and basis of

consolidation (Cont’d)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTk B ot

For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

J 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTBERHZE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Business combination and basis of

consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI =t

For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3

2.4

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able
to exercise control. The Group controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect
those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever
facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the reporting
date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #ZE ==

IR M EE
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J 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TE=FBEREBE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4

2.5

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HKS$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rate over
the reporting period provided that the exchange rates do
not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the translation
reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and
other items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #ZE ==
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided
to write off the cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Buildings over 50 years or the
terms of the leases,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvement 33%

Furniture and equipment 5%-25%

Computer equipment 33%

Motor vehicles 20%-25%
The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Land use rights

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an
operating lease are stated at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The determination if an arrangement is or contains a lease
and the lease is an operating lease is detailed in note 2.13.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line method
over the term of the lease/right of use except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern
of benefits to be derived by the Group from use of the
land.

2.

FTESTHBRBE (&)

2.5 W% MERZE (&)

WME - BERRBTIRTHFNEX -
PG EH R E B B A B ARVERTH IR T
B AMURERAREEE(E ¢

gF LA +F sk E 5
(ABEEAE) sTE

HEMFEEE 33%
f%ﬁﬁzx&* = 5%-25%
BIKER M 33%
T 20%-25%

REREBSEMEEZEE  RE
FERAIFERFER  WHEERFET

A -

BEXHEEL 2 WEHEES R
ﬁﬁﬁ?%?ilﬁﬁiéﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁZ%EE%
E o WRBHPRHER

fHEZEE AR 2 ARREHEN A A
BEMAARSEE - IR B AKARER] i
AENERERKAIIABEREE
SERARBLEE (WER) - AR
A (IS R RE) @%éiz/ﬁ\?f
BB AR B s kR

26 TtHEHE

WEKEHEEBRTMIEA L 2 AN
IR T IR B AN R, B 5t 85 S (R ] R &
MEBESR BE -—BLHSEE
REBEHENRZHEERTBRE
ERETIME2 A3 FA - #iHT)
KREE ERERRRERETE
WA S —BEETERRAEEE
BERA R A ELE RS ZFEEE
ZUBRSD ©

2016 /2017 F3 PEBLEELBEEFRAS '@



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

J 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. E=FBERBE (8

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.7

2.8

Gooawill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the
fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for impairment (see
note 2.17).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and
research and development activities

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use. The following useful lives are applied:

Trademark 15 years
Patents 7-15 years
Capitalised development costs 10 years
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8

2L

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and
research and development activities (Cont’d)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

° It is technically feasible to develop the product for it
to be sold;

° Adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

° There is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

° The Group is able to sell the product;

° Sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and

° Expenditure on the project can be measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above criteria
and expenditure on the research phase of internal projects
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and available-for-sale financial assets. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition depending on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired and where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.
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J 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTBERHZE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d) 29 zHEE (&)

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to
assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined
and recognised based on the classification of the financial
asset.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments or financial
guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated
as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss,
except where the embedded derivative does not
significant modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TE=FBEREBE (&)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d) 29 zHEE (&)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Cont’d)

Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met:

—  The designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or recognising
gains or losses on them on a different basis; or

— The assets are part of a group of financial assets
which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy and
information about the group of financial assets
is provided internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or

—  The financial asset contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets
included in his category are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.
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J 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTBERHZE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d) 29 zHEE (&)

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale or are not included in
other categories of financial assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these assets are carried at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments,
which are recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than at fair
value through profit or loss are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

—  Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— Granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

— It becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TE=FBEREBE (&)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d) 29 zHEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.

Loans and receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised in profit
or loss of the period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the reversal occurs.
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J 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTBERHZE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d) 29 zHEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-
sale financial asset has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, an
amount is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss as an impairment loss. That amount is measured as
the difference between the asset’s acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale and stated at fair value are
not recognised in profit or loss. The subsequent increase
in fair value is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income. Impairment losses in respect of debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversal of impairment
losses in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

For financial assets other than financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial
assets and loan and receivables that are stated at
amortised cost, impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly. Where the recovery
of trade receivables is considered doubtful but not
remote, the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery of trade receivables is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account in respect of that receivable are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. E=FBERBE (8
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.10Inventories 210775

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. In the case of work in progress and
finished goods, cost also comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of
completion and applicable selling expenses.

2.11Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in
hand, time deposits with banks within original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.12Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
accrued charges and other payables and bank
borrowings.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 2.20).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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J 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TE=FBEREBE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.12Financial liabilities (Cont’d) 212E/E1E (&)
Borrowings -7
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of BROLEATE (HREEENR
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently SRA) R - BREBIZEEHKX
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the AFIER - PTERIE (B ZA) B
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption B Bl BB 2 [ /Y (R ] Z 5E A 8 SRHAER
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the RAEBRFEENERPER °

borrowing using effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the RIEAEEEEGHEINBERZEE
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of WHREEZERE A EZS + =@
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting A BRERGEAERB ARG -

date.

Other financial liabilities Hftz@aE

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at their Htema BV SREQAFERER -
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, BE1E R BB A BRI P AN T = ©

using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method ERRFEL

The effective interest method is a method of calculating ERMEEATN S EENREGEERE
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability EXsRBEC#HKNARD BT E
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over WASFIERZ 2% BERFER
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate BEFTRRIBES WA T RE BB
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or BESSRAE CTEBE AN (HiE
payments through the expected life of the financial asset ) 25 HRERIT IR 2 = o

or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.13Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(M

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases, with the following exception:

— land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon, at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease (see
note 2.6). For these purposes, the inception
of the lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rental are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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J 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTBERHZE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.14 Share capital 2.14 87K

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

2.15Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, the rendering
of services and the use by others of the Group’s assets
yielding interest, net of rebates and discounts. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the customer. This is
usually taken as the time when the goods are delivered
and the customer has accepted the goods.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

2.16 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate. Government grants relating
to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are recognised in profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TE=FBEREBE (&)

POLICIES (Cont’d)
217 L MEEHE

2.17Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiaries, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, land
use rights and interests in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.
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J 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTBERHZE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

217 HLHEERE (4B

2.17Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units,
to which goodwill has been allocated, are credited
initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less cost to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods including impairment losses
recognised in an interim period. In respect of other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss has
been recognised.

2.18 Employee benefits

(i)  Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer’s contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TE=FBEREBE (&)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.18 Employee benefits (Cont’d) 2.181ES#E 7 (1B

(i)  Retirement benefits (Cont’d)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

(ii) Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

2.19 Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in
share-based payment reserve within equity. Non-market
vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at the end
of each reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all other vesting conditions
are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether the
market vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.
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J 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTBERHZE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.19 Share-based payments (Cont’d) 2A19URG BEBZ T (B

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at fair
values. These are indirectly determined by reference to
the equity instruments awarded. The value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss with a corresponding credit to
share-based payment reserve, net of deferred tax where
applicable. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of
share options expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable.
Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any
indication that the number of share options expected to
vest differs from previous estimates. No adjustment to
expense recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in fair value of the options,
measured immediately before and after the modification,
is also recognised in profit or loss over the remaining
vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other
than employees and others providing similar services,
the fair value of goods or services received is recognised
in profit or loss unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. A corresponding increase in equity
is recognised. For cash-settled share based payments,
a liability is recognised at the fair value of the goods or
services received.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TE=FBEREBE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.19 Share-based payments (Cont’d) 2A19URG BEBZ T (B

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the
vested share options are lapsed, forfeited or still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

2.20Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction
or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset
is an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost
of a qualified asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are complete.

2.21 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities relating
to the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid
at the reporting date. They are calculated according to
the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods
to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax expense in profit or
loss.
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J 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTBERHZE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

221 FiiB# z &5t mt (&

2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit, including
existing taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
difference arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability
is settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity if they relate to items that are charged
or credited to other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TE=FBEREBE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Cont’d) 221 BB &t nt (&
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented ERHIEEEHEEPRBEERIR
in net if, and only if, ATNERFREES ¢
(@  The Group has the legally enforceable right to set off (a) AEEKEGRBIHITER LA
the recognised amounts; and EEReEEHE &
(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise (b) FrEIVFREEAELENRIREER
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. BERGEARE -
The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax AEBRSEUTERTAFEL
liabilities in net if, and only if, RIERIAE EMRETEAE ¢
(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off (a) ZERKEERGINITER] A
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and EHFIEEENEZ T IEAEY
iR
(o) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax b) EEFEEEHEREEHBEES
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same BT [ — TR S A% B L A T (E T —
taxation authority on either: HATBU R ET B R
()  the same taxable entity; or () F—ERBEER =X
(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to (i) FrEINSEARREMA (ME
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net HAfE B B HARS A i 4505 X
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the U 81 K 28 /IR RE 7 18 B 1B
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period NEE) WFREEELEEE
in which significant amounts of deferred tax HMIE e EEE EXFR
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled BHEEREBTRENT
or recovered. EERTAERE -
2.22 Segment reporting 2.22 7 BB
The Group identifies operating segments and prepares BIBEARTEEERMAHBEFTRER
segment information based on the regular internal SEEFBK D HEIRD B KT A% 7%
financial information reported to the executive directors EXDKRENEHABAEER + &
for their decisions about resources allocation to the SEBERCEDBRERDIER
Group’s business components and for their review of MITEEZRHAIL I E R AR
the performance of those components. The business ¥BRD IRBEASEFEZER KR
components in the internal financial information reported TRIBFATETE ©

to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.
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J 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TE=FBEREBE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.22 Segment reporting (Cont’d) 222725 E (&)

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

Tissue engineering — production and sale of tissue
engineering products;

Cell — cell therapy, and medical equipment and other
services;

Cosmetic and others — production and sales of
cosmetic, healthcare and others products; and

Medical equipment — trading of medical equipment.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except that:

— fair value gain on contingent consideration
receivables

— finance costs
—  income tax

— corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets except contingent
consideration receivables, available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and corporate assets which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment are
not allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to the
Group’s headquarter.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TE=FBEREBE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.22 Segment reporting (Cont’d) 2227 B8 A ()
Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are DHBEETEERAEEEBREML
not directly attributable to the business activities of any BN EKFHANT T FENE—
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment. D EEBEE ZEHBEERE
These include deferred tax liabilities and liabilities incurred BREFHBEEERERE (M3EZEH
for financing rather than operating purposes. m) MEEZAE -
2.23 Related parties 223FEAN L
(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family (a) MHEBIATAL BIiZALTZA
is related to the Group if that person: T 2R IR B EAEE
PR
()  has control or joint control over the Group; ()  IEHIS RS AR S
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEEBEATE : 3k
(i) is a member of key management personnel of (i) AAEEXARRTAH
the Group or the Company’s parent. MEZEREKE -
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) Th?"/\T§|JTE1T1‘m1¢ BN g £
following conditions apply: NEE B EE
()  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZERBHEAEEEBER %
same group (which means that each parent, BzKERAR (ISR
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to IR NG
the others). NE L EEREE) o

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture i)y —HERBAS EBME
of the other entity (or an associate or joint ERAEAEERE (KB —
venture of a member of a group of which the B ‘a‘i%ﬁﬁ BRAIZEBIE
other entity is a member). TR B A A 2B &R Rk

BEbE) o

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same iy MEEBHER-—F=7H
third party. MG & o

(v)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy —HEBAF-FE®BH
and the other entity is an associate of the third GEMPE ME—HEA
entity. ZE=HERREE AR
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J 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TE=FBEREBE (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.23 Related parties (Cont’d) 223EANL ()
(b)  (Cont’d) b) (&)
(V) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan vy ERAASEFHEAEH
for the benefit of the employees of the Group MEsERREEN=
or an entity related to the Group. RN R BER R AIETE o
(v  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by (vi) EBEX (a) Tk A A TIE
a person identified in (a). gl 52 HE R o
(vi) A person identified in (a)() has significant (i) R (a )()Fﬂ%}”ﬂ/\iﬁﬁﬁf
influence over the entity or is a member of key BEATE NS BZER
management personnel of the entity (or of a (KBRS A)) £2
parent of the entity). EIEEKE
(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of (vii) MAEEKAAEEGR
which it is a part, provides key management ARHIZEEREAER
personnel services to the Group or to the BHEREEEMKE
Group’s parent. NGO
Close members of the family of a person are those family EBEATZERREKE REHRE
members who may be expected to influence, or be ETRRBETEZALTHZZALE
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity BZERGRKE - B
and include:

ZALTZFEARBEBRREH

—
=

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner; 13

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic (i) RATEBIREMEZTFX:
partner; and P54

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse (i) RALTHEHEBRREHEZE
or domestic partner. BEA e
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TE=FBEREBE (&)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.24 Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

During the year, the Group has adopted all the amended
HKFRSs which are first effective for the reporting year and
relevant to the Group. The adoption of these amended HKFRSs
did not result in material changes to the Group’s accounting
policies.

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group’s current intention is to apply these changes on the
date they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Statement of Cash
Flows

The amendments are effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017. The amendments introduce
an additional disclosure that will enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financial
activities.
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4.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Income Taxes

The amendments are effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017. The amendments relate to the
recognition of deferred tax assets and clarify some of the
necessary considerations, including how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Share-based
Payment

The amendments are effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments provide a
requirement on the accounting for the effects of vesting and
non-vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-settled
share-based payments; share-based payment transactions with
a net settlement feature for withholding tax obligations; and
a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based
payment that changes the classification of the transaction from
cash-settled to equity-settled.

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows (the business model test) and that have contractual
terms that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
if the objective of the entity’s business model is both to hold
and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the financial
assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to measure equity instruments that are not held for
trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

3.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect their
risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39,
except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the
amount of change in fair value attributable to change in credit
risk of the liability is recognised in other comprehensive income
unless that would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch.
In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. The new standard establishes a
single revenue recognition framework. The core principle of
the framework is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and
services. HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to
revenue recognition:

3.

BRANETR] SERT BB I S
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FREMBREERF ORI IR A FER
BalRAECMATREEMAFHTEN
BEBERN (MREESEF 9%
BEELBEEN)  ARMAFN—RE+HE
AHRE - MEEEBRM BRI AR iR R
HEREEEE -

FEMBHREENFORERTESER
FREHACTHABER  DEKTE
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EkroN REBEEERREHSI B A FE
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Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer B BRIERFAEIAD

Step 2: ldentify the performance obligations in the contract SR BRAYZENET

Step 3: Determine the transaction price T3 BERSHER

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance TR BRBEROIEESBHET
obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance obligation FR5  RERSRAORERERKE
is satisfied
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4.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16 will be effective for accounting period beginning
on 1 January 2019. From the perspective as a lessee, under
the existing standard, leases are classified as either finance
lease or operating lease, resulting in different accounting
treatment. Finance leases are required to be accounted for “On
Balance Sheet” (i.e. lease asset and corresponding liabilities
are recognised in the statement of financial position); while
operating lease is accounted for “Off Balance Sheet” where
no asset or liabilities are recognised and the lease expenses
are recognised on a straight-line basis along the lease period.
Under the new standard, “On Balance Sheet” accounting
treatment is required for all leases, except for certain short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The statement of
financial position will be “inflated” by their rights and obligations
relating to their existing operating leases. In addition, the
recognition of operating lease expenses will change from the
existing straight-line model to a “front-loaded” model as finance
lease, i.e. during the initial period of the lease term, the lease
expenses (asset depreciation plus interest) under the new
standard are higher compared to the operating lease expenses
recognised under the existing standard.

From the perspective as a lessor, the accounting stays almost
the same. However, the HKICPA has updated the guidance on
the definition of a lease, sub-lease, as well as the guidance on
the combination and separation of contracts, lessors will also
be affected by the new standard.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these
new pronouncements will result in substantial changes to the
Group’s accounting policies and financial statements.

3.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the impairment of trade
and other receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based
on the credit history of its customers or debtors and current
market conditions. Management reassesses the impairment of
trade and other receivables at the reporting date.

Estimated impairment of gooawill, other intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment related
to cash-generating units

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 2.17. The carrying values of other intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
when there are any indications that the carrying value of other
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use/fair value less
costs of disposal calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates about future cash flows and discount rates.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTk B ot

For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

s

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Estimated impairment of gooawill, other intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment related
to cash-generating units (Cont’d)

In the process of estimating expected future cash flows,
management makes assumptions about future revenues and
profits. The assumptions about future revenues are mainly
based on the actual financial performance of the Group’s
revenue from respective cash generating unit for the year,
the current market demand of the products in the PRC,
the current supply of the similar products in the market, the
estimated utilisation of the Group’s production capacity and the
management’s current assessment of the economic outlook.
The unit selling price is assumed to remain constant throughout
the forecasted period. The assumptions about future profits are
mainly based on the available market data of the profit margin
ratio of companies engaged in respective cash generating unit
in the PRC and global market. As these assumptions relate to
future events and circumstances, the actual results may vary
and may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment within the next financial year.

Determining the appropriate discount rate involves estimating
the appropriate adjustment for market risk and for asset specific
risk factors. The management has taken consideration of risk-
free rate (reference to the yield of the long term bond issued
in the PRC), the cost of equity and debt of the companies in
respective industries and other possible risk factors such as the
market capitalisation of the Group in estimating the discount
rate. Details of the estimates of the recoverable amounts of
cash generating units are disclosed in note 16.

2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Share-based payment transactions

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions
with employees/consultants by reference to the fair value of
the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted.
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions
requires determining the most appropriate valuation model,
which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant.
This estimate also requires determining the most appropriate
inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of
the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making
assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used
for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions
are disclosed in note 383.

Contingent consideration receivables

Where the fair value of contingent consideration receivables
cannot be derived from active markets, their fair value is
determined using valuation techniques including the discounted
cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets, where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. The judgments include considerations of inputs such
as probability-adjusted profit/loss and marketability discount.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of contingent consideration receivables.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The directors review available-for-sale financial assets at the end
of each reporting period to assess whether they are impaired.
The Group records impairment charges on available-for-sale
financial assets when there has a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below their costs. The determination of
what is significant or prolonged required judgement. In making
this judgement, the directors evaluate, among other factors,
historical financial performance and financial position of the
available-for-sale equity investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

‘ 5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WmkEMIA
The Group’s turnover represents revenue from its principal AEEZEXBENERFEAREEEE
activities, measured at the net invoiced value of goods sold, B BRHNBRRERBEZTHNEZEEE R
after allowances for returns and trade discounts during the BERFEFE W o

years presented.

Other income recognised during the year is as follows: RNEFEANDEREMBPALT
2017 2016
—E—t5F —ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Bank interest income RITH B A 12,813 20,532
Fair value gain on financial assets BATERERSIER
at fair value through profit or loss 2 S REBEERNFERE 2,006 —
Gain on disposals of property, LEME - BE k&2 W=
plant and equipment 48 77
Government grant income B RE YA 11,322 768
Interest income on loan receivables FEWE F 2 B A 7,315 89,030
Gain on purchase and sale BERRER 2 W= (FisE)
of Debt Receivables (note) 10,843 —
Others Hb 797 574
45,144 110,981
Note: On 1 November 2016, the Group entered into a sale and Wi R=ZF—A"F+—A—8  AEEHBFT
purchase agreement with independent third parties to acquire FE=AEIMN T EEMZENNERIIBERE
the debt receivables and the associated security package of BTRTas Rz FEMUETS IR AERA I R4 & ([ &
Shenzhen Longzhu Hospital (the “Debt Receivables”) for a g 1) - R{ERARES20,000,0007T °
consideration of RMB520 million. On 22 November 2016, the RZZE—RF+—HA=Z+=H  A&EH
Group entered into another sale and purchase agreement with S—BUE=RFMNT S —MEBEHEN
another independent third party to dispose the Debt Receivables S FE BT - B A AR 530,000,000
for a consideration of RMB530 million. Accordingly, a gain Lo Bt RAFE  REEBRESRRE
on purchase and sale of Debt Receivables of RMB10 million 1 7% 2 Wz A R #10,000,0007¢ (48
(equivalent to HK$11 million) was recognised in profit or loss & 711,000,000 7C) - BT EEEZ
during the year. Details of the disposal were contained in the FBEERARARIBEBHA T —R"FE+—A
Company’s announcement dated 22 November 2016. ity sl = o 47N
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e <
For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEEFR
The executive directors have identified the Group’s four HITESFERRAEENEREBEREED
business lines as operating segments as further described in B (FFBERE2.22) ©
note 2.22.
The operating segments are monitored and strategic decisions BIBEARD DR EEERZELEDPE
are made on the basis of adjusted segment operating results. PEEEYE R AEHH SRERARSK o
Cosmetic and
Tissue engineering Cell others Medical equipment Total
f51R il tHBRL BR%fE ait
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

ZB-tf R F ZE-tF TR CE-tE CRE ZB-tf R F CE-tR R f
HK$000 ~ HKG0O0  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000
TR  TEr TEr  TEr  TEx  TEr  TExn TEr A T

(Restated) (Restated)

({E7]) ({E3])
Revenue ey
— From external customers —RESRER 126,281 5776 214 1,321 44,926 20211 183,056 43 356,987 27,751
— From intersegment revenue —REAFENE 2 - - - 187 - - - 189 -
Reportable segment revenue AFERSPUE 126,283 5776 2724 1,321 45,113 20211 183,056 43 357,176 27,751

Reportable segment profitiloss) ~ ZFSHADEA/ (FB) 538 [908)  (50380) (19099 (10028 (5 (129 05 (61008 (9209

Amortisation offand use rights THEREE 102 109 - - - - - - 102 109
Amortisation of other intanglle assets  EHERAEEH 33,682 34,450 7,315 4115 - = - = 40,997 38,565
Depreciation i 7,758 8,960 2,174 47 633 24 U 8 1059 9,649
Interest income FIEHA 2702 W27 78 13 280 1312 17 15 3,01 35,557
Reportable segment assets BTegouEE 1003750 435143 320783 200171 149459 50329 79725 344405 1553417 1,048,048
Addiions to non-curent segment EREREAPEELRE

assets during the year 3810 1787 66214 998 3,18 835 4 - 346 19670
Reportable segment liabiliies AF2HA0ER 65380 102748 13,899 8869 51,726 6,743 2,680 5046 133685 123,406
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTk B ot

For the year ended 30 April 2017 #ZE ==

s

—tFHA=THILEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments ARE BT & B0 51 TR A 48 58 BN 6 B pA B 7S
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the MRS H AR I TE R AR T ¢

financial statements as follows:

2017 2016
—E—t5F —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Reportable segment revenue AT E2WmoDabE 357,176 27,751
Less: Elimination of intersegment revenue o ;ﬁﬁﬁ% Hiokves (189) —
Group revenue SE W= 356,987 27,751
Reportable segment loss AT EmRHAEE (61,098) (92,095)
Unallocated corporate income ROBLEERA 18,429 74,079
Unallocated corporate expenses ROMEERT (163,922) (155,911)
Fair value gain on contingent FEW S ARE 2 AT ERE
consideration receivables 20,097 8,556
Finance costs MsEA (24,426) (25,827)
Loss before income tax BrETS TR RIE 1B (210,920) (191,198)
Reportable segment assets BT EMDEEE 1,553,417 1,048,048
Available-for-sale financial assets Al ﬁu“j’éé RLE 112,928 —
Financial assets at fair value BATERERIIRZCMEE
through profit or loss 12,036 —
Contingent consideration receivables FEM SR ARAE 46,259 28,030
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReSMEER 288,405 1,197,818
Pledged bank deposits BEEMIRITIFHK 794,743 558,873
Other corporate assets HEMEEE 80,441 68,508
Group assets SEEE 2,888,229 2,901,277
Reportable segment liabilities AT EBHHEE 133,685 123,406
Bank borrowings SRITIER 753,977 542,553
Deferred taxation IRIEFIE 78,411 90,306
Other corporate liabilities EmbEafE 14,264 26,812
Group liabilities ESEl =R 980,337 783,077

ANECERAXTEBEIFERAEALE

Unallocated corporate expenses mainly included staff costs,

exchange loss, equity-settled share-based payments, rental DEZEBEBEENBEIRA - ELE
and other expenses not directly attributable to the business of B UREREECRESNER  HekHE

fFA

any operating segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTk B ot

For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

D EER ()
AEEREINAESIKSREIRBAE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-
current assets other than contingent consideration receivables, (ERSEARE  IHEESRHEERER
available-for-sale financial assets and pledged deposits WEFERN) ([FEFRBEE]) RE
(“Specified non-current assets”) are divided into the following DT

geographical areas:

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REIIREF R BHEFREBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-tf —T-XF ZB-tF —TXF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET AT FET AT
Hong Kong BB 328 = 123,705 2,450
The PRC (domicile) FR B (EBEFTTEMD) 356,659 27,751 793,463 876,304
356,987 27,751 917,168 878,754

During the year ended 30 April 2017, 46% and 33% of the
Group’s revenue depended on one customer in medical
equipment segment and one customer in tissue engineering
segment respectively. As at 30 April 2017, 0% and 18% of the
Group’s trade receivables were due from these two customers
respectively.

During the year ended 30 April 2016, 71% of the Group’s
revenue depended on one customer in cosmetic and others
segment. As at 30 April 2016, 97% of the Group’s trade
receivables were due from this customer.

BE_ZT—tHFUA=THLEE  A&E
WE B 46% K% 33% 7 Rl R B RN ERERE D
e —E2EFPRABIRESHZ— %%)5
R-TE—tFOA=1+H AEEEKES
FRIER 0% M 18% D RIZK B M A TS

HE_ZT - "FNA=THILFE  A5H
WEr71% KRBt m REMm D E 2 —
BRE -RZZE—RFHNA=1+H  A£H
JEWE ZERIAM 97% REZEBEF °
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

s

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on (1) the physical location of the assets
(for property, plant and equipment and land use rights) and (2)
location of operations (for goodwill and other intangible assets).
The Company is an investment holding company where the
Group has majority of its operation and workforce in the PRC,
and therefore, the PRC is considered as the Group’s country
of domicile for the purpose of the disclosures as required by
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segment”.

Certain comparative figures in the segment information for
the year ended 30 April 2016 have been restated. Previously,
executive directors identified tissue engineering, cell and
cosmetics and others as separate reportable segments. For
the year ended 30 April 2017, the executive directors allocated
the results from trading of medical equipment from tissue
engineering segment to a new reportable segment, medical
equipment, of the Group as a result of the change in information
reported internally for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of business performance. Comparative figures
have been reclassified accordingly.

FINANCE COSTS

DEPER ()

BB IRB AR Z RE IR N E
mn ZIEEI D o BEFRRBEE 2 H IR
B)EEERMEN CERRYE  BEX
RN AR & (2 &%t CGER
REEMEMBELEE) 850 - ARAA—
RREERAR]  MAKREAZHEERS
FNHETE - Fit - FERRSERER
BMBREENESHK [KLLEDE REM
B ARE TR -

EEIHE_ZT-RFOA=TBHLFED
MER 2B THBREIE - 281 ATEER
AEBTIE - AR bl REMERIAAT
BREEFS/WL -BE_ZT—LFWA=1H
HEE - BER/TEREEREHRRFEM
EITHAMIMENEER - ATEFHE
ERERBIFEHABIREDMHEER
SEFATERNDE - BERE - LRBEE
EREMEHRSE -

MBER

2017 2016
—B—tF A
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Interest on bank borrowings RITER R E AR ARIR
and other payables MR 24,426 25,827
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. FRFTSHAIEE
2017 2016
—E—t5F —ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Loss before income tax has been arrived BRETIST RIS R E H0BR
at after charging: TH|&IF :
Amortisation of land use rights o+ {5 PR A S 102 109
Amortisation of other intangible assets, H A E s
included in administrative expenses (BERBEETERASZH) 40,997 38,565
Auditor’s remuneration % 2R AT BN & 1,133 1,074
Depreciation e 14,181 13,218
Equity-settled share-based payments N mEE 2 R & A 28,520 20,345
Exchange difference, net ERZR OFF) 18,224 21,996
Operating lease rentals in respect WMAEYFE 2K EHERS
of office premises 23,169 23,968
Research and development costs [AREID TN 58,623 62,676
Less: Capitalisation to other intangible assets & : AL & H b2 & (2,576) (4,021)
56,047 58,655
Employee benefit expense EERAMAXL
(including directors’ emoluments (BIEESHE (FIE9) )
(note 9)) (note 10) (M$5E10) 131,746 95,110
Less: Employee benefit expenses included & : BIEIEHTEERK AR
in research and development costs ZEERFRE (5,304) (15,421)
126,442 79,689
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

J 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. EERBSITHAEME

EMOLUMENTS
Contribution
to defined  Equity-settled
Salariesand  contribution  share-based
Fees  allowances plans payments Total
EEMHR  NEREEZ
wE  FEREM  GHEZHR REINER ait
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fhn ThR FhER Fhx FhEx
Year ended 30 April 2017 HE_Z-tEMA=THLEE
Executive directors HiTE=S
Mr. Chen Chunguo BREELE
(appointed as president (R=F-—7"E+A=txH
on 25 October 2016 EZERBHAR
and re-designated RZE—+F_A-1+=H
as chief executive officer PAERTHEE
on 23 February 2017; RZE—+&—A=1AA
appointed as executive BEERHTES)
director on 25 January 2017) 770 - 5 - 775
Mr. Wong Sai Hung HHELE - 1,440 18 1,374 2,832
Dr. Shao Zhengkang MEEL
(ceased to be chief executive (R=2—tF-A=1=H
officer on 23 February 2017) THREMTHER) 1,800 150 18 1,317 3,285
Independent non-executive BUFRTES
directors
Mr. Lui Tin Nang SpN: e 240 - - 137 3
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny YHELE 240 - - 137 317
Mr. Chan Bing Woon BRmGEE 240 - - 132 n
Mr. Wang Hui* B St 240 - - 120 360
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Emest BB E
(appointed on 23 February 2017)  (R=ZE—tFZA=T=REZ() 44 - - - 44
Non-executive directors FYTES
Professor Cui Zhanfeng ELEYE
(appointed on 7 October 2016)  (R=F—/~ET+ALAEZET) 682 - - 645 1,327
Dr. Ray Yip REAL
(appointed on 23 February 2017)  (R=E—tF-A=T=REZ() 110 - - - 110
Professor Xiong Chengyu FRETHR
(appointed on 20 March 2017) (R=Z—tE=A-+RHEZD) 70 - - - 70
Mr. Yang Zhengguo BEALE
(resigned on 5 August 2016) (R=E—R"ENARART) 316 - - - 316
Professor Deng Shaoping HARTHR
(retired on 9 September 2016) (A=Z-A~FAANBEE) 430 - - - 430
Mr. Wang Jianjun TEERE
(retired on 9 September 2016) (R=2—ENANBEMT) 360 - - - 360
Mr. Cao Fushun EiElELE
(resigned on 18 July 2016) (R=E—"ELAT\REH) 258 - - - 258
5,800 1,590 # 3,862 11,203
* Mr. Wang Hui was re-designated as non-executive director on . ITEBEER T —+tFA—BATAEIKE
1 June 2017. HITES o
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. EERESTHAEME (&)

EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)
Contribution
to defined  Equity-settled
Salaries and contribution ~ share-based
Fees allowances plans payments Total
TRER  NESEEZ
we  HeREN  HEzfR REXNER CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TEL T TEL THET
Year ended 30 April 2016 BE-2-AFMAZTHLEE
Executive directors HiTE=S
Mr. Dai Yumin ISR
(resigned on 30 April 2016) (RZZ—"FEA=THEL) - 1,440 18 1,441 2,899
Ms. Wang Yurong B '
(resigned on 30 April 2016) (RZZ—"FEA=THEL) - 1,440 18 1,441 2,899
Mr. Wong Sai Hung L e
(re-designated as executive (RZZ—"5—-AT—H
director on 11 January 2016) PHERNTES) - 406 6 = 412
Dr. Shao Zhengkang MEEEL
(appointed on 30 April 2016) (AZE-A"EFEA=THEZ) - 1 = = 1
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Lui Tin Nang EPN: Fited 210 - - 173 383
Mr. Pang Chung Fal, Benny YHBLE 210 - - 166 376
Mr. Chan Bing Woon FRIRIA S A 210 - - 159 369
Mr. Wang Hui TEEE
(appointed on 18 June 2015) (RZZ-RE AT N\REZE) 194 - - 144 338
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Wong Sai Hung L
(re-designated as executive (RZZ—"F—AT—H
director on 11 January 2016) HERNTES) 868 = = 623 1,491
Mr. Yang Zhengguo BB %A 1,200 - - 519 1,719
Professor Deng Shaoping BRTHE 1,200 - - 476 1,676
Mr. Wang Jianjun TRERE 1,200 - - 476 1,676
Mr. Cao Fushun ERIBEE 1,200 - - 454 1,654
Chief Executive Officer THA%
Dr. Shao Zhengkang MEEEL - 1,310 18 - 1,328
6,492 4,597 60 6,072 17,221
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTk B ot

For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

‘ 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. EERBSITHAEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FAMEEENEXRAERETAME 2L
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2016: Nil). (EE—RF |
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors AEBWENESZHERMME - (EAMA
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as 7N 2 B 5 7 N A\ 7S A (B B 2 SR B 3k Bk T
compensation for loss of office. (=
Employees’ emoluments ESH <
The five individuals whose emoluments including share-based rEBFRALERSFAL (KHMeaE
payment expenses were the highest in the Group for the year UEHhAERZNZAES) BFE=% (=%
included three (2016: five) directors whose emoluments are —NF:RZ) EET EMEeRMN Eilis
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of MR BRTIMBAATHMEIT ¢
the remaining two individual were as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 2,464 =
Retirement benefits scheme contributions B {REFIEH 2R 30 =
Equity-settled share-based payments i E 2 RES T & 359 —
2,853 —
The emoluments of the highest paid non-director individuals fell FEENTERFTALTHOMES N T LATEHE N
within the following band: AN
Number of individual
A
2017 2016
—B—tF —FRF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 77T 1 —
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 /& 7T — 2,000,000 87T 1 —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI '

For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 10. {EEEFX (BEESHE)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT
Wages and salaries TENH® 90,191 66,295
Equity-settled share-based payments NEREE 2 RES B 24,597 17,205
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  EREKA — FEEHE T2 10,377 7,510
Other staff benefits Hb B TR 6,581 4,100
131,746 95,110
11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 11. 8% (%) B
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) BB FG R Ty R E A ERBDRE T &
of the estimated assessable profit for the year. The PRC 16.5% (= Z — "% : 16.5%) it & - A&
enterprise income tax of 25% (2016: 25%) is applicable to the FEMBAREA25%(ZF —RF:
Group’s PRC subsidiaries except that Shenzhen AiNear Cornea 25%) < BIBEMRER - HWRYINERA
Engineering Company Limited and Tianjin Weikai Bioeng Ltd RIRERARRRNEGINEDITIEBRA
are entitled to enjoy the tax benefit as an High and New Tech AREEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE
Enterprise for three years starting from the year ended 31 B =EFEAEASNEMNEEMERM
December 2016. They are subject to preferential income tax HER + RER15% 2 BEAEHRELHH -
rate of 15%. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated YGINFIS B THAR AR AN F [ fil 51 FE AR T 0 4
on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of NEE L LA 2 IRITIREGE o
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FaExT FAT
Profits tax — for the current year MER — RNFE
Hong Kong BB - 1,612
The PRC e - 8,487
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFEHEERE (4,382) —
Deferred taxation (note 27) RIEFRIE (BIaE27) (7,346) (6,773)
Income tax (credit)/expense Fris®i (Fe) /Fx (11,728) 3,326
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTk B ot

For the year ended 30 April 2017 #ZE ==

J 11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Cont’d) 11.

12.

Reconciliation between income tax (credit)/expense and

—tFHA=THILEFE

RERAREHEZER (BL) HAXk

accounting loss at applicable tax rates: SRTEIBZ EHERNT
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FaExT FAET
Loss before income tax FRFTSH AT E B (210,920) (191,198)
Notional tax calculated at the rates BB BTIA AR BEEEA
applicable to the loss in the tax R ERN R EIE
jurisdictions concerned (43,294) (41,685)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR REIR 2 A i S s &
for tax purpose 43,617 35,972
Tax effect of income not taxable BEFRURA BT 5 £
for tax purpose (5,357) (1,686)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised i AR FER T IE SRR IS 2 3,125 10,725
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FRABERARERZFIBEBE
tax losses (5,437) —
Over provision in respect of prior years BAEFEBRERE (4,382) =
Income tax (credit)/expense Fri5#s (Be) /X (11,728) 3,326

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for

the year (2016: Nil).

12. RS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI '

For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RARER ABIEERER R #EEE TR
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following B TSR E -
data:
2017 2016
—E—t5F —ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Loss for the year attributable to owners R E S REREE
of the Company for the purpose Z AN RHER AFEML
of basic loss per share REZEIE (184,502) (190,902)
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
’000 ‘000
T TR
Number of shares 5 &E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FAGTE G EAREE
for the purpose of basic loss per share 2 R INE T 17,587,434 17,309,393
For the years ended 30 April 2017 and 2016, diluted loss per HE-Z—tFR_FT—A"FMHA=+HL
share attributable to owners of the Company was not presented FE - ARTTEBREAREESE - 0L
because the impact of the exercise of share options was anti- mET|ARRRHEB AEEEREEERE -

dilutive.
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BTSRRI =t

For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

J 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BEK®RE

Furniture
Leasehold and  Computer Motor
Buildings improvement  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
BT HENEEE GARRE ERE RE ait
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT T T T THT
At 1 May 2015 R-8-A%FA-H
Cost KA 106,685 12,367 73,314 1,979 4,182 198,527
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (3,708) (3,673) (12,205) (1,308) (2,733) (23,627)
Net book amount REFE 102,977 8,694 61,109 671 1,449 174,900
Year ended 30 April 2016 HE-E-"EMA=1H
J1:355
Opening net book amount HRRFE 102,977 8,694 61,109 671 1,449 174,900
Exchange differences ERER 4,317) (182) (2,144) (24) (64) (6,731)
Disposal e - - (50) ) (38) (95)
Additions NE 6,483 602 8,643 620 - 16,348
Acquisitions through business ~ EBEKAHFTIE (it 34)
combinations (note 34) = 76 1,256 140 77 1,549
Depreciation ik (1,961) (3,779) (6,812) (361) (311) (13,218)
Closing net book amount HARREFE 103,182 5417 62,002 1,039 1,113 172,753
At 30 April 2016 RZE-~EMA=TH
Cost KA 108,666 12,777 80,386 2,615 3,171 207,615
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (5,484) (7,360) (18,384) (1,576) (2,058) (34,862)
Net book amount REFE 108,162 5,417 62,002 1,039 1,113 172,753
Year ended 30 April 2017 HE_E-tEMA=1H
J1:355
Opening net book amount HRRFE 103,182 5,417 62,002 1,039 1,113 172,753
Exchange differences ERE (5,904) (189) (2,976) (99) (58) 9,226)
Disposal & (84) - (95) - - (179)
Additions NE = 47,793 21,202 621 1,331 70,947
Depreciation e (2,495) (3,681) (7,074) (407) (524) (14,181)
Closing net book amount HARREFE 94,699 49,340 73,059 1,154 1,862 220,114
At 30 April 2017 R-E-tEMA=1A
Cost KA 102,331 60,189 99,497 3,289 4,531 269,837
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (7,632) (10,849) (26,438) (2,135) (2,669) (49,723)
Net book amount REFE 94,699 49,340 73,059 1,154 1,862 220,114
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

14.

1)

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BMEKRE (B)
(Cont’d)
As at 30 April 2017 and 2016, all the Group’s buildings are RZE—tFRZF—A"FWOA=+H K
situated in the PRC and are held under medium term leases. SEFMAEEFAHURPEBEAFBRHEERR
A -
As at 30 April 2017, certain of the Group’s property, plant and RZZTE—tFMHA=+H ' AKBERmFAE
equipment with net carrying amount of HK$78,027,000 (2016: 78,027,000 87T (ZZF —J34F : 84,494,000
HK$84,494,000) were pledged to secure the bank borrowings BIL) 2B TWE  BERZED THER
granted to the Group (note 26). LABZN S BEER 2 SR1T1E IR R R (FTsE
26) °
LAND USE RIGHTS 15. £ fsF A
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FE7T
Opening net carrying amount BRIARE SHE 4,584 4,898
Exchange differences JER ZERE (263) (205)
Amortisation gy (102) (109)
Closing net carrying amount BACR AR SHAE 4,219 4,584
The Group’s land use rights represent payments to acquire INER B 2 b PR RSB BB A AR B 2 it
interests in the usage of lands situated in the PRC, which are ZERER (NP BHEEREAFRE) 22+
held under medium-term leases. FRIE ©
As at 30 April 2017 and 2016, the Group’s entire land use rights RZE—+FRE—RFEA=+H " K
were pledged to secure the bank borrowings granted to the SR 2FTMERED THER - URAE
Group (note 26). EER 2 RITIEFREER (M15E26) °
GOODWILL 16. BE

The goodwill arose from (1) the acquisition of FD(H) Investments
Limited and its subsidiaries (“Aierfu Business”), which are
engaged in the production and sales of tissue engineering
products, in 2008; (2) the acquisition of Maylion Management
Limited and its subsidiary (“Reshine Business”), which is
engaged in bio-medical engineering, research and development
of regenerative medical products in relation to tissue engineering
technology in December 2013; (3) the acquisition of Passion
Stream Limited and its subsidiaries (“Weikai Business”), which
is engaged in the design and manufacturing of pre-clinical cell
and stem cell related equipment, especially in 3D cell culture
bio-reactors and their related consumables, as well as provision
of CRO services in April 2015; and (4) Frame Sharp Limited and
its subsidiaries (“AK Business”), which is principally engaged in
providing service and equipment for human cell and cell related
clinical applications in August 2015.

BEBDELEANZZ TN\ F WEFDH)
Investments Limited X H i B2 7] ([ X8
BEK]) ERSEERBEEHEABIEE
m:QZE—=FF+-_AKREEZREES
RARIREWBAR ([IHEER]) - Bt
EEYESTIE A TIRRITNEE
BEELNAE QT —AEMNAKE
Passion Stream Limited & EFiBA R ( [4
LR ) - B A= ER R AT A8 i A0 2 41 i AR
B < SRR (FFRI B E = A fE
BEEYRESNESZHBERFEM) A RIEH
AERAFEMAERE : K@ =_FE—HFN
A Y B Frame Sharp Limited N H KB A ]
(IBEK]) EFERETAABHABRK
40 AR 2 R PR e PR IR M AR T e sR 8 o
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

J 16. GOODWILL (Cont'd) 16. B ()
The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as follows: FMEZEEFEZOMAT
Aierfu Reshine Weikai AK
Business Business Business Business Total
NAB%% mERER K R K &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TBT THT TAT TAT

At 1 May 2015 R-ZZ2-HEFHA-H

Gross carrying amount BEEEE 141,310 152,615 96,213 - 390,138
Accumulated impairment ZErRE - (152,615) (49,442) - (202,057)
Net carrying amount REFE 141,310 - 46,771 - 188,081

Year ended 30 April 2016 EHZE-E—-AFEMA=1H

LEE
Opening net carrying amount ~ HR¥IEREHE 141,310 - 46,771 - 188,081
Business combinations =BE
(note 34) (FiizE34) — - - 8,902 8,902
Closing net carrying amount ~ HAREREFE 141,310 — 46,771 8,902 196,983
At 30 April 2016 R-E-REMA=TH
Gross carrying amount BEEEE 141,310 152,615 96,213 8,902 399,040
Accumulated impairment ZErRE - (152,615) (49,442) - (202,057)
Net carrying amount REFE 141,310 - 46,771 8,902 196,983

Year ended 30 April 2017 EHZE-E—-tFWNA=1H

LEE
Opening net carrying amount ~ Ei#1EREHE 141,310 - 46,771 8,902 196,983
Closing net carrying amount ~ HAREREFE 141,310 — 46,771 8,902 196,983
At 30 April 2017 R-Z-—tFMNA=1+AH
Gross carrying amount BEEEE 141,310 152,615 96,213 8,902 399,040
Accumulated impairment ZErRE - (152,615) (49,442) - (202,057)
Net carrying amount REFE 141,310 - 46,771 8,902 196,983
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #ZE == ‘

—tFHA=THILEFE

rate, growth rate and budgeted gross margin, which had
been determined based on the market comparables and
budgeted revenue, which had been determined based on the
management’s expectation for the market development and the
production capacity of relevant cash generating units.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit, the
Group’s management is not currently aware of any other
probable changes that would necessitate changes in their key
assumptions. However, the estimate of recoverable amount of
the Group’s cash generating units is particularly sensitive to the
discount rate applied.

The recoverable amount has been determined by an
independent professional valuer, Hong Kong Appraisal Advisory
Limited (2016: Roma Appraisal Limited) with the discounted
cash flow approach. The recoverable amounts of these cash
generating units are classified as level 3 measurement.

16. GOODWILL (Cont’d) 16. B2 (/&)
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to RETTRERA ﬁ%A’\EﬁiﬂfliﬁiF
four cash generating units, Aierfu Business, Reshine Business, EEBN  VRBER  mRED  HIER
Weikai Business and AK Business. &S
The recoverable amounts for these cash-generating units have ZEReELEBUNIKRESEDREFER
been determined based on value-in-use (“VIU”)/fair value less MRBeREE (BRI AFEEFE) &5
cost of disposal (‘FVLCD”) calculation using discounted cash EoEREE ([EFRBE]) AFERS
flow technique, covering detailed five-year budget plans. Cash ERA ([AFEREEKRA]) sTEEE °
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the REHLAE 2 IR & mE TR T FT 5 il 5118
estimated growth rates as stated below. The discount rates EREE - ARNFEAEEAFEREHEK
used for VIU and FVLCD are pre-tax and post-tax respectively ZIKE’\J?EEET"EJF%HMHU&B}?R@: 37 B
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant cash-generating RS EE BN 2 FERR
unit.
The key assumptions used for recoverable amounts are as A ECEAMERNEEREAT
follows:
Aierfu Business Reshine Business Weikai Business AK Business
LEEER REER HES EEES
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZEtE T F ZE-tf T F ZE-tfE _T-RF ZE-tf —T-5F
Basis BE ViU FVLCD ViU FVLCD FVLCD FVLCD FVLCD FVLCD
FREE ATER FREE  ATER  AVER  ATER  ATER  ATER
HERK HERA  BEHRA  HENA  HERA  EHENA
Growth rate HERE 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
Discount rate R 22% 18% 28% 22% 20% 19% 20% 21%
The key assumptions are those regarding the discount I;ﬂﬁj‘“ﬁﬁfﬁ?ﬁfﬁt EREREEEA

CRERBEMS A LRERARE RS (B
*ETJ%%@@%%‘%E’U%E%MHEﬁfﬁdﬁéiﬁ
WAEER N TARET) B

BRLiErReELBEVANEEEZER
REIN  AEE 2 E 12 EHRE LB
/H\ﬂﬂT E2BL SHFEZEHNETERR
AEERSELBUNAINEESEL
fﬁ;ﬁrﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ ZITR R B -

A m &R B L EEEERME BT ER
EBE A (ZE—RF : ZHEETHE

T) fiﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁiﬁémiiﬁm uxﬁfﬁ
@Fi%hﬁ’]"fﬂ&z@%%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%% &

=
E-°
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #ZE ==

d.

17.

—tFHA=THILEFE

GOODWILL (Cont’d)

The valuation basis for the recoverable amounts of Aierfu
Business and Reshine Business was changed from FVLCD
to VIU in view of the stable and increasing revenue generated
by these cash generating units during the year and these
businesses no longer under development stage. Accordingly,
the directors considered that VIU is more appropriate for these
cash generating units. There were no other changes to the
valuation techniques during the year.

Impairment assessment

As at 30 April 2017 and 2016, the Group carried out a review
of the recoverable amount of its cash generating units because
the cash generating units of Aierfu Business, Reshine Business,
Weikai Business and AK Business had made losses during
the year. As the recoverable amounts exceed the carrying
amounts of the relevant assets of the cash generating units,
the management considered that there is no impairment to be
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 30 April 2016 and
2017,

16. B2 (&)

ENNMBEBERInBREBReELEMR

FRNEENOWRTBTE B TEIE N RZEER
TEJ&%EA%@%%E& CRERCELBM AW

SEHEEDER AT ERLERARE
AERRE - At EFEAEREATE
AUERSEEBH o FRBET AR
2w -

ST

RZZB—+tRZZE—X"FEOA=1+H " AA
VREER  mERER - HIlFEBHEMRS
¥R HEeEABEMNRNFRNEEEE  ~&
ESERSEEBMNNAIYE S EEETT TR
%o RIS EABNMABEENT WD S
HHRBHEEE SEERANEBE_Z
—AE—E—tFNA=ZFTHIEFETER
BEPERRE -

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 17. BIWSARE
RECEIVABLES

2017 2016
—E—tF —TRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 May RAA—H 28,030 15,088
Fair value gain NEEYE 20,097 8,556
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34) W A A (MfE34) - 5,193
Exchange differences JERER (1,868) (807)
At 30 April ROB=+H 46,259 28,030

There are profit guarantees for the acquisitions of Weikai
Business and AK Business.

For Weikai Business, the former owner guaranteed that total
net profit for the years ended 31 December 2015 to 2018 not
less than RMB25,000,000, or he will transfer part of the shares
of Passion Stream Limited (a 70% indirectly owned subsidiary)
held by non-controlling interests to the Group. The adjustment
will be settled after the end of the four-year period.

WiERrs\ %75 h RYLEBHE B HRE -

BEREINEY MEAARE BE_Z
—hFET-)N\FT_A=+—HILFE

Z@Eﬂ%ﬁh$9#AE%%mmwo
T GRIERBRASEEEIEERR R ER
Fﬁ # 2B {7 Passion Stream Limited (70% &
BB AR 2k - ARG I F H
HERBER -
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17. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI =t

—tFHA=THILEFE

17.
RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

For AK Business, the former owner guaranteed that total net
profit for the years ended 31 December 2015 to 2018 not less
than RMB8,000,000, or he will transfer part of the shares of
Frame Sharp Limited (a 70% indirectly owned subsidiary) held
by non-controlling interests to the Group. The adjustment will
be settled after the end of the four-year period.

The contingent consideration receivables represent the fair
value of the profit guarantees in accordance with the share
purchase agreements for the acquisition of Weikai Business
and AK Business are estimated by independent professional
valuers, Hong Kong Appraisal Advisory Limited (2016: Roma
Appraisal Limited). As at 30 April 2017 and 2016, the fair value
of the contingent consideration receivables were estimated
by applying income approach on the estimated profit from
Weikai Business and AK Business for the four years ended
31 December 2018 and the estimated fair values of the shares
of Passion Stream Limited and Frame Sharp Limited held by
non-controlling interests.

The fair value of contingent consideration receivables is a level
3 recurring fair value measurement. Significant unobservable
inputs for the valuation approach are as follows:

WA NRE (&)

BRARYER AR ARE

CBECDET
—hEFE_E-—NF+_A=+—HLF
J*Zi@/ﬁn%IJ/%aEHﬁT\Q H AR % 8,000,000
T RAEBRIAEEE EIFHERR R ER
3 Frame Sharp Limited (70% %2kt
BRR)) 2BHh o AREAARESREUFHRLER
BEEE

Fﬁ% :

FE U Bk AR B HER IR U BB E o 375 R BB e %
BZBRHBEERENENREZAFE
ThERE BEGEMESTERBRER AR
ZE—"F BEGFEBRFHEERAR) &
e RZEBE—tEFR-_ZFE—A"FEOA=+
B BUSAREZRAFETERRZEE
BEHE-Z—\F+=-A=1+—H1EME
FREEIESRBYEBHDEF A RIEZE
F% P& BR # %5 AT Passion Stream Limited &
Frame Sharp Limited B¢ 15 2 (&5t A FE M
B8 -

BRI AREBZ A TFTERE=ZRLELELRT
B8 - MEEAZERIAIBRREIRM T
N

Weikai Business AK Business
CEESS LEESS

2017 2016 2017 2016

Btk Bk ZE-tE “EE

Probabity-adjusted proft/oss) TR MEREH/ (BR) (RMB1,589,000) (RMB1,039,000) (RMBS,753,000) (RMB3,731,000)

to RMB1,957,000 f0RMB5,037,000 to (RMB1,002,000) to RMB17,399,000

M (ARE N (ARE M (ARE N (ARE

1,589,0007c) 2 1,039,0007t) 2 6,753,0007) 2 3731,0007) &

AR®195700%  AR%5007000m  (ARE1,002000%)  AK%17,399,0007

Marketabilty discount on the RAATEZ A RENER

fair value of shares 20.89% 20.89% 20.89% 20.89%

Higher probability-adjusted profit or loss will result in ] B8 1 58 2 5 F) S B 18 38 N S B A B AR

corresponding lower or higher fair values. Higher marketability
discount on the fair value of shares of Passion Stream Limited
and Frame Sharp Limited will result in corresponding lower fair
values.

Jf& e 4V 2 32 AN © Passion Stream Limited &
Frame Sharp Limited Z f& 7 2 (B 2 T 5
MBI IREH R GER AT ERERD o
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J 17. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 17. BIWSARE ()
RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)
As at 30 April 2017 and 20186, it is estimated that with all other RZE—tFRZF—A"FWOA=+H" &
variables held constant, the sensitivity analysis of the change in TR E EMEERFTE - BREAREZ
significant unobservable inputs to the fair values of contingent /&EFTEH?HF BAFAUBREBEE (L2 BRE
consideration receivables is as follows: DT -

Decrease in fair values of
contingent consideration receivables

BURHARE 2D FERD

Weikai Business AK Business
I ER R ¥k
2017 2016 2017 2016

—E—tF —TAF SF-tF —FAF

Increase in the A B2 14 38 B % A2 N
probability-adjusted ok A] BE 1 TR 5 1B

profit or decrease in the  J# 4 5%

probability-adjusted
loss by 5% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Increase in the marketability T5REITIREF = 5%
discount by 5% 5% 6% 5% 6%
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HittEFEE
Development
Trademark Patents costs Total
B =7 BERA &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT FHT
At 1 May 2015 R=Z-RAF5HA—H
Cost XA 79,986 512,329 64,199 656,514
Accumulated amortisation 2 EELRERE
and impairment losses (34,686) (137,839) — (172,525)
Net book amount REFE 45,300 374,490 64,199 483,989

Year ended 30 April 2016 BEE-E-AFENA=THILEE

Opening net book amount HAERESHE 45,300 374,490 64,199 483,989
Acquisitions through business BB A HHATIREE (FT5E34)

combinations (note 34) — - 51,180 51,180
Additions NE — 930 3,091 4,021
Exchange differences ERER - (11,025) (3,100) (14,125)
Amortisation b (5,330) (33,235) — (38,565)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 39,970 331,160 115,370 486,500
At 30 April 2016 R-E-REMA=1H
Cost AR 79,984 497,839 115,370 693,193
Accumulated amortisation ZEHHEE LR ESE

and impairment losses (40,014) (166,679) — (206,693)
Net book amount REFE 39,970 331,160 115,370 486,500

Year ended 30 April 2017 BE-E—tFNA=THILEE

Opening net book amount HA R B 39,970 331,160 115,370 486,500
Additions NE = = 2,576 2,576
Exchange differences ERER - (15,556) (6,807) (22,363)
Amortisation b (5,330) (32,223) (3,444) (40,997)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 34,640 283,381 107,695 425,716
At 30 April 2017 R-E-tFMA=+H
Cost XA 79,984 473,372 111,095 664,451
Accumulated amortisation 2 EELRERE

and impairment losses (45,344) (189,991) (3,400) (238,735)
Net book amount REFE 34,640 283,381 107,695 425,716
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

J 19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 19. At HEERmEE

2017 2016
—E—t5F —ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Non-current, at cost FERE - B
Unlisted equity securities — the PRC ELETRAES — P 112,928 —
Unlisted equity securities are measured at cost less impairment ERNEGEATEATEBEZZ2FBEARR
losses as the variability in the range of reasonable fair value fEET A FER % E s A&l 5T B 1) B2 1T B8
estimates is significant and the probabilities of the various EEFERER - ELTRAZ SRR AR
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and BEBEE - ARRESTRAEAFELT
used in estimating fair value. The directors of the Company are BERSERTE ©
of the opinion that the fair value cannot be measured reliably.
20. INVENTORIES 20. 8
2017 2016
—E—t5F —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Raw materials R 3,716 1,712
Work in progress PR o) 1,728 3,639
Finished goods SUR om 9,310 3,616
Goods in transit EEm 45,813 —
60,567 8,967
21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 21. EWE ZERIE - % - FANFIE
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES N E b fE U BRIE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT
Trade receivables BUNE 5 8R1E 39,117 19,992
Deposits b 14,509 10,370
Prepayments TERTRIE 138,518 42 067
Bank interest receivables RULSR1THI B 7,448 16,883
Loan receivables U E K - 8,421
Other receivables H b W BRIA 173,204 28,095
333,679 105,836
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BTSRRI =t

o

For the year ended 30 April 2017 #ZE ==

—tFHA=THILEFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

As at 30 April 2017, ageing analysis of trade receivables based
on sales invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

. BREZRE - T - AARIE

REAREWERE (&)

MRZZE—tFMA=1H ' EKEFHREIR
HEERHHARMNRBER ZRER TN
T

2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET T

0-90 days 0-90 % 12,348 13,767
Over 90 days but less than 1 year @0 KB LR F 18,590 6,105
1 year or over 1 year 1416 E 8,179 120
39,117 19,992

The Group allows an average credit period of 60-180 days
(2016: 60-180 days) to its customers.

The carrying amount of trade receivables is considered as
reasonable approximation of their fair value. Impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtors and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable
is impaired. All of the Group’s trade receivables have been
reviewed for indicators of impairment.

In addition, some of the unimpaired trade receivables are
past due as at the reporting date. Ageing analysis of trade
receivables not impaired is as follows:

AEBHETHRERF ZFEHEERA60-180
X (ZZF—75F : 60-180K)

%W%%%52$ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ NEZE
BOH  EATERBRRAREEG RN
R EWERTE 2 RAT R B 2 30 /R R - Bl
SHERWESRBALRRE - EHAERY
BEARMBEMEE - A KREEMEASR A RIER -
BRESEKE ZRBLHRREZTR - &
SEMARKESKRBCETHETRE
3 o

AN RIER - BRLBEREZEKRES
FRIBTIEERAT - W EMBEZ BWE HRRIA
ZIRER DT

2017 2016

—B—tF —ERE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET F&7T

0-90 days 0-90X 8,605 =
Over 90 days past due but less than 1 year BB I0OKEL 14 13,516 66
1 year or over 1 year 1481 F E 8,178 120
30,299 186
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

d.

22.

TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to customers that had a good track record of credit with the
Group. Based on past credit history, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered to be fully
recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral in respect of
trade receivables that were past due but not impaired.

As at 30 April 2016, loan receivables represented loan to
an independent third party of RMB7,000,000 which was
unsecured, interest bearing at 10% per annum and repayable
on 31 December 2016. The loan has been fully repaid on
14 September 2016 and no new loan was granted during the
year.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

These represented the listed equity securities in Hong Kong and
are held for trading purposes. The balances at the reporting
dates are stated at fair values which have been determined by
reference to the quoted bid prices at the reporting dates.

21.

22.

RWEZRE - e - BAKEA
REAREWERE (&)

BHMEERE < W E ZIRIES M AL E
BREEECENEF - REBBENEER
i BEEME AR EEERYEERLS
REH - BRFHERDER AT 2E8KE -
BHARZFERTTORERR - AEEYL
EpaREEREEKEZRARBIM
E#fm -

R_ZFE—R"FMNA=+H  ERERER—
BRI BE=FEHEER - LEFE10%
TERERZE—ARFT+_A=+—HEER
A ARE 7,000,000 TER - ZEHXRER =
T RNFENATHBEREEEZE ARNFRITE

ST E -

BAFERERI R ERERE

HZEBERBTELTRARSZAREREER
& MIRE R ZEBRRATE (BEERS
AZHREETE) 58K -
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED

o

23. RERREZEEE EHEPR

BANK DEPOSITS 1TER
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTEEER 571,732 867,745
Short-term deposits (note (a)) 5T (BEE (a) - 433,080
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReSEER 571,732 1,300,825

Pledged deposits (note (b)) BEEAER (MFE ()

Non-current JEMED 794,743 =
Current mED - 558,873
794,743 558,873

Short-term bank deposits of the Group as at 30 April
2016 earned interest at the rates of 1.21% per annum.
These deposits had maturity of three months and were
eligible for immediate cancellation without penalty but
any interest for the last deposit period would be forfeited.
The directors considered that the fair value of short-term
deposits was not materially different from its carrying
amount because of the short maturity period on its
inception.

The deposits are pledged to banks to secure bank loans
(as detailed in note 26 to the financial statements). These
deposits earn interests from 2.10% to 3.68% (2016:
3.30% to 3.68%) per annum. As at 30 April 2017, the
pledged deposits are classified as non-current assets
as it is pledged to secure non-current bank loans. As at
30 April 2016, the pledged deposits were classified as
current assets as it was pledged to secure short-term
bank loans.

R-ZB-—RNFOA=+H AEEHZ
FHIRITIF IR F R R 1.21%5 8 -
ZEFRBBM=@A - TRTHRE
AR NERTEIREE - HR#&
TFRAZNBBEORK - AR EHE
FEREHAEE  HEFRR/EZ
NHEREEMEZERLTERX -

EREEBTERITUMEARITERZ
BR (B BmRMTE26 i) © %
EFEREMEE2.10%23.68% (=
T —NF :3.30%E3.68%)° RN =
TZ—+FMA=+H " BERFFTHKEA
WHIEAIERNBSRITERZERM D
HAFERHEE R_ZT—FNA
=+H SEEEREKTRIEREH
BITERZERMAOBAREEE -
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J 23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS (Cont’d)

(c) Included in cash and bank balances, short-term
deposits and pledged bank deposits of the Group is
HK$641,938,000 (2016: HK$552,190,000) of bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) placed
with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency. Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and
Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks that are recognised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

24. TRADE PAYABLES

As at 30 April 2017, ageing analysis of trade payables based on
invoice date is as follows:

23. RERREZEEE EHEPR
TR ()

€ AEBZRSNRTAS  EHEXK
REEBRITEREETHAFE 2
BITWUAARE ([ARK]) 5HEZ
$R1T#58%641,938,000/87C (ZZT—7~
£ : 552,190,000/ 7T) - AR IE
AERALBR B - RIEPE A2
INEE BIZFI RAEE - EERNES
BHRE  NEEEESBESERET
INESETS 2 SRITIE AR H I BN -

24. BN EFERIE

R-ZFE—tFMA=1H  EBNEZEREAR
BEAHRZRESTAT ¢

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

0-30 days 0-30 X 37,075 245
31-60 days 31-60X 55 120
Over 60 days but less than 1 year B0 REDMA1F 1,049 827
1 year or over 1 year 1F31FUE 814 378
38,993 1,570

General credit terms granted by suppliers are 30 days to 60
days.

HEH R L 2 —RIEEHNFI0ORE6OK °
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—tFHA=THILEFE

25. ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER

25. BERtERREMEMIRE

PAYABLES

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Accrued charges EEtE A 9,306 7,047
Receipt in advance from customers B R FRE 18,678 58,992
Other payables (note (a)) HA S IRE (5E (@) 32,815 20,754

Other payables for acquisition BEEFHEMENIRIE
of buildings (note (c)) GEAG) - 6,015
Government subsidies (note (b)) BT B (M3 (b)) 43,890 46,843
104,689 139,651

As at 30 April 2017, other payables are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand except the amount
of HK$434,000 (2016: HK$444,000), which was interest
bearing at 5.5% per annum.

Government subsidies represent payments granted by the
local governments in the PRC in relation to the research
and development of tissue engineering and stem cell
projects carried out in the PRC. These payments will be
recognised as income upon the approval from the local
government on the output of the relevant projects.

As at 30 April 2016, the balance represented payables
for acquisition of buildings in the PRC. The amounts were
interest bearing at 12% per annum, repayable within
one year and secured by the buildings with net carrying
amount of HK$18,686,000. Such amount was fully repaid
during the year.

R=ZF—+FWOMA=+H " HiEN
BEIEEJ%M%EW %E&/A&EIE
& H—%434,000/ 7T (=
E 444,000 JT) ZF Iﬁﬁziﬂz
5.5% a1 BERIN o

> |

B 478 B #E R B & 3t AT sE A B o
TZABTRERHARBERMERRA
BRHZHE - ZFERERRE K
i ¥ 48 R8 TR B BX R 1F th L R TR 2

WA e

RZFB-—RNFOA=1H E#HEK
BURTEEFHNEMNER - ZFX
BAFME12% 1B BAR—FAE
& HEREFER 18,686,000 T2
BFEER -  ZRECRFATHE
= o
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‘ 26. BANK BORROWINGS 26. RITERK
As at 30 April 2017, the Group’s bank borrowings are repayable RZZFE—tFWHA=+H AKBEZEEE
as follows: IRITERAT :
2017 2016
—E—t5F —ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current: BOER :
Bank loans, secured — repayable RITER - BEE — —FR
within one year (i) B3 () 28,345 542,553
Non-current: JEENER :
Bank loans, secured — repayable IRITEFR - BEA — —F
over one year but less than five years (ii) 1B FAEE (i) 725,632 —
753,977 542,553

The interest-bearing bank borrowings are carried at amortised
cost.

(i) As at 30 April 2017, the current bank borrowings
represented bank loans with principal amounts of
RMB25,000,000 (2016: RMB451,000,000), which
are repayable within one year. The bank loans of
RMB25,000,000 (2016: RMB30,000,000) are secured
by the Group’s property, plant and equipment and land
use rights with carrying amounts of HK$78,027,000
(2016: HK$84,494,000) and HK$4,219,000 (2016:
HK$4,584,000) respectively. As at 30 April 2016, the
remaining bank loan of RMB421,000,000 was secured by
the Group’s pledged bank deposits with carrying amounts
of HK$558,873,000.

(i)  As at 30 April 2017, the non-current bank borrowings
represented bank loans with principal amounts of
RMB640,000,000 (2016: Nil), which are repayable over
one year but less than five years. The bank loans of
RMB640,000,000 are secured by the Group’s pledged
bank deposits with carrying amounts of HK$794,743,000
(2016: Nil).

Interest rate of the bank borrowings was from 4.750% to 6.090%
(2016: 4.140% to 6.090%) per annum for the year.

At RIRTTIE KSR B A ARSI AR

(it

R-ZT—+FWMA=1+H - BIHAET
ERIEAE 25 A AR 25,000,000

T (ZZF—7"F : AR¥ 451,000,000
L) BZER—FREEMNRITER -
AR #25,000,0007C (=& —/KNF
A K #30,000,0007T) H iR 1T & &
B A & B B8R E B 2 Al & 78,027,000
BT (& — /X F 84,494,000 7
J0) }4,219,000% 7t ( = T — X
F 14,584,000 TL) 2WE - WE

R T AR R - N
T—RNFONA=Z+H ' B TARKE
421,000,000 T RITERBAAEE
BR M {8 /4 558,873,000 78 7T 2 & 1K
RITEREEAR -

R-ZZE—+FEMmMA=+H - JENHR
TEFEAR—FHRERAFANEEZ
BRI B A AR ¥ 640,000,0007T (==
—NGF ) ZIRITER - ZEARK
640,000,000 T Z SR1TE A KR EE
BRI /5 794,743,000 7T (ZZ—X
&) 2 BRIFRITE IR o

AFEEBRITERZEFNEEN T4.750%
£6.090% 2B ( ZZF—/NF : 4140% &
6.090%) °

' @ China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2016 / 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTk B ot
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION 27. EIERLIE
Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary differences under EIER IR TIRIR B EA AN & B 48 & pr e B
the liability method using the rates of taxation prevailing in the KRBT E R G R ERETE o

countries in which the Group operates.

=4

The movement on deferred tax liabilities is as follows: EEFHIREEE 2T

Fair value adjustments arising
from other intangible assets

Htt B EEMELE 2 A FERR

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT
At beginning of the year F4] 90,306 86,626
Fair value adjustments arising from IR BB H B A Bl FTEE A
acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34) Z AT ERARE ([:E34) - 12,796
Credited to profit or loss for the year BEFAARFE BT
(note 11) (FfFEE11) (7,346) (6,773)
Exchange differences ERER (4,549) (2,343)
At end of the year FR 78,411 90,306
As at 30 April 2017, the Group has unused tax losses of R-_ZE—+tFMWA=+H "EEAERH
HK$81,992,000 (2016: HK$130,346,000) available for FAF I8 &5 18 81,992,000 7T (=T — /R F -
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has 130,346,000/ 7t) + A A A & 1 K 2R &
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the F o B3R AR AR 5 A ZROIR B9 B FEORIME - Rl
unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses will expire ERHEEEERECHRIEEE - HIEEE
after 5 years from the year in which the tax losses were R EELEE TR 5 &5 -
incurred.
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For the year ended 30 April 2017

J 28. SHARE CAPITAL

BE_TtFOA=THLEE

28. R
2017 2016
ZE-tF “T—RE
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
RAEE 8 BGEE ]
HK$°000 HK$'000
T AL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE. BTz EER
Authorised: EERA
At beginning of the year FORER
and at end of the year 100,000,000,000 1,000,000 100,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: REGIE
At beginning of the year £1] 17,592,180,000 175,922  16,442,180,000 164,422
Shares issued in placing REERHET RN
arrangement (note (i) (B () - - 1,150,000,000 11,500
Shares repurchased and BERRFHERR
cancelled (note (ii) (PzE (i) (6,390,000) (64) = =
At end of the year S 17,585,790,000 175,858  17,592,180,000 175,922
Notes: MI5E
0] On 30 July 2015, pursuant to a placing agreement dated 10 July (i) R-E—ARFELA=1+H BEAAFHE

2015 between the Company and a placing agent, the Company
issued an aggregate of 1,150,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.40 per share to independent
parties. Details of the share placement were contained in the
Company’s announcements dated 10 July 2015 and 30 July

2015.

(i)

On 8 September 2016, the Company cancelled 6,390,000 of

its shares in respect of the repurchases made on 26-29 July
2016, 1 August 2016 and 3-5 August 2016. Details of the share
cancellation were contained in the Company’s announcement

dated 8 September 2016.

All these ordinary shares issued by the Company during the
years rank pari passu with the then existing ordinary shares in

all respects.

RERER-_Z-—AFEATHITZZE
EWE - AR RIZER0.40E T Z BIE(A
%E%Eﬁ?ﬁ‘ﬁm/ﬁJ 150,000,000 iR &A%
ETEO.O?}%TEE’]%E B o BRI E 27
EHERAARBPA-—Z-—AFEATH
R-ZB-—AFLA=FTHZRE -

RZZE-—RFEFLANB ARFIFEH
6,390,OOOH§,E;E’\*g*/\$t)E]f+/_\
BE-+AB  —Z—R"FENA-BE=
Z-RENA=ZBELRBLEZKRG - A
FARDEHHFBEHRARA AR -F

(i

—NEALANBZRE -
RARRNEFRETZAEEBRNETE
HEER2IRBEBERER RS °
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29. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 29. A B Z B FEAR R R
FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 APRIL 2017 R-ZE—tFMA=+H
2017 2016
—B—tF A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
(=2 FET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB MR G 86 1,811
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIEE 200 200
286 2,011
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments & MIERFRIE 16,153 6,232
Financial assets at fair value ZAFERERIER
through profit or loss ZEMEE 12,036 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries I EPNGIE S 2,493,180 2,374,100
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEERB 69,586 336,015
2,590,955 2,716,347
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued charges and other payables FEETE A K E b e {FERIE 7,919 7,478
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE ] 142,693 89,183
Current tax liabilities EHRIEAE 1,326 1,326
151,938 97,987
Net current assets REEEFE 2,439,017 2,618,360
Net assets EEFE 2,439,303 2,620,371
EQUITY R
Share capital 5N 28 175,858 175,922
Reserves it 30 2,263,445 2,444,449
Total equity AR 2,439,303 2,620,371
On behalf of directors REE=S
Mr. Wong Sai Hung Mr. Chen Chunguo
=LA REB KL
Director Director
2 o
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J 30. RESERVES

30. f#fE
The Company FANAY=)
Share
Share option Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
ROEE BRERE ER G 2 EBE &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT THT T T T
At 1 May 2015 R-Z—HFRA—H 2,754,185 24,678 12 (662,331) 2,116,544
Shares issue expense BRIDEITHY (3,894) - - = (3,894)
Exchange gain on translation &8N EH I HRE
of financial statements ZER WA
of foreign operations — — 1 — 1
Issue of share options BT IRE - 20,345 - — 20,345
Lapse of share options B AR R - (80) - 80 —
Share issued at premium HREBETRG 448,500 - - — 448,500
Loss for the year AEEBE — - - (137,047) (137,047)
At 30 April 2016 RZZE—"ENA=1H
and 1 May 2016 PSS s R = 3,198,791 44,943 13 (799,298) 2,444,449
Exchange gain on translation &8 EH I HRE
of financial statements ZERME
of foreign operations - — 1 — 1
Issue of share options B THR AR - 28,520 - = 28,520
Lapse of share options RESEH - (38,789) - 38,789 —
Share repurchased REAEN Gl
and cancelled (1,795) — — — (1,795)
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (207,730) (207,730)
At 30 April 2017 R-B—+EMA=1A 3,196,996 34,674 14 (068,230) 2,263,445

RERASHERRNE  ARRLZRMEER
TRA 2k FRXR - AR RIANEREZ K
MEMBREDIKAHIR - EMEREXRFB
R EEDME -

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company is also available
for distribution to shareholders provided that the Company is
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business immediately following the date on which any such
distribution is proposed to be paid.
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31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. KEHERIE
As lessee Z=r=2 v
The Group leases a number of properties under operating AEEREBECEHERRE TYWE - BEHE
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to five years. AR —ZERF -
At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease payments RERER @ REBTAIHEKCEHE M AT
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: ZARKERSLRELOT -
2017 2016
—E—+F —ET—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —F A 26,445 13,568
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEEZERFT (REEEMF) 44,962 21,596
Later than five years AFMUE - 864
71,407 36,028
During the year, the Group entered into the framework RAFE - AEBEBTE=55 ZIEEW
agreements with independent third parties to establish an & AR BRI —EREZ B & —H
ophthalmic clinic and a specialist hospital located in Shenzhen, ERIEP o RIBMMDIERBZ ZGK * &
PRC. According to the terms of the two framework agreements, AR ERSAAHERA BREENFERA
the Group may have use of each of the two sites for the FRZMESA - EARSEEAEREEF A
first eight years following the date the relevant site becomes BBV E=1 D ZER B 49% K& EZF
available for use and the Group is required to share 49% of the A (Big) o i AEBMRELEER
audited net profit (after tax) of the specialist hospital with the EZE5 HEeB2ELFENBITTS
independent third party during the term of that lease. Thereafter, FEETE -

the Group may elect to continue to rent the sites at a rental to
be determined by reference to the then prevailing market rate
for the seven years that follow.
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J 32. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

As at 30 April 2017, the Group had capital and other
commitments as follows:

32. EAR HAAEE

RZZE—+FOA=1TH  TEBZEERK
HAGEDT

2017 2016
—E—t5F —ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Capital commitments: B AR
Authorised but not contracted for: BREERETA
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEEY¥ - MEKRR&RE - 68,780
Contracted but not provided for: ERTAB R
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEEW¥ - MEKRR&RE 15,038 21,658

The Company signed two sponsorship agreements with the
University of Oxford for the research of stem cell therapy and
tissue engineering. The Company agreed to provide GBP9.0
million (equivalent to HK$102.6 million) to the University of
Oxford by instalments over the period covered by agreements.
Up to 30 April 2017, the Company has paid GBP4.5 million
(equivalent to HK$52.6 million) (2016: GBP2.5 million (equivalent
to HK$28.4 million)) to the University of Oxford.

On 31 March 2017, the Group entered into the commitment
letter with independent third parties to subscribe for the interest
in a Haitong International Zhong Hua Finance Acquisition Fund
[, L.P. (“the Fund”), an exempted limited partnership to be
established in the Cayman Islands, and irrevocably undertake
to make a capital contribution of US$75 million (equivalent to
HK$585 million) to the Fund as a limited partner of the Fund,
subject to and assumes the satisfaction of the conditions
contained in the limited partnership agreement and subscription
agreement of the fund and acceptance by the general partner
of the fund. Up to 30 April 2017, the Company has not yet
made any payment to the fund. On 15 July 2017, the Group
entered into the limited partnership agreement and subscription
agreement of the fund.

NAE AR AE S MEE R ALK TR
R FTR] LMD B B ek - A QR B 7
O 2 HARE M 4R K 2 5 BRBE £ 9,000,000
EHE (HEM102,600,0008 ) « HE
T—+EMA=+H  KARBZRAFEAS
1+ 4,500,000 # £ (& 1 52,600,000 7
7T) (ZZT— 754 : 2,500,000 £ & (HHE R
28,400,000/%7T) ) ) °

R_ZE—tF=A=+—H ' A&EHEF
3 % = 7 §] M # B Haitong International
Zhong Hua Finance Acquisition Fund I,
LP(TE2]) (RENASESKIZER
RERBEEARER) HRmARER - X
AR AEERESCERERARNES
JX & 75,000,000 % 7T (48 E # 585,000,000
BT  MAREEZEREETERHE
REWEP IS 2 R EERANEES 2
TREBAEMEAAEE - BE_T—
FMHA=+H » NARIRARAESZEMR
FHEeR_TE—t+tF+A+HB  AEEF]
YEREEHERECRERE -
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BRE

33. SHARE OPTION 33.

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant
to a resolution passed on 14 September 2011 (the “Scheme”).
Under the Scheme, the directors may grant options to (i) any
eligible employee (means any employee, whether full time or
part time employee, including any executive directors and non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries and
any invested entity; (i) any supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any invested entity; (i) any customer
of the Group or any invested entity; (iv) any person or entity
that provides research, development or technological support
or other services to the Group or any invested entity; and (v)
any shareholder or any member of the Group or any invested
entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group to any invested entity (collectively known as the
“Participants”), to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
the Participants thereunder for their contributions to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-caliber
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group and any invested entity. The period of the Scheme shall
not be more than ten years from the date of adoption of the
Scheme.

ZIK ARE-—ER-_T——FNLATHEA
BZRBERM—IABBRESS ([5
%J ) o REBEE EFEARTIALRE
BEENRBARRRD - ()ANARE - BT
AMB AR REMMREER ZEMNAER
B8 GEEA2RIRRBES - BREREMH
TEENFNTES) : ()AXAKEEAK
BRAASREMMBREERHESRAIRG 2
EAHER : (I AREREMMIKEER
ZEMBEE (AR EBERERNAREER
BRI  FEABRM R LEMRSE 2
EAALHER  RVAKESEAKE
RAHERAREER ZEAIRRAAEE
Eﬁﬁfa% R A AMERATRE B EITZEM
BEHFZEMFBAEA (G [28E]) - 58
ZH MBS EE B AREEME AR
{EH S B 2 &, AR ESIARE K
BEESREE - WRAEASEE IR
EERMEEEZANER - st BB hRS
A8l B R E A SEB T E -
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J 33. SHARE OPTION (Cont'd) 33. BEARE ()

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of the
approval of the Scheme, unless approved by the Company’s
shareholders. In addition, the maximum number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time. Options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors of the Company, or
any of their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5
million must be approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within a period of 28 days
from the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An
option period to be determined by the directors is at their
absolute discretion shall not be more than ten years after the
date of the grant of the share option (“Option Period”). Options
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during the Option Period after the option has been
granted. The exercise price should not be less than the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares; (i) the closing
price of the Company’s share on the date of grants, which
must be a trading day; or (i) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing its shares.

During the year ended 30 April 2017, 227,330,000 options
(2016: 254,340,000 options) were granted under the Scheme.

KIEEB AR B R ILE - RIEETEIA TR
2 BRRAES R2 RN RECTSBAARA A
PHLERTEIE BEBITIRHD Z 10% © B -
EITEEARIR T8I M & R 17 2 BB AR AE i
Al TET 2 ARAIIRMDEE LR - T5E#E
RAEREF B BTN Z 30% ° IREM 12
18 A BARE R AT A (R fA] A £3% H 2 BB AR 5
ZRHEE TEBAARA R PNMEAEERE
TR Z1% ° fMAAR R EBRRER B
FHTESTRAARESEZHEARKZ
BREBASNARKRAZ01% R EEBR
5,000,000 7T + R M7BES AR A IRt
E ©

PR 2 BE AR A R R R H A B 28 A AR
A R AR - &R A B AR B R A
BT BRENRIHESFERBEERE

HENSHBIR LB AR +F (188
PRAEHIA ) - R B ARAER - BREATR
FE s v HA ) PO 2 PR T 81 6 SR BB B 7 AT ©
TEETFERUAT=EZESE : (AR
AROEE : () ARARMRELBES (&
ARRSR) ZWHE (i) AR EBR R
ERRH AP AERS B Z FHRTHIE

B ABRAD SN 2 1B B BN & G ARR AN ST A o
AEBERBETRMOIN  BEERHIEEER
BRI B E -

HE-_Z—+tFNA=+RHILEEE"
227,330,000f7 BB K #E (=T — N F
254,340,000 {7 BERRAE) EARBRTEIR T o

' @ China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2016 / 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTk B ot

For the year ended 30 April 2017 HZE2 - —+FMWA=+H L FE

33. SHARE OPTION (Cont’d) 33. BIRE (&)
The following tables set out the movement in share options: TRET|ERE S ED)
Share Outstanding at Granted during Transfer during Lapsed during Outstanding at
option type 1 May 2016 the year the year* the year 30 April 2017
RZ8-5% RZZ-tF
Name or category S8AL2 ER-H MA=+A
of participant HE R EREEL HATE QL FRER* EREH HATE
Placing of shares RERf 2015 495,000,000 - - (495,000000) -
Directors EZ
Mr. Wong Sai Hung atti s 2016 7,560,000 - - - 7,560,000
2017 - 24,000,000 - - 24,000,000
Dr. Shao Znengkang PugEL 2016 12,030,000 - - - 12,080,000
2017 - 23,000,000 - - 23,000,000
Non-executive directors FHEE
Professor Cui Zhanfeng EHEHR
(eppointed on 7 October 2016)  (RZE-AETALRERE) 2016 - - 9,630,000 - 9,630,000
2017 - - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Professor Deng Shaoping BATHR
(refired o 9 September 2016)  (R=Z-~ENAABERE) 2016 5,780,000 - - (5,780,000) -
M. Yang Zhengguo BEALE
(resigned on 5 August 2016) (W= EN\AREEE) 2016 6,300,000 - - (6,300,000) -
Mr. Wang Jianjun IRERE
(refired on 9 September 2016)  (R=E-"ENAABERE) 2016 5,780,000 - (5,780,000) - -
Mr. Cao Fushun ErlEEs
(resigned on 18 July 2016) (R=E-~ELATNBRE) 2016 5,510,000 = = (5,510,000) =
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE
directors
Mr. Lui Tin Nang EYN: 2016 2,100,000 - - - 2,100,000
2017 - 2,400,000 - - 2,400,000
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny FRELE 2016 2,010,000 - - - 2,010,000
2017 - 2,400,000 - - 2,400,000
Mr. Chan Bing Woon RmALE 2016 1,930,000 - - - 1,930,000
2017 - 2,300,000 - - 2,300,000
Mr. Wang Hui TEEE 2016 1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000
2017 - 2,100,000 - - 2,100,000
Sub-total Gt 50,750,000 56,200,000 7,850,000 (17,590,000 97,210,000
Employees &8
In aggregate A 2016 162,500,000 - 650,000 (84,470,000 78,680,000
2017 - 147,130,000 (7,920,000 (28,100,000 111,110,000
Consultants B
In aggregate A 2016 37,410,000 - (4,500,000 (12,030,000 20,880,000
2017 - 24,000,000 3,920,000 - 27,920,000
Total gt 745,660,000 227,330,000 - (637,190,0000 335,800,000
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J 33. SHARE OPTION (Cont'd) | BBRRIE (1B)

- During the year, share options granted to directors, employees * FRN - ERQ)ERBELAEDREARARAE
and consultants have been reclassified in view of (1) Mr. Wang £ HERFEANDBEAABERE : @ 4A2A0A
Jianjun was retired as director of the Company but continued to ZEREHEHEERFARZERES
be employed by the Company during the year; (2) Professor Cui EQARFBETEERGEANETRER - &
Zhanfeng, consultant of the Company, was appointed as director TES EEREMZERES TUERN
during the year; and (3) certain employees of the Company were H¥E o
acted as consultants during the year.

For the year ended 30 April 2017, share options lapsed were HE-_Z—tFNA=1+HILFE  BIRE

due to (1) 142,190,000 (2016: 3,680,000) share options issued KBTBERN)EFANEEBRE/TER

to directors, employees and consultants who resigned/retired/ AEBRBERECEE - EERBERZETZ

ceased to provide services to the Group during the year; 142,190,0001n ( =& — 75 % : 8,680,000

and (2) 495,000,000 share options issued through placing of 7)) BIRE: RQBBN_T—RFZREE

shares in 2015 were expired. As a result of the lapse of share % 17 3517 #9 495,000,000 5 &% A% 1 2 f@ i °

options during the year, an amount of HK$38,789,000 (2016: FR 74 B AR BE A 4F I 2R ZR 88,789,000 7% 7T

HK$80,000) were debited to the share option reserve and —Z— 7% : 80,000/870) HEERIEREE

credited to accumulated losses. RHIBRITET A RETEE ©

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payment HRESRAFKEL CBIRET AR ERE

transactions with consultants is by reference to the fair value 2 BEINSED - R A E R 2

of the share options granted, as the directors consider that the EEm R - EERET C AEREE

share options granted is an extra incentive to the consultants RIELZFNEARZRS 2 AFEESERED
and no specified goods or services to be provided to the Group. BikEsATEERE

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at RZE—+tFER T R"FHNA=THZE

30 April 2017 and 2016 are as follows: ARG TR A IR

Number of options
Contractual  Contractual RERYA

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period exercise price life of options 2017 2016

REAH GRS s ENARE  BREGHER ZE-tF ZE-RE

Placing of shares

RERH

5 March 2015 Immediately 5 March 2015 to HK$025 1 year - 495,000,000

“E-1E-RAA g 4 September 2016 058 1%

“E-nE-ARAZ
“E-ENAEA
Directors and
chief executive officer
ESR
lEE
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2016 to HK$0.45 10 years 7,402,000 14,984,600
“E2-RENATAA 15 September 2016 15 September 2025 0458 104
:':?73:_@71)%‘/\\51 “E-NENATABEE
S /\imﬁ'ﬂa _?_ﬂﬁlﬂﬂia
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 16 September 2017 HK$0.45  10years 7,402,000 14,984,600
ZZ-REAATAR 15 September 2ow 15 September 2025 045%T 105
“F-RFNATAAZ “E—+ENBT/EE
“E-tENATHA _;_ﬁiﬂﬂ +3A
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33. SHARE OPTION (Cont’d) 33.

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at i

30 April 2017 and 2016 are as follows (Cont’d): FRPE R AR AT ()
Number of options
Contractual  Contractual RERNE
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period exercise price life of options 2017 2016
RiEAH R s ENTRE  EREGHER | -3-tF ZE-RE
Directors and
chief executive officer
(Cont'd)
ESR
THEH (8)
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2018 to HK$0.45  10years 7,402,000 14,984,600
ZE-REAATAR 15 September 2018 15 September 2025 0458 105
“E2-1ENATARR S-\ENATHAZ
“Z-\EnATERA —*‘Eﬁﬁnﬂ +1H
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2019 to HK$0.45  10years 7,402,000 14,984,600
ZE-RENATAR 15 September 2019 15 September 2025 0458 105
ZZ-RENATARE ZE-NENRTARE
ZZ-NENATERA ZECRENATER
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2020 to HK$0.45  10years 7,402,000 14,984,600
ZE-RENATAR 15 September 2020 15 September 2025 0458 108
ZZ-RENATARE ZEIEENATARE
“ZCTENATRRA —*‘ﬁﬁnﬂ+ﬁa
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2017 HK$0.291  9years 12,040,000 -
ZE-NERANR 8 September 2017 8 September 2025 02011 9%
T ENANEE ZE-tENANRE
“E-tENANR “2-R%0A) \E
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2018 HK$0.291  9years 12,040,000 -
ZE-NERANR 8 September 2018 8September 2025 02911 9%
7":»' /\inﬂnﬁi \ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁi
-NENANA ‘*‘ﬁﬁﬂﬂ \E
9 September 2016 9 September 20160 9 September 2019 HK$0.291  9years 12,040,000 -
ZE-NERANE 8 September 2019 8 September 2025 02911 9%
T ENANAE ZE-NENANAE
ZT-NENANR “EZRENANA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2020 to HK$0.291  9years 12,040,000 -
ZE-NERANE 8 September 2020 8 September 2025 02911 9%
T ENANAE ZEIEENANAZR
“2-ZENANR “2-R%0A) \E
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2021 t HK$0.291  9years 12,040,000 -
ZE-NERANE 8 September 2021 8 September 2025 02911 9%
“E- ENANAZE “E--ENANAZ
ZTZ-ENANR “EZRENANA
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33. BIxE (&)

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at RZE—+tFRZZE—A"FOA=THZE
30 April 2017 and 2016 are as follows (Cont’d): FRIENGR NG T () -
Number of options
Contractual  Contractual RERA
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period exercise price life of options 2017 2016
RiLRH RS it ANTRE  BRESHER -3t “E-5F
Employees
&8
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2016 to HK$0.45 10 years 15,736,000 21,665,400
ZE-RENATAR 15 September 2016 5 September 2025 0458 10%
S ﬂﬁlﬂﬂ'ﬁai “EENATABEE
% /ﬁnﬂﬁa ZECRENATRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 16 September 2017 to HK$0.45  10years 15,736,000 21,665,400
“E-RENRTAA 15 September 2017 15 September 2025 0458  10F
ZE-NEAATARE “2-tFNATARE
ZI-tENATRR “ZCRENATERA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2018 to HK$0.45 10 years 15,736,000 21,665,400
ZE2-RENATAA 15 September 2018 15 September 2025 0458 104
ZE-IEAATARE 2 \FNATARRE
ZZ-\ENATERR ZECREAATERR
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2019 to HK$045 10 years 15,736,000 21,665,400
ZE-RENATAR 15 September 2019 15 September 2025 0458 104
ZE-RENATARE “E-NENATARE
ZZ-NENATRA “ECRENATERR
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2020 to HK$0.45  10years 15,736,000 21,665,400
“E-RENRTAA 15 September 2020 5 September 2025 0458  10F
ZE-REAATARE "2 REAATARE
ZECRENATRR "2 RFAATER
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2017 to HK$0.291  9years 22,222,000 -
“E-~ENANA 8 September 2017 8 September 2025 09131 9%
ZENEAANEE “E-tFNANRE
“Z-tENANR _%_ﬂﬁnﬂ \E
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2018 HK$0.291  9years 22,222,000 -
ZE-NENANA 8 September 2018 8 September 2025 0.291%T 9%
“E-ENANAR “E-\ENANRE
“2-\EhnANR “E-RENANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2019 to HK$0.291  9years 22,222,000 -
“E-ENRNA 8 Sep tember 2019 8 September 2025 0201%L 9%
-z /\ﬁhﬂnﬁi :E_ﬂgﬂﬂﬂﬁi
ZZ-NENANR “E-REAANA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2020 to HK$0.291  9years 22,222,000 -
“E-~ENANA 8 September 2020 8 September 2025 029131 9%
ZENERANEE 2 EEAANEER
ZTZZEAANA “Z2RENA) \E
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2021 t HK$0.291  9years 22,222,000 -
ZE-NENANA 8 September 2021 8 September 2025 0.291%T 9%
ZE-ENANAE ZZ--FAANEE
“2--%hnANR ZEZRENANA
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33. BIxE (&)

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at RZE—+tFRZZE—A"FOA=THZE
30 April 2017 and 2016 are as follows (Cont’d): FRIENGR NG T () -
Number of options
Contractual  Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period exercise price life of options 2017 2016
Rt B BES i) ANGRKE BRESNEH  -3-tf ZE-RE
Consultants
Ef
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2016 to HK$0.45 10 years 4,176,000 7,482,000
“Z-REAATAR w5 September 2016 15 September 2025 045%T 105
S-RFNAT/AEZ “E-NENATAHEE
%= Ainﬂ+ﬁ5 “E-RENATEA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 t 16 September 2017 to HK$0.45 10 years 4,176,000 7,482,000
“E-RFAATAR 15 September 20w 15 September 2025 0458 104
“E-RFARTAEE “ELENRTABEE
ZE-tENATRR ZECRENATRR
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2018 to HK$0.45 10 years 4,176,000 7,482,000
“E2-RENATAA 15 September 2018 15 September 2025 0458 104
“E-RFNATAAE “2-\ENRTARE
“E-\ENATERA ZECRENATHRR
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2019 to HK$0.45 10 years 4,176,000 7,482,000
ZZ-REAATAR 15 September 2019 15 September 2025 045%T 105
ZE-NEAATARE S-NENATARE
ZZ-NENATERR _;_ﬁinﬂ 3R
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2020 to HKS0.45 10 years 4,176,000 7,482,000
“E-RFAATAR 15 September 2020 15 September 2025 0458 104
—Z-EFNRT/AZE “E-EENRTABEE
ZECRENATRR ZECRENA +£E
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2017 HK$0.291  9years 5,584,000 -
“E2-~ENANR 8 September 2017 8 September 2025 020131 9%
ZENEAANEE Z-tFNANRE
“Z-tENANR _%_ﬁw \E
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2018 HK$0.291  9years 5,584,000 -
2 RENANR 8 September 2018 8 September 2025 0201%8T 9%
“2-"ENANRE ZE-\ENANRZE
ZZ-N\EAANR “E-REAANA
9 Sep ember 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2019 to HK$0.291  9years 5,584,000 -
ZE-NENANA BSep ember 2019 8 September 2025 09131 9%
75 ninﬂnﬁi "_ﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂai
Z-NENANR “ECRENANR
9 September 2016 9 September 20160 9 September 2020 to HK$0.291  9years 5,584,000 -
ZE2-~ENANR 8 Sep tember 2020 8 September 2025 02131 9%
S ENANEE 2 EEAANEER
:2_2@1)%/\5 “E-R4nA) \E
9 Sep ember 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2021 t HK$0.291  9years 5,584,000 -
ZE-NERANE 8 Sep fember 2021 8 Sep fember 2025 0201%T 9%
I ENANAE “2--¥AANBE
ZE--50ANB ZE2RENANR
335,800,000 745,660,000
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J 33. SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)

As at 30 April 2017, the Company had 335,800,000 (2016:
745,660,000) share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 2% (2016: 4%) of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full
of the remaining share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 335,800,000
(2016: 745,660,000) additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$3,358,000 (2016:
HK$7,457,000) and share premium of HK$115,875,000 (2016:
HK$229,090,000) (before issue expenses).

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

. BRE (&)

RZZE—+EWA=+8 AQ2FA
335,800,0001p (== —7 4 : 745,660,000
M) G ET 2 M AITEBRE 4R
AIRZBZBEEITRMO2% (=T —~
Fi4%) e RARRBEBHEEARNERET -
BEOTERTHRESERARRET
335,800,000 % (== —734F : 745,660,000
%) FBHNE BAR - B A RN S 3,358,000
BT (ZF — /N4 1 7,457,000 70) R AR
1% % {8 115,875,000 T (= F — /X F ¢
229,090,000 7 7T) (RINBREETTHIS) ©

FEREHE RIEFHITEENT

2017 2016
ZE-tE “ERF
Weighted Weighted

average Number of average Number of

exercise price options exercise price options

METHTER BREHR METHORE BhEsa

HK$ '000 HK$ '000

B T BT T

Outstanding at beginning of year FMRAITE 0.32 745,660 025 495,000
Issued during the year FRET 0.29 227,330 045 254,340
Lapsed during the year FRXH 0.29 (637,190) 045 (3,680)
Qutstanding at end of year FERHAITE 0.36 335,800 0.32 745,660

As at 30 April 2017, the weighted average remaining contractual
life for the outstanding share options is 8.37 years (2016: 3.39
years).

R-ZEBE—+EMA=+H " WMATEER
RIS B E OFERAE8I7E (=F
— /N4 1 3.394F) o
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33.

34.

SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)

The weighted average fair value of each option issued during
the year was HK$0.193 (2016: HK$0.303). The fair value
of the share options has been determined based on the
Binomial model estimated by an independent professional
valuer, Roma Appraisal Limited. As at the date of grant, the fair
value of the options issued by the Company during the year
was HK$43,970,000 (2016: HK$76,995,000). The following
significant assumptions were used to derive the fair values:

33.

BiE (E)

FANBITNEOEREZNEFLARATER
0.193% 7T (=& — /34 : 0.3038 ) ° i
A&t 2 A AR B X G ER A 5 BRRET
HARARIRE ZHEABRRGFTETE - RIX
HHE  ARRIFANBITEREZ AFES
43,970,000/ 7T (ZZ—7~4F © 76,995,000
BIL) o AFENEATEAREZSS ¢

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—F

Underlying stock price (HK$) TERERRE (BT) 0.29 0.45
Exercise price (HKS) 116EE (BT) 0.291 0.45
Risk-free rate (%) 42 [ B 1) 2R (%) 0.812 1.702
Annualised dividend yield (%) FERE EHRE (%) - —
Expected volatility of underlying share (%) FERARR 10 2 T8 B 18 (%) 80.16 76.64
Weighted average remaining contractual life — AN#EF15 i k& %) F 2f 8.995 9.998

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome. No special features pertinent
to the options granted were incorporated into the measurement
of fair value.

During the year, share-based payments of HK$28,520,000
(2016: HK$20,345,000), which included share-based payment
transactions with directors and employees of HK$24,597,000
(2016: HK$17,205,000) and with consultants of HK$3,923,000
(2016: HK$3,140,000), have been recognised in profit or loss.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Frame Sharp Limited (“Frame Sharp”)

On 14 August 2015, the Group acquired 70% equity interests
of Frame Sharp with cash consideration of HK$42,500,000.
Frame Sharp and its subsidiaries (“Frame Sharp Group”), which
is principally engaged in providing service and equipment for
human cell and stem cell related clinical applications. The
acquisition was made with the objective to setup a regional
hub that takes care of human cell and stem cell processing
businesses in the Huadong Region (Eastern China Region) and
to generate synergy through the acquisition.

34.

EHPR IR R A B RAR - BIAE SLIRIE AR
KBEWMEST  BEZARBBENT—ERE
BRER - EFTEATVERIEMABHER
B AR B RE IR B

FRN- LARESZ N E R A28,520,000%
7T (ZZF— 74 : 20,345,000/ 7T) © HA
PREEZEENEEZURESINERAR S
24,597,000 7T (Z&— /34 : 17,205,000
BL) WREBEMRZBRESHERR S
3,928,000 7T (=& —7<4F : 3,140,0007%
TT) C BEREEPER °

EBEH

Frame Sharp Limited ( [ Frame
Sharp_/)

R_ZE—AFNA+THHNBE AEEI
42,500,000/ 7T 2 3 & 1 & Y #& Frame
Sharp 70% f%#E ° Frame Sharp & i B A
7] ( [Frame Sharp Group| ) T2/ = A A
B 40 A % B4 40 M AR B B K JE R SRR AR 7 IR 5%
B2 R - WWEE R ARERME (R E
SRERHD IR ) BT BR EE A B A B 0 4 B 2 7S
BRI AR AR - DA R i i UK e A 175 (R U o
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J 34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Cont’d) 34. EBKEHF (&)
Frame Sharp Limited (“Frame Sharp”) (Cont’d) Frame Sharp Limited ( [ Frame
Sharp_/ ) (#&)
Details of fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired BAZAHNEERBENATLEFBER
were as follows: I
HK$’000
F&7T
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) Yz - BB MEEE (HEE14) 1,549
Other intangible assets (note 18) HinmREE (H5E18) 51,180
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e - A RIE R E AR W ARIE 69
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEMEER 2,216
Trade payables B E S ARIE (172)
Accrued charges and other payables FERTE A M E i S ARIE (1,468)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised N EFHEEERD
upon fair value adjustments (note 27) FEEFRIB A E (Fi5E27) (12,796)
Net assets BESE 40,578
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR AR R A (12,173)
Net identified assets acquired A Z AR & E A 28,405
Goodwill on acquisition (note 16) Whsrg 2 (s 16) 8,902
Total consideration BRE 37,307
Satisfied by: BT SEX A
Cash B 42,500
Contingent consideration receivable (note 17) FEU S ARE (BIFE17) (5,199
Total purchase consideration BEENRE 37,307
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in EHABIBHNB AR RS MNREEEIER R
respect of the acquisition of the subsidiaries was as follows: R DMAT
HK$’000
FET
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BAZRES MRS SHEER 2,216
Cash and cash equivalents paid BB kR eEEIER (42,500)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents REMRESEEBER ML FE (40,284)
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34.

35.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Cont’d)
Frame Sharp Limited (“Frame Sharp”) (Cont’d)

Since the acquisition date to 30 April 2016, Frame Sharp Group
had contributed HK$55,000 and HK$3,318,000 to Group’s
revenue and loss. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 May
2015, Group revenue and loss for the year ended 30 April
2016 would have been HK$27,751,000 and HK$195,701,000
respectively. This pro forma information was for illustrative
purpose only and was not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
1 May 2015, nor was it intended to be a projection of future
performance.

The goodwill arose from the acquisition of Frame Sharp Group
mainly represented (1) significant future prospect and the
business value of Frame Sharp Group and (2) synergy effect of
the newly acquired business with the existing tissue engineering
business.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Group are the directors,
chief executives and chief financial officer of the Company.
The remuneration of the key management personnel is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends. The remuneration
of a member of the key management (excluding directors and
chief executives) as follows:

34. EBEH ()

Frame Sharp Limited ( [ Frame
Sharp_] ) (#&)

BWERARE_ZT—X"FONA=1+H8"
Frame Sharp Group & AN EE 2 Wz M &
8 & B 55,0008 T & 38,318,000 L ° &
WEN—_ZT—RFRA—B%LE  AEEE
E_E—NFHA=THLEFEZRERE
B B A& 27,751,000 7T & 195,701,000
BT o WEEERHERGAAR AR
AEWRER -"Z—RFHA—BxkAE
EERSERMNRGEREEES - MWL
RIREERTER -

Wi 8% Frame Sharp Group EAZ AR T E 4
(1) Frame Sharp Group B & X 7K 2R Al & &
FEBERQFMBEEBERBARKTIZ
ETEHY h[R) A E o

35. BERS
FEEFANSHWE

AEBzTEEBABNARRRESE &5
TRABREREMBE - TEEEABZM
EHAFHREEREBENALZRRERT
LBEET —RIEBEAR (TREE
ERERTRAR) cMEBENT

2017 2016

—E—+fF —T—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T

Salaries and other benefits e M E M EF 2,409 970
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRIREF T EIES 20 10
Equity-settled share-based payments DA E 2 RES B R 359 367
2,788 1,347
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J 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 35.

Compensation of key management personnel
(Cont’d)

The emoluments of the key management (excluding directors
and chief executives) fell within the following band:

BERZ (&)

TEEEASHE (&

TEERAB (TREEERBEBHTHA
8) WBeN FATHRE

Number of individual

AE
2017 2016
—B—tF —TNF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 % 7T 1 —
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 /7T
% 2,000,000 % 7T 1 1

Details of the remuneration paid to the directors and chief
executives are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

Save as elsewhere in the financial statements and above, there
was no other related party transaction during the years ended
30 April 2016 and 2017.

XN TFTEERESTBRABZMEFBEER
FITSIRRPIREQ

B BREAANZEMEBO RIALARES
v RBE-ZT-—ARER-_ZF—tF0OA
STRLEFEMBELMEERS -
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36. MIE A E]

RZZE—+FOA=1TH  KREZEEMH

36. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30

April 2017 are as follows: BAAEFBET :
Place of Issued ordinary Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/paid up ownership interests Principal activities
Name of company registration capital held by the Company and place of operations
EMEL/ BRTEER RRAERE
NAEH it S RE/BRER BEERBLA TEXBRERME
Directly Indirectly
Ef GE73
China Bio-Med Regeneration British Virgin Islands 1S$20,000 100% — Investment holding,
Technology Limited RBRUESE 20,000 Hong Kong
REAENBEEERBER AR REER &R
China Regenerative Medicine British Virgin Islands US$1 — 100% Investment holding,
Tissue Engineering Limited RBRUESE e Hong Kong
(Previously known as REER B8
Million Profit Group Limited)
PR REAG TIEBRAR
(FIRkBERERAR)
FD(H) Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 — 100% Investment holding,
RBRUESE 100%7T Hong Kong
RE#EK &R
Shaanxi Aierfu The PRC RMB250,000,000 — 100% Production and sales of
RENEE H (2016: RMB206,900,000) tissue engineering skin
AR#250,000,0007C related products, the PRC
(ZE—1%: EERHEARTR
AR 206,900,000 7T) REREER - FE
Shaanxi Aimiya Bio-Technology The PRC RMB2,000,000 — 100% Research and development,
Company Limited H AK%2,000,0007T the PRC
RENEEEDREERAR HERRE - HE
Shaanxi AiBosin Bio-Engineering The PRC RMB2,000,000 — 100% Research and development,
Company Limited H AK%2,000,0007T the PRC
A EEENTRERAH HERFE - PE
Shaanxi AiNear Cornea Engineering The PRC RMB3,800,000 — 100% Research and development,
Company Limited A AR#3,800,0007C the PRC

RELERARIRAERAA

NERFE - 78
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J 36. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

36. MEBLA (&)

Place of Issued ordinary Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/paid up ownership interests Principal activities
Name of company registration capital held by the Company and place of operations
EMEL/ BRTEER RRAERE
NAEH it S RE/BRER BEERBLA TEXBRERME
Directly Indirectly
Ef GE73
Shenzhen AiNear Cornea Engineering The PRC RMB3,800,000 — 100% Production and sales of
Company Limited H AR#3,800,0007C bio-engineered cornea,
MR AETIREBRAR the PRC
EERBEENIRAR
i
Zhongsheng Medical Equipment Trading ~ The PRC RMBG60,000,000 — 100% Sales and distribution,
Company Limited A AK#60,000,0007C the PRC
PARREMHERRAA HERDH  HHE
Shaanxi Reshine Biotech Co. Ltd. The PRC RMB117,000,000 — 100% Research and development,
RAEREENREERAR HE (2016: RVB87,000,000) the PRC
AR#117,000,0007C HERFAE - PE
(ZZ—R%:
AR 87,000,0007T)
Shanghai Hesidi Cosmetics The PRC RMB50,000,000 — 51% Sales and distribution,
Company Limited H AK#50,000,0007C the PRC
LR EmERAR HERDH  HHE
Shenzhen Hesidi Bio-Technology The PRC RMB5,000,000 — 51% Sales and distribution,
Company Limited H AR 5,000,000 the PRC
M E AR AR HERDH  HHE
China Bio-Med Technology Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 — 100% Research and development,
PARSRRERAA M AE#50,000,0007 the PRC
HERRE - hE
HK International Regenerative Centre Hong Kong HK$100 = 80% Healthcare business,
Limited B 1007T Hong Kong
(Previously known as BEREEE B
Revital Healthcare Biotech Limited)
BEERBLRERLERAR]
(AIRRFRRENARAH)
China Regenerative Medicine Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100% Investment holding,
HEBEREERAT B 18T Hong Kong
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36. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

36. MEBLA (&)

Place of Issued ordinary Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/paid up ownership interests Principal activities
Name of company registration capital held by the Company and place of operations
MR/ BRTEER RRAERE
NAEH it S RE/BRER BEERBLA TEXBRERME
Directly Indirectly
Ef GE73
BioCell Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100% Cell operation,
(Previously known as China Stem BE 18T Hong Kong
Cell Clinical Applications Wiz - B
Centre Limited)
AREMBRERAH
(T BB ARER
ERFRLBRAR)
Tianjin Weikai Bioeng Limited The PRC RMB10,400,000 = 70%" Sales and distribution,
REFNENTIRERAR G AR#10,400,0007 the PRC
HERDH P
AK (Suzhou) Biomedical Ltd The PRC RMB1,470,600 — 70%" Sales and distribution,
R, (BN ENBWEARBERRE & ARH#1,470,6007C the PRC
HERDH P
Note: Mtz -

ERIHEERBREIEXEAEEARFEEER
HARAEBFREEFELESNND ZMBAR -
BEERA JLEMHBARZFEECRIESR
RITE °

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results of the Group for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group at the end
of the year. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies. FrEMB AR ABREMERAR] °
RERSRENEMEHE - BIENE AR HEEET
AERHES °

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

EU (FERT) P R RIRIAREIER - RERA

BER(EE -

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.
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36. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Note: (Cont’d)

*

The Group does not have any equity interest in Tianjin Weikai
Bioeng Limited (“Tianjin Weikai”) and AK (Suzhou) Biomedical
Ltd (“AK Suzhou”). However, the Group has entered into the
contractual arrangements with Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou and
its equity holders, which enable the Group to (1) exercise effective
financial and operational control over Tianjin Weikai and AK
Suzhou; (2) exercise equity holders’ voting rights of Tianjin Weikai
and AK Suzhou; (3) receive substantially all of the economic
interest returns generated by Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou in
consideration for the management services provided by the
Group; (4) obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right with an initial
period of 10 years to purchase the entire equity interest in Tianjin
Weikai and AK Suzhou from the respective equity holders. The
right automatically renews upon expiry until the Group specifies
a renewal term; an (5) obtain a pledge over the entire equity
interest of Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou from its respective
equity holders as collateral security for all the payments due to
the Group and to secure performance of Tianjin Weikai’s and AK
Suzhou’s obligations under the above contractual arrangements.
Accordingly, the Group has rights to variable returns from its
involvement with Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over Tianjin Weikai
and AK Suzhou and is considered to control Tianjin Weikai and
AK Suzhou. Consequently, the Group regards Tianjin Weikai and
AK Suzhou as the indirect subsidiaries under HKFRSs.

36. MEBLA (&)

Bt -

*

(%)

AEBVEFSEREFNEDTRARRD
Al ([R2FS] ) RES (M) £
BRARE ([ (FRM) 1) B ERIBRAE -
A - ANEBERZEY MR (FRM) &
HEm R A AR LA KM EAKEE
B TERERZHEIRRES (FM) WE
PRI R B R 4 ¢ (21T R RE SR
By (FRM) Haskr A ARRERE © (3)YEX
REFYRE (M) ELEBABMHEH
MO - EAAREBEIR M EE R
RE: QESESBEREABERRE
SR EEL (BRI 2 &P AR A T AT I K 08
RIEN - MEFHRTF - HEENKE
s BEEL  EAKEEEER FRE
AIRRSN © J (6) BB EFH AL R2E
SRR (BRI 2EREAEN - 1ERIE
AR ER 18 1O P A SRIR Y AR ) FE R RO
EI KRR (FM) BT LA OTHET
MEE - Bt AEBARER2ERZE
EEINSE NG VDR E IV ATERJIE JEk:
BB nERESR2EI LR FIMN)
PRI B % F O - WRRBESR
R R R (FIM) - Bt REFEH
BmEER - REEBRZHY R R (B
M) BEEHBAR -
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37. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. eREEREMABEERE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

TR AKENSREENAE ZREE

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value

of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities: MAFE
2017 2016
:g_tfﬁ 7 /\EE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET TFHTT
Financial assets SEEE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AtEHESREE 112,928 =
Financial assets at fair value BAFERERIER
through profit or loss: ZERMERE
Contingent consideration receivables U AKR(E 46,259 28,030
Loans and receivables: ER R EKERTE
Pledged bank deposits BEERITIFERK 794,743 —
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value BAFERERSIER
through profit or loss ZEREE 12,036 —
Loans and receivables: ER R EKERTE
Trade receivables B E 5 BR18 39,117 19,992
Deposits and other receivables e RE M EURARTE 195,161 63,769
Pledged bank deposits BEERITIFERK - 558,873
Cash and cash equivalents e kBEeSEIER 571,732 1,300,825
1,771,976 1,971,489
Financial liabilities TRIBE
Financial liabilities measured IABESERRATTEC SRIB(E ¢
at amortised costs:
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables ERTE S ERIE 38,993 1,570
Accrued charges and other payables FEETE A M E S BRIE 42,121 33,816
Bank borrowings RITIE R 28,345 542,553
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Bank borrowings RITIEFX 725,632 —
835,091 577,939
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J 37. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. tRIEERESRE B EHE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (#&)

(Cont’d)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TREHEARAFEIIENSRTE 2 A FE

carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy: BREDT

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o —% HRAMEERBERERT
identical assets and liabilities; %E’J%&f’i (CREEHAZE)

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within e ZFE_RH:EHEEXBERFE R
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either BOASN - B8 (BMER) k% (Bl
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from EREL) TEREALE &
prices); and

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based o F=H:BHHEEXEEBEWIEEER]
on observable market data (unobservable inputs). BEMBEENE ASE GERIBE

A BUR) ©

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial PRIEEXBERATEREERNZEEE

asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is based on ARE AT EANEBEENH AZBE 2 &K

the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value &Rl o

measurement.

The financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated REEEHBERARARATFEHEZEME

statement of financial position are grouped into the fair value E G HEBEAZAFERBOT

hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
& et B=4R ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAT FAT FAT FATT
At 30 April 2017 R-ZE—tHEWMA=+H
Contingent consideration ~ fEUER AR (E
receivables — — 46,259 46,259
Listed equity securities HIEEE LR E S
held for trading 12,036 — — 12,036
12,036 - 46,259 58,295
At 30 April 2016 R-ZE—ARFMA=+H
Contingent consideration  fEMEAK(E
receivable — — 28,030 28,030
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37.

38.

—tFHA=THILEFE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Cont’d)

The listed equity securities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. Fair values have been determined by reference to their
quoted bid prices at the reporting date.

The details of the valuation of the fair value of contingent
consideration receivable are disclosed in note 17.

There have been no significant transfers between levels in the
reporting period.

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of
measuring fair value are unchanged compared to the previous
reporting periods.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including currency risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk.

The Group has a written risk management policy in place in
relation to credit risk associated with loan receivables. The
board of directors meets periodically to analyse and formulate
strategies to manage and monitor the Group’s exposure to a
variety of risks associated with financial instruments which arise
from the Group’s operating and investing activities. Generally,
the Group employs conservative strategies regarding its risk
management to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how these risks
are mitigated are described as follows:

@

Foreign currency risk

The Group has exposure to foreign currency risk as
certain of its assets are denominated in RMB. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of other foreign currency transactions, assets
and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

37.

38.

tHEEREMEED
(#&)

BHE

EHRAFFABTTEE - A FETIZER
EN|EBMBNEAEERE °

KK ARBLAFEZEEFERERHME
17 ©

RBEHE  ABEYESEEE -

Lt B A SRS HARS %##E“$EWE£
AR BRI

B EREE

AEBRERMNESEKBRERREKEFEF
FARemITAmAETERE - ABRRES
EmizRR (BEEERR - Fl=ERREHE
HERRER) EERREREDESRER °
REEFIFTEEKEE ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ B E
Eﬂﬁgﬁﬁ cEEe FTHARAGRET

247 3 Il 7B SR J«/(E.ﬁ&w? N £ [ T
XEAAERCE RN EEREEC ST
B7TRERER - —MmE @ AEBEHRERRE
BIRARERE - EIRAE KA BUREUHE

B o B2 S e R T EMER 2 Rk &
AT R 2 BEREH AT

@ SNEREE

HRAEBEETEEDNUARES
B WAKREHGRINERR - ANEH
BRIVEGMEMINERS - ﬁ%&
E\FZ?\\/EQFPBZ s AEEKE

B HOME E B2 E’\ﬁ?@%‘&ﬁj%ﬁ%‘}
HEARINER o

2016 /2017 F3 PEBLEELBEEFRAS '@



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI =t

For the year ended 30 April 2017 #ZE ==

—tFHA=THILEFE

J 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

@

(®)

(c)

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

As at 30 April 2017, if the RMB had weakened/
strengthened 5% (2016: 5%) against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s loss for the year and
accumulated losses would have been HK$1,302,000
(2016: HK$27,944,000) higher/lower, arising mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange loss/gain on pledged bank
deposits denominated in RMB.

Interest rate risk

Financial assets and liabilities at variable interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and those
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. The Group monitors the interest rate risk exposure
on a continuous basis and adjusts the portfolio of financial
assets and liabilities when necessary. A reasonable
change in interest rate in the next twelve months is
assessed to result in immaterial change in the Group’s
loss for the year and accumulated losses. Changes
in interest rates have no impact on the Group’s other
components of equity.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of these financial assets presented
in the Group’s statement of financial position are net of
impairment losses, if any. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of reporting
period, the Group has a certain concentration of credit
risk as 26% (2016: 97%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest debtor within the cosmetic
and others segment.

The Group has deposited its cash with various banks. The
credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because
most of the Group’s bank deposits are deposited with
major banks in Hong Kong and the PRC.

jﬁ%ﬂlzﬁ mﬁ

@

®)

©

SMERfE (&)

RZE—tFNA=1+H " AR
HABTEE/ FES%(-T—NF:
5%) MATA b SRF[FAE - AN
B2 AFEEBRETEEBEE M
B 21,302,000 L (ZF — /N F

27,944,000 7T) * ThE B BRI A
REEZ BT RITHEROINEE
Tﬁ/qymﬁﬁ'ﬁ

FIEEE

EFPNEzomEERBBEELRSE
@Eﬁﬁiﬁimbgﬁj_rﬂ A EE
%lJT’ZimﬁéE&EF@ZSE@EE?

RNEEMERERE o NREBFEEEN
KRk TRLERABRSREER
BEZESE AR+ Z@EANKZ
EEBHRITHAERERAFENE
BRRFEEYEEAES - FIXE
U RSB S 2 B AR I &

/45

FEEE

REBEZHBHRARANZET CREE
MEEEDHNKRREEBE (E) -
ZF’EIZ SERBREEZEREFZT
FERATE BEKEMEZITER
%ZL%’]HMD‘T{J SERERELR
2 ERERE - RFEHR AR
JEWE ZIRIBATE Z226% (=F — X
F:97%) REAEE LAz H R EA
DEHEAREBA  WAEBEAEE
FEHREERR °

AEERZRBAHFREE - HRA

KB ZROTEARBOFERRERE R
PR ERRT WIRERBITHE

ZIEERBAR -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(@)

(e)

Fair value

The directors of the Company consider the fair values of
the Group’s current financial assets and liabilities are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because
of the immediate or short-term maturity of these financial
instruments. The fair value of non-current financial assets
was not disclosed because the carrying amount is not
materially different from its fair value.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term. The Group has net current assets of
HK$840,837,000 (2016: HK$1,301,722,000) and net
assets of HK$1,907,892,000 (2016: HK$2,118,200,000)
as at 30 April 2017. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is limited.
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‘ 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) HERERERE (8)
(e) Liquidity risk (Cont’d) (e) MEIELEE ()

The following table details the remaining contractual TRANAEEEITESHBERS
maturities at each of the reporting dates of the Group’s wEBZFBEHER - ZKRTIBIER]
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on %’Uﬂiﬁﬁiﬁiﬁi\ﬁi BRI 45 &
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest s (BERZE) RIBHRE B 2 & HFI=
payment computed using contractual rates or, if floating, qu MZ? B ) RAEEAGEAEN
based on current rates at the reporting date) and the AP HHRR :

earliest date the Group may be required to pay:

Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 5 years
HEYES: 32 M1ER BR15E
BFEE RERELE HEER P55
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T THT
As at 30 April 2017 R=Z-—tFMA=1H
Trade payables EHEZERE 38,993 38,993 38,993 -
Accrued charges JE&T & R R A At e BRTE
and other payables 42,121 42,121 42,121 -
Bank borrowings RITIER 753,977 840,800 28,719 812,081
835,091 921,914 109,833 812,081
As at 30 April 2016 R=Z-A"EMA=1H
Trade payables EIEZEE 1,570 1,570 1,570 =
Accrued charges BB R R A R BRIE
and other payables 33,816 34,538 34,538 =
Bank borrowings BITER 542,553 544,153 544,153 —
577,939 580,261 580,261 -
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39. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 39. EXREEBBRKER

PROCEDURES

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

° To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

° To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and
projected profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group has not adopted any formal dividend

policy.

Management regards total equity as capital, for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as at 30 April
2016 and 2017 amounted to approximately HK$2,118,200,000
and HK$1,907,892,000 respectively, which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected
capital expenditures and the projected strategic investment
opportunities.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TSR E

J RESULTS 4

Financial year ended 30 April
BENA=TALEBEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
“Z—=f —EZ-QNF —ZT-HF —ZT—RF ZE-—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FAET FET FAT TAET THET
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(&=E5) (&E5) (&55) (&55)

Revenue Wiz 1,377 510 2,817 27,751 356,987
Cost of services provided/ BRERBE KA/

Cost of sales SHERKA (1,615) (352) (1,431) 9,410)  (219,462)
Gross profit/(loss) 7,/ (£8) (238) 158 1,386 18,341 137,525
Other income Hpr A 6,788 5,662 2,101 110,981 45,144
Selling and distribution expenses ~ $H& kA HAX (804) 2,912) (8,226) (33,078) (66,796)
Administrative and other expenses  1TEU R E fhfi sz (73,426)  (133,967)  (162,899)  (270,171)  (322,464)
Finance costs BB (1,694) (2,532) (3,058) (25,827) (24,426)
Fair value gain on contingent JEW S ARE 2 AT ELE

consideration receivables — — — 8,556 20,097
Impairment of goodwill EERE - (141,657) (60,400) - -
Impairment of other intangible assets -t E /& ERi{E - - (41,432) - -
Loss before income tax BRATBHAEER (69,374)  (275,248)  (272,528)  (191,198) (210,920
Income tax (expense)/credit s (Fx) /#% 1,890 3,951 17,136 (3,326) 11,728
Loss for the year TEEEE (67,484)  (271,297)  (255,392)  (194,524)  (199,192)
Attributable to: THIEL
Owners of the Company AREVEBA (61,3200  (263,442)  (250,098)  (190,902)  (184,502)
Non-controlling interests JEERR AR R A s (6,164) (7,855) (5,294) (3,622) (14,690)
Loss for the year TEEER (67,484)  (271,297)  (255,392)  (194,524)  (199,192)

As at 30 April
ROEA=1H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

—E—=F —ETNF —T—HF —T—RF ZB-—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAL FET FAEL FTHL THT

Total assets wEE 753,185 961,342 2,054,815 2,901,277 2,888,229
Total liabilities BEE (122,267)  (181,292)  (210,600)  (783,077)  (980,337)
Shareholders’ funds RRES 630,918 780,050  1,844215 2,118,200 1,907,892
Notes: BiaE -

The financial summary does not form part of the financial statements. B 95 458 2 N0 FEAR X B IS Rk 2 BB D ©
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